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FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

This presentation contains forward-looking statements about our industry, business, plans and objectives, financial condition and results of operations that are based on our current

expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections. These statements discuss future expectations, identify strategies, discuss market trends, contain projections of results of opera-

tions or of aur financial condition, or state other forward-looking information. These [orward-looking staternents are subject to various known and unknown risks, uncertaintias and

other factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially {rom those suggested by any forward-looking statement. We assume no duty or obligation to update any lorward-

looking stalement or to advise of any change in the sssumptions and lactors on which they are based.

Risks, uncertainties or other factors that could cause actual results to difler materially from those expressed in any [orward-looking statement include, without limitation:

. health concems relating to the use of tobaceo products;

legal or regulatory developments and changes, including, without limitation, tax increases and restrictions on the sale, marketing and usage of tobaceo products, and governmental
investigations and privately imposed smoking restrictions;

. litigation in Japan and elsewhere;

our ability to [urther diversify our business beyond the tobacco industry;

our ability to successfully expand internationally and make investments outside of Japan;

competition and changing consumer preferences;

the impact of any acquisitions or similar transactions,

local and global economic conditions; and

. Huctuations in foreign exchange rates and the costs of raw materials.

[

[ o

o™

]

Unless otherwise specified in this annual report, the information herein is as of June 23, 2006,
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Millions of yen Millions of

U.S. dollars
20020 2003® L2004 2005 2006% 2006
For the year:
‘_Net sales ¥ 4,544,175 ¥ 4402264 ¥ 4,625,151 ¥ 4,664,514 ¥ 4.637,657 $ 39,480
EBITDA Mo 334,119 337,296 373435 400,115 433391 3.689
Operating income 163,805 188,963 234,034 273,371 3006946 2613
__Ne_t 1nmme (l()ss) 3 36,850 75,302 (7,603) 62,584 201.542 1 716
Free cash flow (FCE) e 31413 170,372 269174 269 459 145,590 1,239
Atyear-end:
Total assets ] - ¥ 3,063,077  ¥2957,665 ¥3,020,084  ¥29082,0356 ¥ 3.037379 $ 25,857
Total shareholders' equity 1,613,105 1,622 654 1,507,937 1,408,204 1,762.512 15,004
Ratios:
Retum on equity (ROE) 2.4% 4.7% (0.5%) 4.2% 12,4% e
Return on asset (ROA) 5.4% 6.4% 7.9% 9.2% 10,4% —
Equity Ratio 52.7% 54.9% 49.8% 50.2% 58.0% —_
Amounts per share (in yen and U.S. dollars):
Net income ¥ 18425 ¥ 37,528 ¥ (3967) ¥ 32,090 ¥ 105,085 $ 895
Shareholders’ equity 806,552 811,204 771,516 781,814 919,780 7,830
Cash dividends applicable to the year 8,000 10,000 10,000 13,000 16,000 .136
F1i ial Highlight
Japan Tobacco Inc, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31 :
EBITDA and Net Income (Loss) and ROE Free Cash Flow Cash Dividends Applicable
Operating Income to the Year
(Billions of Yen) (Billions of Yen) (%) \“\ (Billions of Yen) {Yen}
50,000 200 20 300 20,000
40,000 150 1s 15,000
200
30,000 100 10
10,000
20,000 50 5
100
10,000 0 O 0 5000
0 1 -50 -5 0 [l 0
02003 04 05 06 02 03 04 05 06 203 V4 05 06 0203 04 05 06
{3 Net Sales [ Operating Income [3J Net Income (Loss) — ROE (Years ended March 31) (Years ended March 31)
{Years ended March 31) (Years ended March 31)

Notes: 1. Figures stated in U.S, dollars in: this report are translated solely for convenience at the rate of ¥117.47 per §1, the rate of exchange s of March 31, 2006.
(1) Effective from April 2000, the consolidated fmancial statements have been prepared in accordance with new accounting standards for financial mstmaments, foreign curency transactions and
employees retirement henefits.
(2) Effective from January 1, 2002, goodwill and other intangible assets of a foreign consolidated subsidiary have been accounted {or in accordance with new accounting standards. Also, effective
April 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for the translation inte Japanese yen of the revenue and expense accounts of foreign consolidated subsidiaries.
(3) As discussed in Note 3 o) to the consolidated financial statements, effective {rom April 2003, the Company changed its method of accounting for the Obligation under the Public Official Mutual
Assistance Association Law.
(4) As discussed n Note 3 0) to the consolidated [nancial statements, effective from April 1, 2005, the consolidated financial statermnents have been prepared in accordance with new accounting stan-
dards for impairment of fixed assets.
. EBITDA = operating mcome + depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amertization = depreciation of tangible fixed assets + amortization of intangible fixed assets + amortization of long-term prepaid expenses + amortization of goodwill
. FCF = (cash flow from operating activities + cash flow from investing activities) excluding the lollowing items:
From “cash flow [rom operating activities”, Dividends received / interest. received and its tax effect/ mterest pad and its tax effect
From: “cash flow from tnvesting activities™: Cash outflow fom purchase of marketable securities / proceeds from sales of marketable securities / cash outflow from purchases of investment securities /
proceeds from sales of investment securities / others (but not business-related investment securitizs, which are included in the investment securities item)
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Hiroshi Kimura
President and CEO and Representative Director

To Our Shareholders,
Customers, and Employees

Strategic Significance and Overview of FY 3/2006

FY 3/2006 was a year of immense change and challenge that will leave
an indelible mark on the company’s history.

At the end of April 2005, the Marlboro license agreement for the
Japanese market with Philip Morris, which had lasted approximately 30
years, was terminated. With this decision, we parted company with the
Marlboro brand, which commands the largest sales of any cigarette brand
in the world. In so doing, we lost a brand that accounted for more than
10% of the total sales volume of our domestic tobacco business.

However, our brand pertfolio was strengthened by transferring
Camel, Winston, Salem, and other products which had been managed
by JT international in Japan. to the domestic tobacco business.
Competition between Philip Moris, British American Tobacco and JT
in the Japanese market has entered a new dimension that finds the
world-leading brands of each of these makers engaged in increasingly
severe competition for market share.

As the adult population of Japan declines, and the aging of

6 JT Annual Report 2006

society progresses, the environment surrounding tobacco has
become more severe, and the demand for tobacco products in the
Japanese market is undergoing a structural decline. During FY
3/2006, these fundamentals were compounded by the risk that JT's
profitability would decline substantially due to the loss of business
resulting from the termination of the Marlboro license agreement.
“JT PLAN-V” was formulated in response to these changes, and
drove a number of painful cost structure reform measures, including
the consolidation of domestic tobacco production factories and the
voluntary retirement of the equivalent of one third of our employees
on a non-consolidated basis. These policies allowed us to firmly
maintain the profitability of our domestic tobacco business. In addi-
tion, buoyed by solid performances from the international tobacco,
pharmaceutical and foods businesses, we achieved results that far

exceeded all management targets set under *JT PLAN-V.”

(1) Domestic tobacco business

The domestic tobacco business—the core source of profits of the JT




During FY 3/2006, the final year of “JT PLAN-V,” we achieved results

that far exceeded all EBITDA, ROE, and Cumulative FCF management

targets for the period between FY3/2004 and FY3/2006. We [eel that

these results demonstrate that JT has the power to overcome the current

severe business environment. The results also provide clear feedback

that the company is realizing its aspirations 10 create an appropriate cor-

porate image and organizational culture.

Group—succeeded in reforming its cost structure. Although the tobacco
excise tax will increase from July 2006 and further declines in sales vol-
ume are expected, we believe we have already constructed a business

base that is capable of coping with these changes.

(2) International tobacco business

The intemational tobacco business continued to strengthen its role as
the driving force for profit growth of the JT Group. In FY 3/2006, sales
volume of this business exceeded that of the domestic tobacco busi-
ness. On the profit side, our intemational wbacco business achieved a
remarkable degree of organic growth, led by the sustained growth of

its Global Flagship Brands (GFB), and outstripping that of its rivals.

(3) Pharmaceutical business

In the pharmaceutical business, we moved four new compounds into
the clinical development stage during “f1T PLAN-V” period, exceeding
the management target set under “JT PLAN-V” of entering three new
compounds into clinical development. In addition, during FY 3/2005,
we licensed JTT-705 (dyslipidemia) to F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd., and
JTK-303 (anti-HIV) to Gilead Sciences Inc. These developments have
demonstrated the strength of JT's research and development capabili-

ties and have contributed to increasing the company’s business value.

(4) Foods business
After achieving an operating income surplus in FY 3/2005, a year ahead

of the target set under “JT PLAN-V,” the foods business went on to

solidify its profit-generating characteristics by further expanding its
earnings in FY 3/2006. Now that we have put this business on a firm
footing, we have reached the stage where we can look ahead to the

prospect of achieving new growth.

FY 3/2006 Performance

JT's net sales for FY 3/2006 totaled ¥4,637.7 billion, a decrease of

¥26.9 billion (0.6%) from the previous fiscal year, mainly caused by
the decline in sales volume of the domestic tobacco business.

We succeeded in overcoming the effects of this reduction in sales
through the implementation of cost structure reforms in the domestic
tobacco business, and the achievement of expanded eamings growth
in the international tobacco and the foods businesses. Thanks to these
efforts, EBITDA grew by ¥33.3 billion to ¥433.4 billion (an 8.3%
increase) compared with the previous fiscal year, and operating
income rose by ¥33.6 hillion to ¥306.9 billion (a 12.3% increase)
compared with the previous fiscal year. Moreover, with the significant
decrease in business restructuring costs that had totaled ¥224.8 billion
during the previous fiscal year, the extraordinary profit and loss bal-
ance improved. As a result, net income for the fiscal year totaled
¥201.5 billion, an increase of ¥139.0 billion (222.0%) compared with
the previous fiscal year.

Accordingly, EBITDA, operating income, recurring profit and net

income all set new record highs, an outstanding performance which

To Qur Shareholders, Customers, and Employees 7




allowed the company to complete “JT PLAN-V” with great success.

After taking into account the above performance, JT has decided
to pay a dividend for FY 3/2006 of ¥16,000 per share. With respect to
dividends, our basic policy is aimed at providing a competitive level of
returns to shareholders in the capital market through an optimal cash
flow allocation in accordance with our consolidated financial results.
Taking this into account, during the period of “JT PLAN-V," we have
sought to increase the dividend level on a continual basis.

Moreover, in order to create an environment that makes it easier
for nvestors to invest in our company, we have lowered the minimum
unit of investment by conducting a stock split for the purpose of
expanding the company’s investor base. Under this measure, we carried
out a five-for-one split for all existing shares held by shareholders listed

or recorcled on the final shareholders’ name list dated March 31, 2006.

New Medium Term Management Plan “JT2008”

In May 2006, we announced *JT2008” as the new medium term
managemment plan to follow “JT PLAN-V.” Tt is vitally important that
we realize sustainable growth in the future from the strong business
foundation we have constructed through the implementation of “JT
PLAN-V” so that the results gained over the past three years will not
be merely temporary. In the course of “JT PLAN-V” we realized
results that far exceeded the targets set out in the plan—an achieve-

ment that has proven ] T’s power to overcome severe changes in the

JT Anuowal Report 2006

business environment. We also obtained feedback through “JT
PLAN-V” that has allowed us to realize our desired corporate image
and organizational culture.

We consider people to be the most important prerequisite for sus-
tainable growth. Over the next three years, we will focus both on
enhancing the competitiveness of our personnel who will become a
driving force for growth, and against this background, on reinforcing
our organizational strength. In addition, we will invest actively in R&D
to promote further organic growth.

The major tasks for each business are as follows.

(1) Domestic tobacco business

The domestic tobacco business will remain as the core sowrce of profits

of the JT Group in the future. In this business, we will aim to maintain

current level of profits as well as boldly rise to the challenge of achiev-

ing top-line growth. In addition. we will make efforts to improve cus-

tomer satisfaction and will 11y to achieve harmonious coexistence -
between smokers and nonsmokers in an environment in which various

tobacco-related regulations are being enforced.

(2) International tobacco business

The international tobacco business will continue to achieve powerful
growth as the driving force for profit growth of the JT Group over the
coming years. To achieve this, we will continue to implemnt our basic
strategy, which includes strengthening the equity of GFB, concentrating

on core markets, continuous investment in quality, and cost efficiencies.



(3) Pharmaceutical business

The pharmaceutical business will focus on advancing its clinical com-
pounds to higher phases of clinical study, and further enhancing its
R&D pipelines by promoting drug discovery. We will work to steadily
advance the pipeline status of compounds cirrently under develop-

ment and work towards the development of new world-class drugs.

(4) Foods business
The foods husiness will aim at even greater profit expansion. By further
strengthening its profitability, this business will make a growing contri-

bution to improving the corperate value of the JT Group.

With regard to the use of capital under “JT2008,” top priority will
be given to business investment. In addition to ordinary investment
in plant and equipment, for example, we will also explore ways of
gaining access to external resources. Moreover, we are preparing to
meet flexible capital demands by expanding our internal reserves
for business investment where appropriate.

Our basic dividend policy and aim is to provide a competitive
level of returns to shareholders in the capital market. In considera-
tion of the status of our medium and long-term growth strategy and
our consolidated financial results forecast, we are aiming at a consol-
idated pay-out ratio of 20%, while also endeavoring to increase the
dividend level. Furthermore, we are considering a share buy-back

with the objective of expanding our future management options.

Toward Delight Which Exceeds
Stakeholder Expectations

In the new medium term management plan *JT2008,” our manage-
ment vision and our commitment to improving the satisfaction of
our sharcholders, customers, employees, and society. while main-
taining a good halance between our responsibilities to each, remains
unchanged. We consider this to be the most challenging autitude
and approach to corporate management, and we are united in our
resolve to pursue this path by maintaining a healthy sense of crisis
at all times. T believe that by continuing to follow our present
course, we are ensuring a bright future for the JT Group.

In closing, 1 ask our stakeholders to continue to provide us
with your full understanding and support as we implement our

management strategy into the future.

June 2006

- V. ot

Hiroshi Kimura
President and CEO and Representative Director

Te Our shareholders, Customers, and Employees Q




Special.Feature:

Medium Term Management Plan

During the period of *JT PLAN-V,” the previous medium term management plan which covered the three-

year period that ended March 31, 2006, we faced significant changes in the operating environment, including

JTs termination of the Marlboro license agreement and the increase of the wbaceo excise tax in Japan. ‘}\ i
However, as a result of the Group-wide eflort 1o improve top-line performance and implement cost structure PR
reform, we achieved all the management targets set under “JT PLAN-V” and established a solid Toundation

for our transformation to a *Global Growth Company that Develops Diversified, Value Creating Businesses”.

Despite the record high profit achieved for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the success of *JT
PLAN-V” is merely one milestone on our constant voyage to grow the business in a dynamic operating
environment. With the launch of our new medium term management plan, “JT2008,” which inherits
and evolves the previous plan’s strategy to ensure sustainable growth for the coming years, JT is chart-

ing a new and exciting course for the company’s future and for its stakeholders.

o a é
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i
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2004 2005
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; 975
[
O EBITDA
(reported; before royalty
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2005
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target was to move three compounds Wlth the« I + Move three compounds wnh potenual to become new world-class drugs
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on to the clinical development stage. We

steadily enhanced the pipeline, and move Code ndicaion Development Stage
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' FERNE ' i Hyperlipidemia Domestic: Phase i1
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’pursued >t1ateglc hcensmg out o woﬂd Operseas: Phase ]
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Summary of New Medium Term Management Plan

“J T 2 0 0 8 7 (FY3/ZOO‘7—FY3/2009)

about to face a crucial stage in thc, dChl(.’ (bl

fumle The achievement of “JT PLAN-V" was an 1mportant st :

towards becommg a global growth company»(that develops chver

overcome chqllenges m the operatmg en'\

o v achleve sustamable growth beyond “JT2008.”
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e
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Y g + Enhance activitiesin growmg sales channe]s (e g C onvenience stores)
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Promonon Strategy
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introducing this new- tcchnology

We will also pursue an env1ronment i O Imroduce kughspeed madum more than 10,000 cigarettes per minute) for a flexible manu-
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coexist, and will fulfill our: re:,ponblbﬂm‘ asthe o «Efﬁctemly mtroduce and Operatc vendmg machines with adult identification functions»

leadmg company in the domestic: market.
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March 2009. -

Asa Group-wide chalie‘tlgé, we will enharice

the corporation. * - e ey G v 40 Tdentify and train;

Foods Business

The foods b smess w111 airm to est:abhsh : tsg :

Specifically, our target as a plllar busmes< is

to achieve a consohdated op«.ratmg margin. of

3.5% or hlgher tor the flscal year endlng Estabhsh cdmpetltlve advmtage

blish synergies-as; = general foads manufauturer

ing the “JT PU\N W stra[egxes
Astabhsh a supcnor structurc while maintaining the upward Lrend

procasaed foods, proce:sed preserved foodo)
‘Enhan e'and expand the natural extract business fundamema]s

Groﬁb—Widey‘CHall'epg_e’;s

réngthening the Corporation

our orgamzatlonal strength and opmmze the ‘ '
. : «Enhance P rsonnel and Org'unzanoml Strengths

y'operate and sohch(y the new personnel system (April 2006 onwards)

*rsonnel who Wlll be responelb]e for the future.

assets we own; ‘with th

¢ <Optimize Assets Owned ble» )
« oIdle réal estate as of March.31, 2006 (T non-consolidated)
Valuauon o ‘(cd asseLs' ¥84 9 billior (book. value ¥12.7 billion)

«Relentlessly Putsue a}\drﬁxplolt' Cost—savlng Qppqnumucs»

Special Features 17




T el
1T Annual Re




T
4

Tobacco

Review of Opentions




Ichiro Kumakura
President, Tobacco Business

Our domestic tobacco business
will continue in its vole as the
core source of profits of the JT
Group by overcoming operating
environment changes, including
decreasing total demand and

severe (‘.()l‘npﬁii tion,

Business Performance

FY 3/2006 business performance summary

— Total sales volume of JT products: 189.5 billion cigarettes,
down 11.2% (see note)

— Net sales excluding taxes: ¥1,173.2 billion, down 2.5%

— Operating income: ¥220.1 billion, up 2.0%

- EBITDA: ¥305.8 billion, up 3.3%

(Note) In addition to the figure stated above, the company also sold 3.2 billion cigarettes
at duty-free shops in Japan and in the markets of China, Hong Kong and Macay,
which are under the control of the Company's China Division.

Sales growth strategy
JT's top-line growth strategy for the domestic tobacco business is
three-fold: First, develop an accurate assessment of the overall

market in order to focus on products for growing segments, such

20 JT Annual Report 2006

as the 1-mg tar, menthol, and premium (¥300 per pack or above)
segments; second, a vigorous launching of new products mainly in
these market segments and last, executing efficient sales promo-
tion activities.

During FY 3/2006, we launched 14 products including three
l-mg tar, five menthol. 11 premium, and five D-spec* products.
We also expanded the sales areas of the eight products which we
currently distribute on a geographically limited basis, including
Planissimo Péche Menthol One.

In addition, the company reinforced its brand portfolio by
consolidating the domestic operations of JTI for Camel, Winston
and Salem into JT's domestic lineup. This change took effect in
May 2005, and has resulted in more efficient sales promotion
activities and an expanded range of product strategy options.

* D-spec products, reduced odor segment products (known as “Less Smoke Smell” products
abroad), incorporate the company's odor-reducing technology in response to customer
demand for a reduction in the smell of tobacco smoke.




J7T’s share of Growing Segments and D-spec

(%)
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Cost structure reform

We have strengthened our cost competitiveness with clear meas-
ures that anticipate risk, and through consistent efforts to reduce
fixed costs and minimize variable costs. By April 2005, we have
reduced tobacco factories to 10 in order to consolidate produc-
tion and rationalizc operations. In addition, we consolidated sales
operations at the end of June 2003, and on the raw materials sup-
ply side we closed a leal tobacco material processing plant. These
measures are a continuation of the organizational restructuring
which began in July, 2004,

Sales volume performance

While the transfer of Camel, Winston, Salem, and other brands
from JT1 to JT from May 2005 contributed to the company’s sales
volume, the termination of the Marlboro license agreement in April
2005 led to an overall reduction in sales. As a result, the sales of JT
products during FY 3/2006 was 189.4 billion cigarettes, a decline
of 23.7 billion cigarettes compared with the previous year, and the
company’s market share declined by 6.5 points to 66.4%.

Products that JT positioned in growing segments steadily
expanded the company’s share of these segments. In FY 3/2006,
our share of the {ellowing categories, excluding Marlboro products
and including JT1 products, were as follows; 1-mg tar: 11.9% (up
1.3 points), menthol: 6,5% (up 0.8%), and premium: 5.4% (up
0.4%). Interestingly, in the new D-spec product category, our

products are gaining a firm footing with a 3.5% market share.

Market Share, by JT Brand Family

(%)
33.6%
lOﬁ%‘ .
L7% 35% 4.0%°%
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[0 Foreign products

Strategy and Mceasures

We are aiming to maximize our marketing mix
to achieve sustainable growth,

— Product strategy

— Distribution strategy

— Marketing strategy

— Improving productivity and fulfilling our responsibility as

a leading company

Maximizing the marketing mix
In the domestic tobacco market, the total demand for cigarettes
has continued to decline with an aging Japanese population, a
growing consciousness of smoking and health, and tightening
smoking regulations. The increase in the tobacco excise tax,
which went inte effect in July 2003, further accelerated the
weakening of domestic demand, with the percentage of smokers
dropping to 29.2% as of June 2005, In addition, a further
increase in tobacco excise tax is to be implemented effective July
1, 2006.

With various tobacco-related regulations being strength-
ened, and competition with foreign brands for domestic market
share becoming increasingly severe, the company's marketing

capabilities are once again being called upon. JT plans to over-
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Cigarette Brands Expanded to Nationwide Sales in FY3/2006

Price
Release Nationwide  Product D-spec  Menthol  Tar (mg)  Nicotine {mg) Prior to After
June 30,2006  July 1,2006
Jul-04 Apr-05 HOPE SUPER LIGHTS [} Q.3 ¥140 ¥150
Jul-04 Apr-03 CASTER COQL VANILLA MENTHOL BOX [¢] 3 0.3 ¥270 ¥290
Jul;04 Apr-05 PEACE AROMA MENTHOL BOX o] 7 0.6 ¥300 ¥320
Jul-04 Apr-05 SEVEN STARS LIGHTS BOX 7 0.7 ¥280 ¥300
Feb-05  Sep-03 SEVEN STARS REVO LIGHTS MENTHOL BOX [e] o] 7 0.6 ¥300 ¥320
Feb-05  Sep-03 LUCIA CITRUS FRESH MENTHOL ONE e} (o] 1 0.1 ¥300 ¥320
Jul05  Nov-05 " PIANISSIMO PECHE MENTHOL ONE o o 1 0.1 ¥300 ¥320
Jul-0s Jan-06 SEVEN STARS REVO SUPER LIGHTS BOX o] 3 0.5 ¥300 ¥320

come the effects of future declines in sales volume by optimizing

product, distribution and marketing strategies.

[Product strategy]

The concentration of resources in growing segments and improv-
ing the value of our core brands are the central elements in JT's
product strategy.

We intend to achieve steady growth for our existing brands
within growing market segments (1-mg tar, menthol, and premi-
um products) while at the same time expanding our market share
by effectively introducing new products.

We are also proceeding steadily with improvements to the
value of our core brands. In May 2006, we re-designed the five
brands in the Mild Seven family. In addition, we are attempting to
raise unit prices through the development and release of high
value-added products as represented by D-spec products. These
activities are building the equity of our core brand portfolio.

In accordance with the increase in tobacco excise tax effec-
tive July 1, 2006, we will shift the increased tax onto prices for
all brands, and will revise the retail prices of 13 brands mere
than the increased tax. including 11 brands from the Mild

Seven family.
[Distribution strategy|

JT enjoys a powerful and unrivalled distribution network. In

Japan, approximately 60% of all tobacco sales are carried out via
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vending machines, and JT owns more than one-third of all ciga-
rette vending machines in this country. From now on. we will
strengthen our activities in growing sales channels such as conven-
ience stores, while maintaining our overwhelming competitiveness

in the important vending machine channel.

[Marketing strategy|

We employ a trade marketing organization which in scale sur-
passes those of our competitors. This team conducts marketing
activities that are carefully tailored to the needs of retailers
throughout the country. As we move forward, we will imple-
ment best - of - class sales promotion activities through one-to-
one marketing while following applicable regulations and help-

ing to address the problem of smoking by minors.

[Improving productivity and fulfilling responsibilities

as a leading company]|
Productivity improvements are an unending task for manufactur-
ers. At JT, we work constantly in order to respond appropriately
to diversified customer needs and changes in demand.

We will continue to fulfill our responsibilities as the leading
tobacco company in the Japanese market, and will continue to
promote a society in which smokers and nonsmokers can coexist.
We will work to promote improvements in smoking manners,
while developing and supporting suitable locations and opportu-

nities for smoking. Furthermore, as an ongoing objective for the
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entire tobacco industry including )T, we will continue to work
towards preventing smoking by minors in cooperation with local
governments and related organizations. In this context, we are
preparing for the introduction of cigarette vending machines with
adult identification functions nationwide (scheduled for imple-

mentation in 2008).

As the Core Source of Profits of the JT Group

An increase in the tobacco excise tax is scheduled to take effect
from July 2006. In our view, this measure will further accelerate
the decline of total demand and increase our competitive chal-
lenges. However, by making full use of our operating base, we will
continuve to fulfill our role as the core source of prolits for the JT
Group by providing quality products that meet customer needs at

an appropriate price,

1
W
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JT international S A, (JT1) is the core of JT’s international tobac-
co operations, and is the fasrest organically growing internation-
al tobacco company in the industry, with operations in 120
countries around the world. JTT is today the driving lorce of
profit growth for the entive JT Group, and has delivered an aver-
age of 20% EBITDA growih {or five consecutive years.

JT0s performance is driven by the company’s cental focus

on its Global Flagship Brands (GFB) and its core markets, and

Pilerre de Labouchere
President & CEQ, JT International $.A

reflects a broadening of the company’s earnings base as well as
balanced growth between mature and the increasingly impor-
tant emerging markets. JTI's Global Flagship Brands are Camel,

Winston, Mild Seven, and Salem.

o

Business

framd

Iinternationa

Business Performance products were transferred to JT in May 2005—grew 6.3%. GFB
sales volume increased 1.8% from the previous fiscal year.
FY 2005 business performance summary* Excluding the Japan market, GFB sales volume increased 5.6%,
led by growth of Winston in Russia, Ukraine, Iran and ltaly,
— Total sales volume: 220.3 billion cigarettes, up 3.7% Camel in France, Italy and Spain, and Mild Seven in Taiwan.
— GFB sales volume: 133.8 billion cigarettes, up 1.8%
— Net sales excluding taxes: US$ 4,393 million, up 11.4%
— EBITDA**: US$975 million, wp 31.5%

* The consolidated accounting period [or the international tobacco business is January
through December.
“* Belore royalty payment toJT

Global Plagship Brands and
the Strengthening of JTTs Brand Portfolios

JTTs focus on GFB performance and the strengthening of the com-
pany’s brand portfolic and brand equity are important factors sup-
In 2005, JT1 total sales volume increased 7.9 billion cigarettes to porting the company’s growth momentum. Global consistency in

220.3 billion cigarettes, an increase of 3.7% from the previous fis-  brand communication, combined with the positioning of Camel,

cal year, driven by the continued growth of the company’s Global
Flagship Brands (GFB), as well as the growth of non-GI'B brands.

Total sales volume—excluding the Japan market where JT1
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Mild Seven and Salem in the premium segment, and Winston in
the sub-premium segment, drive GFB growth.

JTT continues to develop brand portfolios which are relevant
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for consumers in each market, with a central focus on GFB
growth, As a result, both total sales volume and GFB sales volume
continue to grow despite the emergence and growing popularity of
value products in a number of markets.

The consistent implementation of this strategy remains critical
to JTT's continued growth as changes in the company’s operating
environment, particularly in cigarette taxation and industry pric-

ing, affect consumer behavior in many of the company’s markets.

Core Markei Performance Broadens JT1%s
Earnings Base

The number of markets contributing more than 50 million dollars
in EBITDA has increased from a base of 3 markets in 2000, to 7
markets at the end of 2005. This broadening of the company’s
earnings base is a direct result of JTI's focus on its Global Flagship
Brands and on the company’s core markets, which today include
France, Spain. Taly, Russia, Ukraine, Turkey, Iran, Canada.

Taiwan, Malaysia, and South Korea.

Focus on GFB growth and core markets

ltaly Jkraine
0 g
France
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o ° :
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Toward Sustainable Organic Growth

Looking to the future, the tobacco industry will continue to face
both challenges and opportunities as the operating environment
rapidly evolves, Increasingly stringent regulation, cigarette tax
increases and price increases are causing consumers to be even
more demanding of quality and value.

Increasing restrictions require that JT1 be even more competi-
tive at the point of contact with our consumers, and the company
will continue to invest to strengthen the equity of its brands.

JTI will continue to invest to enhance its competitiveness at
the point of sale across all markets, and to expand and leverage its
brand portfolio. The company will continue to invest in the quali-
ty of its brands, leveraging the significant synergies the company
has with JT in R&D and product innovation in order to exceed the
expectations of our consumers.

While competition among tobacco manufacturers will intensi-
fy, changes in consumer behavior will continue to provide oppor-
tunities for growth. Consistent execution of JTTs core strategies—
the continued focus on Global Flagship Brands and on core mar-
kets—will ultimately provide the foundation for sustainable

organic growth.
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Global Flagship Brands Drive JTTs Performance
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Camel remains a powerful international brand, ranking No.2 in sales
volumme in Western Europe. In 2005, total sales volume grew 1% for the
second consecutive year despite adverse trading conditions in Western
European markets, with Camel registering market share increases in
ltaly, Spain, and France. In 2002, JTI began the rejuvenation of Camel
with a new, globally consistent taste and package design, and brand
equity remains strong despite consumer down trading in a number of

markets in this important region.

As economic conditions improve across JTFs important emerging markets,
consumers continue to trade up to international brands, notably to
Winston which is positioned in the sub-premium segment. Winston regis-
tered its 5th consecutive year of double digit sales volume growth, increas-
ing 10% in 2005, and driven by solid gains in Iran, Russia, ltaly, Ukraine,
and Switzetland. Winston currently ranks as the world's No. 4 brand.

JTI began Winston’s rejuvenation in 2000 with product improvements,
and has strengthened Winston’s unique positoning as a high quality, sub
premium segment heritage brancl. JTI will continute to leverage Winston’s
unique positioning as new opportunities for further growth are identfied.

JTT continues to strengthen Mild Seven’s brand equity through globally
consistent brand communication, and the introduction of new packag-
ing graphics in 2005. The new package design has been well received
by consumers, and the brand achieved 2% growth in 2003. In Taiwan,
the brand's largest market outside of Japan, Mild Seven sales volume
growth has exceeded 8% in 2005. JTT will continue to invest in Mild
Seven's international premium brand equity in an effort to further

expand brand sales volume and market share performance.

As a result of the transfer of JTI's Japan business to JT, Salem’s role in
our GFB ponfolio has diminished, and currently represents 1% of total
JT1 sales volume. Salem however remains unique in its positioning as a
premium menthol brand, and JTI continues to enhance Salem’s com-
munications and product mix. JTT will invest to tevitalize the brand in
the brand's core Malaysian market, and thereafter in markets where the

brand has potential to grow.




Performance of Regions and Markets

[France, Spain and laly]
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France, Spain and Ttaly are highly profitable mature markets, and remained significant profit con-
uibutors in 2005, The operating environment in these markets has undergone significant change
as cigarette tax increases, prices increases and public smoking restrictions drive declines in con-
sumption, and as demand grows for value brands.

In France, total industry volume stabilized in 2005, following a substantial 21% decline in 2004,
in this environment, JTI grew its share of market by 0.4 points, driven by a good performance
from Camel.

In Spain, the super value segment grew rapidly over the last half of 2005, and now represents
30% of total industry volume. Despite this significant change in the market, a solid performance
from Camel resulted in the company maintaining its share of market.

In ltaly, JTUs share of market increased by 1.8 share points, driven by strong performances from
both Camel and Winston. JTI's shate of market in Italy has nearly doubled in the last two years.

JT1 registered strong volume growth in 2005 in the emerging markets of Russia and Ukraine, as
economic conditions improve and as consumers trade up to intermnational brands. In 2003,
JTT's total share of market reached an all time high of 17.4% in Russia and 12.8% in Ukraine,
both led by the strong momentum of Winston. Winston is now the No.1 brand in Russia both
in terms of sales volume and retail sales value. Nearly half of JTT's volume growth in these mar-
kets was driven by brands other than Winston.

In Turkey, JT1 experienced a 1.8 percentage point decline in total share of market as a result of
two separate changes which took place in the marker's excise tax structure during 2005. Despite
this volatile environment, Camel performed well and maintained its share of market.

In Iran, JT1 continued its strong momentum in 2005, driven by Winston and Magna, whose
volumes grew more than 80% and 40% respectively. Share data still remains elusive in Iran, but
the company firmly believes that JT1 is the No. 1 international tobacco company in the market.

Canada is a mature market with high profitability, but has undergone significant change as the
value segment increased from 6% in 2002 to 43% of total industry volume in 2005, While our
total share of the Canadian market remains slightly depressed at 11.6% in 2005, Export A
share of segment grew and solidified its position as the No. 3 premium brand in the market. In
addition, JT! launched Macdonald Special in 2005, reflecting the company's decision to fully
participate in the value segment.

Taiwan, Malaysia and South Korea remain attractive markets for potential sales volume and
profit growth.

JTI continued its strong growth momentum in Taiwan, and achieved 36.9% share of market
in 2005, driven by Mild Seven. The company is now the No. | tobacco company in the Taiwan
market.

Total sales volume in Malaysia and South Korea declined as tax rates increased, and as prices rose
during 2004 and 2005. Despite these challenges, JTT's total share of market in Malaysia reached 19.4%,
while the company’s South Korea business stabilized following improvements in to the company’s cper-
ating mode and brand portfolio over the last two years.
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Noriaki Okubo
President, Pharmaceutical Business

vative drugs.

<

Pharmaceutical Business

Business Performance
FY 3/2006 business performance summary

— Net sales: ¥49.3 billion, down 14.6%
— Operating loss: ¥5.0 billion, down ¥6.9 billion
— EBITDA: ¥-1.8 billion, down ¥7.3 billion

Reinforcing Owr In-house Drug Discovery Capabilities

In FY 3/2006, based on previous developments in this field, we
proceeded to further improve and strengthen our in-house R&D
capabilities,

With regard to drug development, we terminated clinical
development of JTK-003 (hepatitis C) and JTE-607 (systemic

inflammatory response syndrome). On the other hand, two com-
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JT is endeavoring to develop its pharma-
ceutical business as the tuture pillar of s
operations, thereby further enhancing the
value of the JT Group’s diversified business
portfolio. To this end. we have built a solid
foundation by establishing a unique phar-
maceutical business with world-class R&D
capabilities, and increasing our market

presence through the development of inno-

pounds, JTT-305 (osteoporoesis) and JTT-551 (diabetes) have
entered into the clinical stage this year, so that we currently have
a total of six compounds undergoing clinical study (as of April
28, 2006).

Accelerating Development Using External Resources

In FY 3/2005, JT entered into licensing agreements with F.
Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. concerning JTT-705 (dyslipidemia) and
with Gilead Sciences Inc. concerning JTK-303 (anti-HIV). Moreover,
in April 2006, we entered into a licensing agreement with
GlaxoSmithKline Inc. concerning a new chemical compound that is
still at the pre-clinical stage. As these examples illustrate, JT has been
promoting accelerated development of promising in-house drug dis-

coveries by making use of external resources.




Clinical Development (s of april 28, 2006)

Code Stage Indication Characteristics
JTT-705 (oral) Phase 1 (JPN) Dyslipidemia Decreases LDL and increases HDL by inhibition of CETP
-CETP: Cholesteryl Ester Transfer Protein, facilitates transfer of chiolesteryl ester from HDL to LDL
-HDL: High density lipoprotein, Good Cholesterol
-LDL: Low density lipoprotein, Bad Cholesterol
JTT-130 (oral)  Phase I JPN) Hyperhpldemm N Treatment of hypeflipidarhie{ By reducing ébs@rpiton of cholesterol and Lrigfyccridé via inhibitioin of MTP
Phase 1 (Qverseas) MTP:Microsomal Triglyceride Transfer Protein
JTK-303 (oral) Phase I (JPN) Anti-HIV 'Imcgrasc inhibitor which works by Blo&king integrase, an enzyme that is involved in the 'replicatic.m of HIV
(HIV:Human fmmunodeficiency Virus)
JTT-302 (oral) Phase I (Overseas)  Dyslipidemia Decreases LDL and increases HDL by inhibition of CETP
-CETP: Cholesteryl Ester Transfer Protein, facilitates transfer of cholesteryl ester from HDL to LDL
-HDL: High density lipoprotein, Good Cholesterol
-L.DL: Low density lipoprotein, Bad Cholesterol
JTT-305 (oral) Phase [ (JPN) Increases BMD and decreases new vertebral fractures by accelerating endogenous PTH secretion via an[égni

Osteoporosis

nism of circulating Ca on CaSR in parathyreid cells

-BMD: Bone Mineral Density
-PTH: Parathyroid Hormone

-CaSR: Caletum-Sensing Receptor

_)1'1"-551 (oral) Phase 1 (JPN) Type 2 diabetes mellitus

Decreases blood glucose b:v enhancing‘msulin signal via inhibition of PTPB.

-PTP1B:Protein Tyrosine Phosphatase 1B This enzyme negatively regulates insulin signaling pathways.

Phase | Testing conducted on healthy volunteers 1o verify product safety and disposition (ADME: absorption, distribution, metabolism, and excretion).
Phase [I: Testing conducted on a small number of patients, with their consent, to study the drug's effectiveness as well as safety.
Phase Hll: Testing conducted on 4 large number of patients, with their consent, to compare product effectiveness and safety with standard treatments.

Strategy and Measures

— Steadily advance compounds under development and
R&D pipeline improvement

— Search for strategic licensing opportunities

|Steadily advance compounds under development and
enhance R&D pipeline]

With respect to the pharmaceutical business, JT will continue to
follow its existing strategy of further enhancing its R&D pipeline
by promoting drug discovery research while steadily advancing
the development status of compounds currently in the pipeline.

As for the scope of our R&D activities, while making use of
our accumulated knowledge, we are focusing our target areas from
the standpoint of concentrating our activities. Accordingly, we are
mainly concentrating our R&D resources on glucose and lipid
metabolism, anti-virus, immune disorders and inflammation, and

bone metabolism.

[Search for strategic licensing opportunities]

In the face of escalating glolal R&D competition, it is becoming
increasingly important to accelerate R&D and bring new products
promptly to the market. Bearing this in mind, JT is searching for
strategic opportunities for licensing in and out in order to maxi-

mize business value as early as possible.

Aiming at the Creation and
Provision ol Original Drugs

“The creation of original new drugs” is never an easy task. At JT,
however, we feel a sense of pride and challenge in taking up “the
development of world-class innovative drugs” as our corporate
mission. Moreover, we ate tackling this mission with real determi-
nation, creating what is original, and attempting to do what can
only be done by JT, so that patients and medical professionals all
over the world will agree that “We could not have done without

JTs drug.”
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Mutsuo [wai
President, Food Business

In the foods business, IT is aiming to estab-
lish a global competitive advantage as a gener-
al foods manufacturer. We are enhancing and
establishing our competitive advantage in the
foods business as a whole, including the
fields of raw materials procurement, research
and development and product development.
In addition, we are establishing a [ramework

that can demonstrate synergies across mulu-

ple business categories.

Foods

Business Performance
FY 3/2006 business performance summary

— Net sales: ¥278.4 billion, up 4.9%
— Operating income: ¥6.3 billion, up 224.7%
— EBITDA: ¥11.9 billion, up 49.7%

In the foods business, JT has strived to further improve business
value through the development and introduction of new products,
the reinforcement of existing sales channels and the promotion of
greater efficiency across all operations, and the establishment of a
strong business structure to cope with the severe operating envi-
ronment.

In the processed foods business, JT has continued to enhance
and enrich the commercial frozen foods product line, such as the
“Obento Nai-Ninki!” and “Imadoki-Wazen” series. JT has also
strived to expand the scale of operations and strengthen earnings

growth. through the active development and introduction of high-
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ly-valued distinctive products, including High 1G yeast extract,
which was developed through JT's unigue technology in season-
ings and seasoned processed foods.

In the beverage business, JT has been steadily expanding its

business mainly through the vending machine operations of

Japan Beverage Inc., a JT subsidiary. In addition, JT actively

developed and launched new products that reinforce core
brands while delivering competitive differentiation, as repre-
sented by “Roots.”

Driven by the expansion of scale in the commercial frozen
foods segment of the processed foods business, steady expansion
of vending machine sales channels and the performance of
“Roots” in the beverage business, net sales reached ¥278.4 billion,
an increase of ¥13.0 billion over the previous year. Operating
income reached ¥6.3 bhillion, an increase of ¥4.4 billion, com-

pared with the previous year.




Leading Products

Strategy and Measures

— Establish and strengthen competitive advantage, and uti-
lize new opportunities to increase the value of the business
through business expansion,
>> Further reinforce the [oundation as a core business of

the JT Group.

1. Beverages business

We will progressively expand our vending machine sales chan-
nels through Japan Beverage, and will promote product develop-
ment and marketing that thoroughly pursues differentiation,
while further strengthening the “Roots” brand by bolstering our
R&D and product development capabilities. In addition, prof-
itability will be further improved by promoting greater efficiency

throughout the business.

2. Processed foods business

In the processed foods business, we are constructing an excellent
business framework while further reinforcing our capacity to earn
profits. In concrete terms, we will aim to strengthen our ability to
safely and reliably procure key ingredients, to perform research
and development, and to develop products through our techno-
logical competitiveness. At the same time, we will actively intro-
duce highly differentiated products and will concentrate on sales

channel expansion and development.

3. Seasonings business

In the seasonings business, we are promoting the development of
compound additives while also aiming to strengthen and expand
our natural flavorings-based seasonings business framework. 1n this
context, we will focus on expanding the production and sale of high
value-added yeast products that take advantage of our in-house
technology as well as other extracts derived from high-qualiry trace-
able ingredients, such as kelp, bonito, pork, etc. Furthermore, we
will promote the development of compound additives that meet cur

customers' needs, and shilt to natural flavoring-based seasonings.

Aiming at the Creation of New Value in the Food World

JT's foods business is responding to the diversification of food
lifestyles by providing high-value products and services, a strategy
that has been rewarded by the creation of a string of hit products.

»

With “safety and reliability” as our motto, we are making a
sincere effort to ensure the procurement of high-quality ingredi-
ents, improved traceability, and the operation of a technology
development and management system for hygiene and quality
maintenance, while at the same time further strengthening our
research and product development capabilities. In this way, we
will continue to strive towards the creation of new forms of value
that meet global demands through the world of food, which is the

basis of human life.
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JT recognizes that timely and accurate decision-making
and execution of business tasks are crucial to our abili-
Ly Lo increase our corporate value and respond appro-
priately to changes in our business and social environ-
ments. Based on this recognition, JT takes a proactive
approach o corporate governance, as it believes that
strong corporate governance is one of the major tasks

of management.

Corporate (

State of Implementation of Measures Concerning
Corporate Governance

Corporate governance system

i. Organization in the company

The Board of Directors meets once a month as a rule and at other times
as needed to decide on issues as determined by law and other important
iterns, to supervise the conduct of the company’s affairs, and to receive
reports from the directors on the status of the company’s business.

Aiming at continuous improvement in the quality of its business
as a whole, JT has an Executive Officer System, where executive offi-
cers appointed by the Board of Directors pursue their respensibilities
pursuant to the company-wide business strategy under the transferred
authorities in each area. In addition, since June 2006, the Chairman
of the Board has been positioned as a Non-Executive Director, con-
centrating on his role of management oversight.

For further enhancement of corporate governance, J1 has estab-
lished the Advisory Committee with five external advisors, to have pro-
posals conceming such important matters as the medium-to long-term
management and relevant issues from a broader range of perspectives.

The Executive Conumittee, comprising the company’s president
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and other members appointed by the president, discusses important
management issues, particularly management policy and basic plans
regarding overall business operations, in addition to items brought to
the attention of the Board of Directors.

JT has an Audit Board under which corporate auditors working
as an independent organization with a mandate from the shareholders
scrutinize the company’s directors and executive officers in the execu-
tion of their duties in an attempt to maintain and improve the compa-
ny’s sound management and social credibility.

i Internal centrol system and risk management system
So far, JT has been operating a system for assuring the propriety of its
business by working on the enhancement of compliance, internal
auditing, and risk management, ete. In addition, as a company with
an Audit Board, JT is commiitted to ensuring the effectiveness of audi-
tors’ inspections by, for example, appropriately reperting to auditors.
JT will proceed with these efforts while continuously reevaluating the
present system and, in order to ensure the appropriate execution of its
business operations, it will also make a sustained effort to maintain and

improve the company’s system, as follows.




Our Corporate Governance System (as of 23 June, 2006)

Audit report

. ; ten members

sal of members Selection or dismissal of members

s 1 tmembers (including five
cterna members)

T ————
Report/
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Internal andit

1. System to ensure that directors and employees perform their duties in
accordance with the law and the company’s articles of incorporation
With regard to the compliance system, ]JT has made an action guide for
directors, executive officers and employees to help ensure that they act in
accordance with the law, the company’s articles of mcorporation, the social
code, ete. For therough adherence to the action guide, JT has established
the Compliance Committee with external specialists, which is directly
linked to the Board of Directors. JT has also committed to making its com-
pliance more effective through efforts to equip and improve the company-
wide system, represented by the establishment of the Compliance Office,
and through implemertation of education activities, such as training tar-

geted at executives and regular employees.

As for the internal report system, JT has an inquiry counter within the
conpany. The Compliance Office investigates the received reports, discuss-
es them with related departments and wkes preventative measures as a
whole company. Furthermore, when important issues are reported through
the system, they are brought to the Compliance Committee for discussion.

The internal auditing system is controlled by the Operational
Review and Business Assurance Division with 19 members, which
studies and evaluates the execution conditions of the management
and operation system, and of the company’s business from the stand-
points of legality and rationality, with the aim of preserving the com-
pany's assets and improving management efficiency.

2. System to store and manage information on the directors’ exe-
cution of their duties

The minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, meetings

of the Board of Ditectors, and meetings of the Executive Committee are

appropriately stored and managed in line with in-house regulations.

JT appropriately stores and manages information on other
important business execution and decision-making. such as the sign-

ing of contracts, by clarifying which department is responsible for its

e

—1 A
Accounting sudivOperating audit ===
four members
Inweduction of 1 lincluding three
compliance-related matters external members) |

Supervision of
the performance

Accounting audit/Operating andit

storage and management and establishing rules about the decision-
making process, procurement and accounting process.

3. Regulations concerning loss risk management and other systems
With respect to monetary and financial risks, JT has internal regulations
and makes reports 1o the Executive Comumirtee on a quarterly basis.

In erder for the company to grasp and report on other risks
based on individual departmental responsibility and authority, as
determined under the Responsibility and Authority Regulation, each
department takes appropriate management action, compiles a report,
and depending on the degree of importance, brings the matter in
question to the attention of the Executive Committee.

JT has assigned a sulficient stafl to the Operational Review and
Business Assurance Division, which functions as the company’s inter-
nal auditing organization. This division examines and evaluates the
internal management systems of JT and the other JT Group companies
with a view to assessing matters of importance and risk from an objec-
tive standpoint independent of the company’s other business execution
organizations, and reports its findings and proposals to the president.

As a preparatory measure for emergencies, JT has produced a
response manual concerning emergency management and disaster
countermeasutes. In the event of an emergency or a disaster, JT is
prepared to establish an emergency project system with the Corporate
Strategy Division as the executive office, and then deal promptly and
appropriately with the situation under the leadership of senior man-
agement and in close cooperation with related divisions.

4. System to ensure that directors perform their duties efficiently
Board of Directors meetings are held once a month as a rule and at
other times as required to decide on issues as defined by law as well
as other important items and to supervise the execution of business.
The Executive Conumittee, comprising the company’s president and

other members appointed by the president, meets to discuss impor-
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tant management issues, particularly issues of management policy and
basic plans regarding overall business operations, in addition to items
brought to the attention of the Board of Directors.

With the Executive Office System, the executive officers appointed by
the Board of Directors are pursuing their responsibility pursuant to the com-
pany-wide business strategy vnder the transferred authorities in each area.

Moreover, in order to ensure that the company's various operations
contribute to the efficiency and tlexibility of the company’s overall business,
basic items are determined in accordance with organization and office-relat-
ed internal regulations and by clearly specifying the roles of each division.
Also the divisions responsible for the execution of each business operation
ave cleatly identified in the Responsibility and Authority Regulations.

5. System o ensure the appropriateness of business within the JT Group
The JT Group promises to deliver “irreplaceable delight” to all stakeholders,
and it has adopted the JT Group Mission “the JT Branding Declaration” as a
shared aim within the group. In conducting group management, T defines
the functions, regulations, etc., that are common to all companies within
the group based on a group management policy, through which it intends
to realize optiniization throughout the entire ] T Group.

Furthermore, all the companies in the JT Group have cooperated
in developing the compliance system (including the report system),
the internal auditing system, and the financial management system.

6. System for assisting auditors with their duties and reporting to audi-

tors, and other systems to ensure that audits are perfoi'med effectively
JT has installed an Auditor’s Office with a sufficient staff as an organization
to support the auditors in their work. In addition, the company has decid-
ed to reexamine its staff placement sitmation when needed after discussions
with the Audit Board. Concerning the determination of the Auditor's
Office persorel, it has been decided to ensure its independence from the
Board of Directors by entrusting the Audit Board with the task.

Directors and executive officers make reports concerning relevant
facts in cases where they consider such facts have the potential to signifi-
cantly harm the company. Moreover. it has been decided that directors,
executive officers and employees must make reports to the Audit Beard
when they find evidence of malfeasance in financial documents or seri-
ous breaches of the law or the company’s articles of incorporation and
other importtant items concerning the management of other companies.

It has been decided that auditors may attend meetings of the
Board of Directors and other important meetings. Almost all of the
meetings of Executive Comumittee are attended. When the directors,
executive officers or employees are asked by auditors to let them see
important documents, take part in on-the-spot surveys, or make
reports, they respond promptly and appropriately.

In addition, the directors cooperate with audits undertaken by audi-
tors, and the miscellaneous expenses for such audits is provided appro-
priately in order to guarantee the effectiveness of the audit. The
Operational Review and Business Assurance Division and the Compliance

oftice provide cooperation by exchanging information with the auditors.
ifi, Corporate auditors” audit and independent auditors’ audit status

<Corporate Auditors’ Audit and Independent Auditors’ Audit>

JT has an internal auditing system under which corporate auditors
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working as an independent organization with a mandate from the
shareholders monitor the company’s directors and executive officers
in executing their duties, to maintain and improve the company’s
sound management and social credibility.

JT has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (DTT) to audit its financial
statements for FY 3/2006, as required by the “Law Concerning Special
Measures under the Commercial Code with respect 1o Audit, etc. of
Corporations (Kabushiki-Kaisha)”, the Company Law, and the Securities and
Exchange Law, and the audit was carried out by the following aundit partners.

<Certified Public Accountants engaged in independent auditors’ audit>
Katsuji Hayashi (four years), Tatsuro Igarashi (one year), Eiji Yoshida

(two years), Shuichi Momoki (one year)

*Figures in parentheses represent the number of years each audit parmer has served on the audit
engagement 4s a parter,

<Assistants for independent auditors’ audit>

Certified public accountants: 9 people, junior certified public account-

ants: 3 people, others: 4 people
While audits by corperate auditors, internal audits, and independent
auditors are conducted in an independent and appropriate manner,
efforts to strengthen their mutual cooperation are made by sharing

information on the audit results among them.

iv. Remuneration {or diveciors and corporate auditors,
and audit fees, ete.
Rermuneration for directors and corporate auditors, and fees paid to DTT
for audit assurance, etc. for FY3/2006 were as follows,
<Remuneration for Directors and Corporate Auditors >

Remuneration paid by JT to directors and corporate auditors
Directors 10 people ¥259 million
Corporate auditors "5 people ¥ 62 million
&5 of the end of the current fiscal year, there were 9 directors and 4 auditers, as one director and
one auditor resigned duning the year.

<Fees for Audit Assurance, etc.>
The amounts of remuneration paid in respect of auditing certification
are based on the Law for Special Provisions to the Connnercial Code
concerning Audits, etc. of Kabushiki-kaisha and the Securities and
Exchange Law and are as specified in the auditing contracts with DTT
entered into by J T and its consolidated subsidiaries.
(ltems based on the contract entered into by JT)
Fees for audit assurance based on the Article 2-1
of the Certified Public Accountant Law : on-
Fees for other services ¥ 18 million
Total ¥116 million
(Items based on the contract entered into by JT and its consolidated
subsidiaries)
Fees for audit assurance based on the Article 2-1
of the Certified Public Accountant Law
Fees for other services
Total

¥ 98 million

¥173 million
¥ 21 million
¥195 million

Overview of outside corporate auditors’ stakes in JT
JT has three outside corporate auditors. One of them, Mr. Hiroyoshi
Murayama, is a director of Mitsubishi Electric Corporation, which has
minor dealings with JT. However, the outside auditor himself has no
direct interest in these dealings.

There is no corresponding information concerning the other two

outside corporate auditors,




The JT Group is committed 1o making social contribu-
tions on a continual basis through a variety of corpo-
rate activities, with the aim of serving as a good corpo-
rate citizen acclaimed by society. We are continually
engaged in activities with a focus on bringing abowt
“harmony” between our corporate activities and the
environment, and a “feeling of mutual coexistence™ as
a good neighbor with local communities in all coun-

tries and regions where we operate.

Activities Contributing to the
Environment and Society

Approaches to Environmental Protection

With the establishment of the JT Global Environmental Charter in
May 1993, the entire company joined together and engaged in deal-
ing with global environmental problems as one of the most impor-
tant management tasks. Moreover, in April 2003, we expanded the
scope of our environmental management activities to include other
companies in the JT Group* and then created the JT Group
Environmental Charter in March 2004,

JT has also been carrying out concrete activities in pursuit of
the goals outlined in the JT Environmental Action Plan, which con-
tains medium-term targets for promoting environmental preserva-
tion in accordance with the JT Global Environmental Charter.
However, we have reexamined the Environmental Action Plan,
along with the expansion of the Charter’s range to encompass the
entire JT Group. From FY 3/2006, we are conducting activities on a
Group-wide basis aimed at achieving the medium-term targets
under the JT Group Environmental Action Plan (2005~2008).

In autumn 2006, we plan to publish the “JT Social and

Environmental Report 2006" (tentative title) on our activities in

FY3/2006.

* Number of companies in the scope of the JT Group environmental management
efforts: 20 companies in Japan including JT and an overseas company

JT Group environmental charter

(established May 29, 1993, revised March 29, 2004)
Basic principle

We at JT believe that corporate social responsibility means to pro-
vide “lrreplaceable Delight” to customers, shareholders, employees
and society through our operations, and 1o serve as a good corporate
citizen acclaimed by society. We also recognize active involvement
in environmental issues as a primary theme in terms of corporate
social responsibility. Based on this policy, we will act as a good
neighbor with local communities in all countiies and regions where
we operate, and will strive to bring about harmony between our cor-
porate activities and the environment, hoping to leave a healthy and

productive environment to future generations.
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JT Group Environmental Management Promotion System

Operating Review and
Business Assurance Division

Execution and report of environmental audit

Global Environment Committee
| Discussions about measures to put
| environmental management into practice

Global Environment Division
Secrerariat of the Global
Environment Comimittes

JT Group Environmental Policy

1. Management System
We will continually improve our envirenmental management
system to enthance our environmental performance.

2. Compliance
We will comply with all environmental laws in all countries and
regions where we operate.

3. Products and Services
We will continually strive to reduce environmental impact in the
process of product development and services.

4. Process and Supply chain
We will reduce environmental impact and eptimize the use ol natu-
ral resources at all stages of our activities, from procurement of raw
materials and manufacturing, through to sales and distribution.

5. Environmental Education
We will develop a culture of environmental awareness through
education and training; encouraging employees to take personal
responsibility for their actions to create a better environment,
and helping suppliers to understand our Charter.

6. Environmental Communication
We will make an appropriate report of our environmental per-
formance and keep good relationships with our stakeholders

through active communication.

Environmental management system
To make our environmental protection efforts even stronger and
more effective, we have made progress in developing the JT Group
Environmental Management System.

We have intreduced the Environmental Management System at

our places of business in accordance with the significance of the
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Trends in Energy Use
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environmental impact of our business activities, products and serv-
ices, and the size and function ol each business location.

In this context, all of JT’s tobacco factories and the vending
machine [actory had obtained 15014001 certification by FY 3/2004,
while our branch offices and laboratories had developed 1SO14001-
compatible systems by FY 3/2005.

Moreover, the factories of other JT Group companies are grad-
ually obtaining 18014001 certification. and non-production com-
panies within the Group are proceeding with the development of
1SO14001-compatible environmental management systems or sim-
ple environmental management systems that include the develop-
ment and implementation of the Environmental Action Plan.

In April 2004, we put into operation the JT Group's environmental
information system, "ECO-NET" [or the purpose of monitoring the
overall level of our environmental activities and for sharing information,

In addition, ]JT Intermnational S.A. has also obtained 1SQ14001

certification at 15 factories worldwide.

Approaches to preventing global warming

JT has heen striving to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to pre-
vent global warming by saving energy, switching to alternative
fuels, promoting nighttime electricity use and introducing low
emission vehicles. As a result of these efforts, in FY 3/2006. we
were able to reduce our CO2 emissions by about 130,000 tons
(30%) in comparison with FY 3/1696, In addition, the CO2 emis-
sions of the JT Group as a whole declined in FY 3/2006 by about
80,000 tons (16%) in comparison with FY 3/2004. In FY 3/2007 as

well, we will continue making efforts to achieve further reductions.
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Approaches to saving resources and recycling
With the aim of eventually achieving zero emissions, JT is promot-
ing the construction of a “recycling-based” system that recognizes
the value of limited resources, In this context, we are placing an
emphasis on reduction, reuse and recycling in all our activities,
from the supply of raw materials to production and sales activities
extending even to disposal by our customers after use.

JT's recycling ratio has improved remarkably in recent years to
the point where we now recycle around 95% of all materials. The

recycling ratio of the entire JT Group is also now around 95%.

Approaches to reducing environmental impacts

JT is making consistent efforts to reduce or prevent emissions of all
sorts of pollutants to minimize the impact of our business activities
on our employees and associates, people who live in the vicinity of
our business locations, and the global environment.

Even before 1995, we were taking steps to prevent pollution,
primarily air and water pollution, associated with our operations.
More recently, however, we have come to recognize new kinds of
environmental problems. As such, we have begun scrapping old
incinerators and replacing them with more advanced incinerators to
curb dioxin emissions. We have also abolished air-conditioning

refrigerators that use specified CFCs, and we are making progress in

recovering and detoxifying specified CFCs used in beverage vend-
ing machines. On the transportation front, we have been introduc-
ing vehicles powered by natural gas and other low emission fuels.
Moreover, the number of PRTR Law-designated chemicals |T
used and reported was 6 tn FY 3/2006, but we will continue to
strengthen our management practices according to various guide-

lines (Guidelines for Complying with the PRTR Law, Guidelines for
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Chemical Substance Management, and Management Regulations for
PCB Waste) to prevent chemical pollution,

An independent survey is executed for soil pollution, and appro-
priate correspondence is aimed at based on the Soil Contamination

Countermeasures Law.

Afforestation and forest conservation projects

Based on the characteristics of its business, JT is engaging in
afforestation and forest conservation activities from the standpoint
of showing an appreciation of the natural world that supports its
business, and in consideration of the importance of tackling global
environmental problems.

In January 20053, as the first of these initiatives, JT launched a
tree-planting project in Tanabe, Wakayama Prefecture entitled “JT
Forest Nakahechi”. Under this 10-year project, we will plant approx-
imately 180.000 trees on 50 hectares (approximately 124 acres) of
land in the vicinity of Kumano Kodo, the traditional pilgrimage
route of the Kii mountain range and a World Heritage Site, and will
conduct forest conservation activities until January 2013.

A tree-planting event was held in March 2005 to kick-off the
)T Forest Nakahechi” program. More than 250 people participated,
including around 100 JT employees and their families from across

Japan, the Governor of Wakayama Prefecture. the Mayor of

Nakahechi Town (currently the Mayor of Tanabe City), local resi-
dents and staff from Nakahechi Town Office and from Nakahechi
Town Forestry Cooperative. Around 1,500 trees were planted as
part of the event, centered on broadleaf species such as the Japanese
wild cherry, Japanese maple, and konara oak. Subsequently, we
have been conducting periodic activities such as tree-planting in

spring and cutting back the undergrowth in autumn. Through such
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a]T Forest Nakahechi

experiences we would like to foster the opportunity to think about
the value of maintaining the environment through our own actions
based on an appreciation of the importance of nature.

We are conducting these activities with an emphasis on pro-
moting local exchanges such as receiving advice from the Nakahechi
Town Forestry Cooperative and cooperation from local residents, Of
the afforestation projects being conducted under the “Kigyo no Mort
(Forest of Companies)” system advocated by Wakayama Prefecture
(currently 20 lecations, total area 112.2 hectares), “JT Forest
Nakahechi” is the largest. Moreover, it is highly evaluated as a model
activity that positively utilizes a “Green Employment Program” and
that links to providing exchanges with local residents.

Similarly, in the Kanto Region, we have launched the “JT
Forest Kosuge” project in Kosuge Village, Kitatsuru District,
Yamanashi Prefecture, close to the headwaters of the Tama River,
one of Tokyo’s principal water sources. In March 2006, we began a
five-year program of afforestation and forest conservation activities
in a plot of land measuring approximately 13 hectares in area, This
activity is part of a trial organized by Yamanashi Prefecture and
Kosuge Village with the aim of creating extensive mixed woodland
of needleleafl and broadleal trees such as zelkova, and Japanese
maple. In May. a tree-planting event was carried out at *JT Forest
Kosuge” with the participation of around 200 people.

In the future, JT will continue to engage in afforestation and for-
est conservation activities from a medium- and long-term viewpoint
as a part of our efforts to preserve the natural environment,

URL: hup/fwww.jti.co jp/] TI_E/environ/Welcome html
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Improving Smoking Manners and
the Smoking Environment
(This part applies only to Japan)

At]T, we use the term “SMOKER'S STYLE” to express our wish that our
valued customers will enjoy smoking to the fullest while exercising
maturity in their smoking habits and showing consideration to those
who do not smoke, so that both smokers and nonsmokers can coexist in
harmony. As part of this concept we are making efforts in many areas to

fulfill our corperate responsibility to society as a tobacco company.

Some examples of our efforts

Setting up smoking areas

We work closely with local governments and public facilities such as train
stations and afrports m setting up smoking areas in various locations so

that all people, both smokers and nonsmokers, can coexist in harmony.

Consultation for creating separate smoking areas

We provide advice on creating separate smoking and nonsmoking areas
‘within public facilities, commercial facilities, and business offices. Our
group of experts visits sites and uses the latest technologies in taking
measurements and creating computer simulations to determine the best

way of matching the style of each facility with the needs of its users.

S!’n(‘killg nanner ‘JCIVCX'HN'("”ICH &3

JT has been using advertisements to promote good smoking man-
ners since 1974. Beginning in March 2003, we renewed the mes-
sages conveyed in our advertisements by introducing actual every-
day situations for smokers, with the objective of prompting them to

take notice, think, and exercise appropriate behavior when smeking.




A “Pick up, and you will love your city” Post-festival community clean-up campaigns

Community cleanup activities
Since April 2004, in order to help increase awareness with regard to appro-
priate smoking mannets, JT has been conducting “Pick up, and you will
love your city” activities as a community-based cleanup effort at festivals
and other events up and down the country. Carried out in cooperation with
local authorities, schools, volunteers, and the executive committees and
participating organizations of the events concemed, these activities have so
far attracted the participation of some 176 202 people as of May 13, 2006.
To learn more about JT's efforts to improve smoking manners,
please refer to our website.

URL: hup/Awww.jti.co jp/sstyle

The JT Group’s Social Contribution Activities

The JT Group strives to be a “good corporate citizen”, coexisting
with and continuously centributing to society through various cor-
porate activities.

The JT Group works specifically for the regeneration and revi-
talization of local communities as a “good neighbor” to the commu-
nities it serves, and regards community-based social contribution
activities, preservation of the natural environment, and aid for dis-
aster-stricken areas as its top priorities. Our social contribution
activities focus mainly on supporting social welfare and cultural and
artistic activities.

The JT Group, based on the above concepts, globally imple-

ments a wide variety of social contribution activities to assist the

development of local communities while earning the goodwill of

these societies,

A Smoking Lounge at Narita Airpor

1. Domestic Efforts
Community cleanup activitics
With the aim of being a good neighbor and a good corporate citi-
zen, JT is working on a variety of activities that contribute to local
society in areas where our places of business are located.
¢ Participation and cooperation in local activities
The ]JT Group’s business establishments natienwide participate
actively as members of their local neighborhood associations in fes-
tivals and street clean-up activities. In addition, we take part in
other activities that make a contribution to society at the local level,
such as cooperative activities with local governments and NPOs,
and hosting or cooperating with local sports events,
« Combining the Environment and Welfare:

“Eco & Hello Campaign”
Japan Beverage Inc. rolls out the “Eco & Hello Campaign” mainly in
elementary, junior high and high schools in local area. Under this
campaign. 140 bags of used aluminum cans (150 cans per bag) can
be exchanged for a wheelchair for donation to welfare institutions.
* Opening company facilities to the public
The JT Group’s business establishments nationwide open up com-
pany-facilities for use by local residents. For example, we provide
parking spaces when needed for neighborhood facilities or neigh-
borhood assoctation events, lend out grounds for use by neighbor-
hood children’s sports associations, and open our grounds to focal

residents for springtime cherry blossom viewing,

Activides for vouth development

JT considers nurturing young people to be important for the con-
struction of a sustainable society in the Ruture, and for this reason
we carry out a variety of activities in support of youth development.
including financial aid to NPOs, and hosting related events.
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* NPO support projects for youth development

We believe human resource development to be an essential task in
order to revitalize and activate local comnunities and construct a bet-
ter soctety. Accordingly, we provide support in each tocal community
to youth cultivation projects led by NPOs and other organizations.

+ JT Honobono (Heartwarming) Concerts

We host JT Honobono Concerts as an independent project aimed at
introducing songs for use in school music classes and children’s
songs that incorporate beautiful archetypal images of [apan in order
that these are handed down to future generations.

* JT Shogi Japan series tournament for kids

We host the JT Shogi Japan Series Tournament for Kids simultane-
ously with the professional shogi official towrnament, the JT Shogi
Japan Series. Through this tournament, we hope to enceurage chil-
dren to grow up with good manners and consideration for others,

while experiencing the joy and sorrow of playing the game of Shogi.

Activities lor international contribution

* Scholarships [or students from Asia

Since FY1998, JT has been providing scholarships for privately
financed students who have come from Asia to study in Japan. Qur
purpose is to promote international exchange and nurture human
resources. Scholarships are provided to privately-funded foreign
students who have come to Japan from Asia to help support them
while studying at university and or in conducting research. As part
of the project, JT performs exchange events three times each year as
an opportunity for students on scholarships to gain understanding
and experience of Japanese culture and history, as well as to visit JT
facilities and deepen personal exchanges with JT employees of the

same generation.

Sports promotion activities

* Volleyball classes

The JT Thunders, the company’s men’s volleyball team, and the JT
Marvelous, the women’s team, both of which play in the V League,
teach volleyball to elementary and junior high school children, as
well as to moms’ teams. These volleyball classes are held by local
governments and take place mostly in Hiroshima Prefecture, which

is the Thunders’ home turf, and in the Kinki region beginning with
Hyogo and Osaka, where the Marvelous are based.

Supporting JT staff members” vohunteer activities

We have introduced various systems to encourage and support our
employees in their participation in volunteer activities. '

¢ Volunteer leave system

Under this system, JT employees are permitted to take a leave of
absence of up to 5 days per year in order to participate in certain
volunteer activities such as providing support for victims of natural
disasters or for disabled people.

* Leave of absence system for bone marrow donors

This system allows JT employees to take the required leave of absence
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for registering or undergoing examination at a bone marrow bank, or
to stay in hospital for the purpose of bone marrow transplantation.

* Leave of absence for serving as a Japan overseas cooperation volunteer
We have a system of leave of absence in place to allow employees to
serve as Japan Overseas Cooperation Volunteers (dispatch period
approx. 2 years and 3 months).

* Volunteer signup system “Smiling”

This system offers JT employees and family members who wish to
participate in volunteer activities the opportunity to sign up for
activities in their areas of interest, and then provides them with
information on those specific areas as needed.

* Providing volunteer-related information in the in-house magazine
We provide a wide range of volunteer information in the “Citizenship
News” section of our in-house magazine Yours, to encourage employ-
ees and family members to participate in volunteer activities.

* JT citizenship events

We hold independently planned events to which we mvite people
in various fields who have contributed to society. The purpose of
these events is to enhance levels of concern and understanding
among citizens and T employees in local regions, and through this

1o encourage people to start volunteer activities.

Art and cultare

The JT Group is mvolved in activities to contribute to the development
and improvement of classical music and other forms of art and culture.
¢ Support for nurturing musicians

We provide opportunities to perform to a broad spectrum of musi-
cians who support the Japanese classical music world, centered on our
Tokyo performance venue ]JT Art Hall Affinis. The concerts staged
here include the JT Art Hall Chamber Music Series, performed by
emerging Japanese musicians, and the Ensemble Series Groomed by
JT, performed by youngsters for whom future success is anticipated.
Furthermore, in order to provide music students with a venue to pres-
ent their work, and to allow people who live and work in the vicinity
of the JT Building to enjoy classical music casually, we are hosting an
independént project entitled Afternoon Concert with the Promising
Music Majors, consisting of free concerts held at lunch times.

¢ The affinis arts foundation

The Affinis Arts Foundation was founded in 1988 [or the main purpose
of supporting professional orchestras in Japan. lts activities include pro-
viding musicians with aid in staging musical performances and study-
ing overseas, and holding chamber music concerts. The Foundation
also holds the annual Affinis Summer Music Festival, in which semi-
nars and musical events closely related to the local area are held.

* Tobacco & Salt museum

The Tobacco & Salt Museum was opened in 1978 to collect materials
and conduct studies and research about tobacco, an item of taste
which has long been cherished by people around the world, and salt,
the food of life. Housing some 30,000 items, including smoking uten-
sils and posters, the museum presents the history and culture of tobac-

co and salt through exhibits and other events about tobacco and salt.




*JT Biohistory Research Hall

The JT Biohistory Research Hall was opened m 1983 for the purpose
of providing a place for all people to enjoy themselves by studying the
historical existence of life from a biohistorical perspective, as if they
were listening to music or looking at a picture. The facility provides
visitors with the opportunity and pleasure of thinking about the very
importtant topic of life through laberatory tours, sunimer schools, vari-
ous exhibits, and also through its quarterly journal Biokistory.

¢ JT delight forum

“Delight Forum —There are as many kinds of irreplaceable delight
as there are values.—" is a cultural event jointly hosted by a spon-
soring newspaper company and JT. The hosting newspaper wishes
to nurture the development of high quality culture at the regional
level, while JT's involvement stems from our desire to make a con-
tribution to local culture and to provide people with opportunities
for happiness. Each year, the Delight Forum includes lecture meet-
ings at sites around Japan delivered by famous personalities such as

writers and intellectual professionals in a host of fields.

2. Overseas Elforts
In 20053, JTI, an overseas subsidiary of the JT Group, established
new policy and guidelines with the objective of improving the focus
and quality of its Corporate Philanthropy programs around the
world. As part of this policy, two global causes were selected: Care
for the Elderly and Adult Literacy.

JTI management has begun the process of reviewing market
programs and spending to ensure that the company’s goals are
achieved over time, and that markets incorperate one or both of the

global causes as part of their local Corporate Philanthropy programs.

Acuivities in various countries

In Spain, JTI supports charitable organizations which offer Spanish
language programs to adult immigrants, as well as courses in basic
administrative and regulatory processes. In France, funding was pro-
vided to the Association Emmatis Adult [literacy Centre to organize
different workshops for adults on writing, theatre, and cooking. JTI
France has been supparting this association {or the past three years,

In Germany, vehicles and drivers are made available to support
the elderly. In rural areas where public transport is scarce, JT1 pro-
vides volunteers to accompany the elderly on their visits to doctors.
In France, a Christmas Eve party was organized with the Association
Les Petits Fréres des Pauvres {or the elderly of modest means.

JTI supports a variety of other charitable programs across its
markets. In lLatvia, JTI collaborated with Apeirons, an organization
supporting people with disabilities, to run a variety of programs to
integrate disabled persons into society. In Lithuania, JTT collaborat-
ed with the G. Steponavicius Foundation to assist self-realization of

the blind through artistic activities

Art and culture
The JT Group also provides support for cultural and artistic spon-
sorships in countries overseas.

In 2005, JTT donated funds toward the construction of a new
symphonic concert hall for the Mariinsky Theater in Saint
Petershurg, which is scheduled for completion in 2008,

In Greece, JT! provided funding to the Museum of Cycladic Art
to enable the Museum to display the results of the excavation of the
Eleftherna site, a project which has been underway for more than
20 years. JTT was recognized for its contribution and was given an
award of excellence by the Ministry of Culture.

The JT Group is proud of its cultural heritage, and supports efforts to
promote Japanese culture intemationally within the communities we serve.

In cooperation with the Greek-Japan Chamber of Commerce, JT1
sponsored an exhibition of Japanese contemporary art at the Athenias
Museum, feataring the works of 11 Japanese painters which were loaned
by the Museumn of Contemporary Art in Tokyo for this exhibit. In France,
JTT collaborated with the Sevres National Ceramic Museum for an exhibi-

tion of contemporary Japanese ceramics.

3. Aid lor Disaster-suricken Aveas

Domestic and Overseas

The JT Group provides aid for victims in disaster-stricken areas thro
when natural catastrophes occur in Japan and around the world.

As an important element of JTUs overseas Corporate
Philanthropy effort, the J11 Foundation was established in 2001
with the objective of providing meaningful and immediate relief to
the victims of natural and man made disasters. The JT1 Foundation
is registered in Switzerland and operates on a global basis.

In 2005, the JT Group and the JTl Foundation responded
quickly to a series of natural catastrophes which occurred around
the world.

Funding was provided to assist victims of Hurricane Katrina,
which the Southern U.S. on August 29, 2005. In addition. match-
ing gift programs and charity drives were implemented to augment
these donations.

Early in September 2005, Timis County in Romania was devas-
tated by severe flooding. The JT1 Foundation provided funds to the
Freedom House Foundation to help victims of the floods rebuild
theirhouses.

When a major earthquake occurred in Pakistan on October 8,
2005, the JT Group offered support including financial aid. The JT1
Foundation separately provided immediate funding within hours of
the earthquake to the Turkish Search Rescue and Ecology Group
(GEA) for tents, water filtration equipment, weatherproof clothing
and vehicles. GEA was the first international rescue team to reach
the devastated area less than 24 hours after the earthquake.

During the same week but on the other side of the world,
Hurricane Stan battered the coasts of Mexico (Oct.4, 2005). The JTI
Foundation contacted the Mexican Red Cross and provided tunding

for the provision of food, shelter and medical treatment.
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We have provided this briel outline of the main sys-
tem and business environment surrounding tobacco

industry and JT.

A Cigaretre vending machines with adult identification functions
(See P47 for more details)

International Business Environment Pertaining
to the Tobacco Business

WHO: Framework convention on tobacco control

During the May 1999 World Health Assembly of the WHO, a res-
olution was adopted to commence work that would lead toward
adoption of the Framework Convention on Tobacco Control
(FCTQ). Following six rounds of intergovernmental negotiation,
the FCTC was adopted in May 2003 and entered into force on
February 27, 2003, the 90th day after its ratification by 40 of its
signatories. Moreover, as a result of the convention’s entry into
force, in February 2006, the first conference of the parties to the
FCTC was held with the participation of 110 signatory nations
including Japan, a further 49 non-signatory nations, and UN agen-
cies, etc. At this conference, discussions were held concerning
such items as the procedural rules for subsequent conferences of

the signatory nations, reports to be presented at the next confer-
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ence, and the production of draft guidelines and draft protocols,
ete. As of June 13, 2006, a total of 131 countries including EC had
signed the FCTC. Japan signed the FCTC on March 9, 2004 and
accepted it on June 8, 2004. The FCTC contains a number of pro-
visions, some of which are legally binding on the signatory nations
while others allow for discretion by each signatory natien in
respect of interpretation and implementation, Key provisions of
the FCTC include:

— Establishing price and tax measures and restrictions of
duty-free sales, as appropriate, without prejudice to the
nations’ sovereign taxation policies.

— Packaging and labeling measures:

*» Adoption of measures to ensure that tobacco product packag-
ing and labeling do not promote tobacco products by any
means that could create an erroneous impression that a par-
ticular tobacco product is less harmful than another.

*» Health warnings on tobacco packaging that cover not less




than 30% of the principal display area.

— A comprehensive ban on tobacco advertising, promotion
and sponsorship or suitable restrictions if a country cannot
implement a comprehensive ban because of its constitution
or constitutional principles.

— Adoption/Implementation of effective measures to ban
sales of tobacco products to minors,

— Support for economically viable alternative activities for

tobacco workers, growers and sellers as appropriate.

JT has long been committed to some of the FCTC's provisions,
including prevention of underage smoking and curbing illicit
trade. JT believes, however, that it is better for tobacco to be regu-
lated by individual countries who can best determine the most
appropriate legislative and regulatory framework in the light of
their own actual conditions and taking into account their own
unique legal systems, cultures and social circumstance. ]T intends
to continue working with the governments of signatory nations on
appropriate and reasonable measures through which the FCTCs

provisions can be implemented.

International tobacco product marketing standards

In September 2001, ]JT and several other tobacco companies
reached an agreement on the International Tobacco Product
Marketing Standards. These standards set a baseline f{or responsi-
ble tobacce product marketing worldwide. The cornerstones of
the standards are ensuring that brand marketing has no particular
appeal to youth; restricting youth exposure to tobacco marketing;
and ensuring that adult smokers are appropriately informed about
the risks of smoking. Accordingly, marketing activities in Japan

are also subject to the standards.

Other key features of the standards include:

LU

— Uniform definitions of “advertisement,” “promotional
event,” and “sponsorship.”
— Tough gunidelines applicable 1o advertising tobacco products:
+ Print advertising is limited to publications with at least 75
percent adult readership.
« Billboard advertising must not exceed 35 square meters in size.
* Advertising on television, radio and the Internet are prohibit-
ed unless a 100% adult audience is verified.
* Advertisements cannot run in cinemas unless there is a reason-
able basis to believe that at least 75% of the audience is adult.
« Advertisements cannot feature celebrities, show individuals
that appear younger than 25, or suggest that smoking

enhances athletic, professional, personal or sexual success,

S EEEEEEEEEEEEEE——————

— Display of health warnings on advertisements, etc:

* Except for in a very small number of cases such as point-of-
sale materials that are smaller than 250 sq. ¢m, health warn-
ings must appear on virtually all advertising, promotional
and merchandising materials.

— Restriction on sponsorship:

* For events or activities that bear a tobacco product brand
name, all participants whe compete or otherwise actively par-
ticipate must be adults.

* From December 1, 2006, attendance at an event or activity
spotisored for the purpose of tobacco product brand promotion
must be comprised of at least 75% adults, and these events can
only generate incidental coverage in electronic media,

— All promotional activity limited to verified adult smokers.

Prevention ol youth smoking
The problem of youth smoking has to be addressed by all mem-
bers of society. JT has heen taking various steps toward dealing
with this problem over and above proper performance of its glob-
al business operations in the countries in which it operates, based
on its own standards, relevant local laws and regulations, and the
International Marketing Standards (IMS).

To learn more about JT's efforts 1o prevent smoking by
youths, please refer to our website.
httpy//www.jti.co jp/sstyle/think/underage/index. htinl

(for efforts in Japan)
hup/Awww jti.convenglish/corp_responsibility/youth_

smoking_prevent.aspx (for efforts overseas)

Domestic Business Environment Pertaining
to the Tobacco Business

The Japan Tobacco, Inc. law

JT was established under the Japan Tobacco, Inc. Law (JT Law) for

the purpose of developing businesses related to the manufacture,
sale, and import of tobacco products. The JT Law provides that
the Japanese government must continue to hold at least one-half
of all of the shares that the government acquired by voluntary
conveyance upon ) T’s establishment (the number of such shares
following the share split carried out on April 1, 2006 is 5 million
shares), and that even if |T issues new shares in the {uture, the
government must continue to hold more than one-third of all of
the issued shares. The JT Law also states that the flotation of sub-
scribers for new shares, for options to subscribe for new shares or,

in case of share-for-share exchange, issuance of new shares or
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issuance of options for new shares or issuance of bonds with
options or warrants to subscribe for new shares requires the
approval of the Minister of Finance. The JT Law grants JT the free-
dom to enter other non-tobacco-related business areas in line with
its overall objectives as a corporation, dependent upon ministerial
permission, in addition to the manufacture, distribution, and
import of tohacco products and tobacco-related businesses. T
must also obtain authorization from the Minister of Finance for
certain matters, including the appointment or dismissal of direc-
tors, executive officers, and auditors, amendments to JT’s Articles
of Incorporation, appropriations of surplus {except disposal of
losses), and any merger, corporate split, or disselution of JT.
Within three months after the close of each business year, JT must
issue its balance sheets, statements of income or loss, and business

report to the Minister of Finance.

Tobacco business law

The Tobacco Business Law was enacted in August 1984 for the
purpose of achieving sound growth for Japan’s tobacco industry,
securing stable government revenues, and contributing to the
healthy expansion of the Japanese economy. The Tobacco
Business Law governs the cultivation and purchase of leaf tobacco
and the manufacture and distribution of tobacco products. JT is
obliged to negotiate contracts with domestic leaf tobacco growers
to determine the total area used for tobacco cultivation and tobac-
co leaf prices based on type and quality. JT is required to purchase
the entire usable domestic tobacco crop. Contracts stipulate the
area to be cultivated and the prices of leaf tobacco for the subse-
quent year, and in this regard JT respects the opinion of the Leaf
Tobacco Deliberative Council.* As the sole manufacturer of tobac-
co products in Japan as established by law, JT must obtain the
approval of the Minister of Finance on the maximum price of each
class of tobacco released from storage to the market. Tobacco
product importers and wholesalers must register with the Minister
of Finance. and retailers of tobacco products are required to
obtain approval from the Minister of Finance. In addition, list
prices for ] T's tobacco products and imported tobacco products
must be approved by the Minister of Finance, although in general,
manufacturers’ list prices are approved unless the Minister of
Finance deems them unfair to consumers. Tobacco retailers are
only permitted to sell tobacco products at list prices that have
been approved by the Minister of Finance.

* The Leaf Tobacco Deliberative Council is a council for conferring on important mat-
ters concerning the cultivation and purchase of domestically grown leaf whacco in
response to inquiries by JT representatives. The council consists of no more than 11
members, appointed by JT with the approval of the Minister of Finance from among
representatives of domestic leaf tobacco growers and academic appointees.
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Revision of cautionary statements

In Japan, based on Article 39 of the Tobacco Business Law, the
packaging of tobacco products must, as stipulated in Article 36 of
the Tobacco Business Law Enforcement Regulations, include
“statements to promote caution regarding the connection between
the consumption of tobacco products and health (cautionary state-
ments).” In November 2003, the Tobacco Business Law
Enforcement Regulations were revised and the cautionary state-
ments were updated. The revised regulations specified eight types
of warning labels: four regarding direct effects of smoking (lung
cancer, heart attack, stroke, and emphysema), one about smoking
by pregnant women, one about passive smoking, one about smok-
ing dependence, and one about underage smoking. Each tobacco
product package must contain, on its main surfaces, at least one of
the first four types (direct) and at least one of the other four types.
The regulations specify that the various types must be visible
equally throughout the year on every category of product and
packaging. and that these warnings must take up at least 30% of
the main surface of the package. JT had completed the package
redesign for all its tobacco products by June 30, 2005, the date
when the provisional measures ended as stipulated in the supple-
ment to the regulations. With effect from July 1, 2005, all tobacco
products shipped by JT bear the statements in accordance with
these regulations. In addition, the same revised regulations specify
that il the words “mild,” “light,” or similar words are used, they
must be accompanied by specific notation to consumers so as to
avoid misleading consumers about the relationship between the
consumption of tobacco and health. The specific notation has
been introduced for all JT tobacco product shipments with effect
from July 1, 2005, as required by the revised regulations. The JT
Group intends to continue using the words “mild,” “light,” and
similar words in the domestic market, in accordance with the

specified conditions.

Revision of the guideline on tobacco advertising

In Japan, a guideline has been published concerning advertising of
tobacco products, based on Article 40 of the Tobacco Business
Law. The TIOJ* has drawn up self-regulatory standards in line
with this guideline and all member companies including JT are
abiding by these standards. In March 2004, the Minister of
Finance revised the Guideline Concerning Advertising of Tobacco
Products. With the revision, the guideline stipulates that cutdeor
advertising of tobacco producis (posters, billboards, etc.) must not
be displayed except where tobacco products are seld, or in desig-
nated smoking areas. It also stipulates that consideration must be

given to the methods of advertising in daily newspapers (with the



exception of tableids) and the phrasing and content of cautionary
statements allowed for all tobacco advertising is also specified. In
consideration of these facts, in March of the same year the TIO]
revised its voluntary codes and its member companies including
JT are continuing to implement new measures as required, such as
banning outdoor billboard advertising or brand-specific advertis-
ing in public transportation vehicles, limiting the volume of adver-
tising in newspapers, and specifying which sections of newspapers
may contain such ads.

* Tobacco Institute of Japan: The TIOQJ is a public service corporation established for
the purpose of contributing to the promation of a fair and objective social under-
standing of tobacco through the collection and propagation of information regarding
tobacco, enhancing the sound development of the tobacco industry in Japan, and
thereby contributing to the sound progress of the national economy by responding
appropriately to the social environment surrounding tobacco and carrying out vari-
ous activities.

The TIOJ was established as a voluntary organization in 1987 as an offshoot of the
Association of Tobacco Manufacturers, which was established in 1985, and was
reorganized as an incorporated body in 1990.

Cigarette vending machines

with adult identification functions

In November 2001, the Tobacco Institute of Japan (TIO]), the
Japan Tobacconist Federation, and the Japan Vending Machine
Manufacturers Association reached an agreement to cooperate in
the development and implementation of cigarette vending
machines with adult identification functions and have been work-
ing together toward equipping all vending machines throughout
Japan with such functions by 2008. Vending machines with these
functions are designed to prevent minors from purchasing ciga-
rettes from vending machines and will dispense cigarettes only
after scanning and verifying special 1C cards that indicate the
purchaser’s age. A one-year trial use of these new machines was
conducted from April 2002 to March 2003 in Yokaichiba, Chiba
Prefecture, with the full support of local authorities. Basic techni-
cal and operational knowledge was attained and market receptivi-
ty was ascertained. We are now at the stage of making necessary
preparations building on the results of these tests and those of a
further trial in Tanegashima, Kagoshima Prefecture toward the
construction of a system for nationwide intreduction of these
machines in 2008. JT fully respects the intentions of these coop-
erative efforts and intends to actively participate in the smooth
development and implementation of cigarette vending machines

with adult identification functions.

R

Tobacco Related Litigation

Lawsuits related to smoking and health in which JT and its sub-
sidiaries are involved outside Japan include damages claims filed
by individuals, medical expense recovery lawsuits filed by govern-
ments and insurers, and class actions for damages and injunctive
relief. As of the end of May 2006, a total of 13 such lawsuits were
pending in which JT or its subsidiaries are named as a defendant
or for which R] Reynolds Tobacco Company has sought indemni-
fication following JT’s acquisition of RJR Nabisco Inc.’s overseas
(non-US) tobacco operations.

At present, ] T and its subsidiaries have never lost a smoking and
health case or paid any money in order to settle a case out of court.

In addition to smoking and health cases, various kinds of
smuggling and counterfeiting of tobacco products have created
major problems for the entire tobacco industry. jT and its sub-
sidiaries are involved in lawsuits brought by the European
Community and legal claims asserted by several Canadian govern-
ments seeking compensation for damages allegedly resulting from
alleged cigarette smuggling. Also, a Canadian subsidiary of JT
received a tax assessment from the Quebec Ministry of Revenue
requiring immediate payment of the alleged loss of tobacco taxes.
That subsidiary has challenged the tax assessment in court.

In addition, there are lawsuits in which Russian substdiaries of

JT are contesting various tax assessments issued by tax authorities,

JT and its subsidiaries are confident of the correctness of their

defenses and claims and believe that they are well supported.

~
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Consolidated Five-Year Financial Summary

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

20020 2003% 2004 2005 2006 2006
For the year:

Net sales ¥4544175 ¥4,492264 ¥4625151 ¥4664514 ¥ 4,637.657 $ 39,480
CEBITDA toed ‘ o C 334119 337206 373,435 400115 433391 3689
Depreciation and amortization ™2 170,314 148,333 139,401 126,744 126,445 1076

Operating income - 163,805 188963 234,034 273371 306946 2613
B . o5 e s aism T ine

For the yvear:
Net cash provided
by operating activities ¥ 80727 ¥ 258057 ¥ 334501 ¥ 250840 ¥ 150,343 $ 1.280
Net cash provided by (used in) ‘ - R ) o
investing activities (40,472) (74877} (228,620 176914 (26.358) (224
Net cash used T
in financing activities (124.838)  (111968)  (109335)  (202,196) (48,135) (410)
Free cash flow ¢ ' 31,413 170372 269,174 269,459 145,500 1.239
At year-end:
Net property,
plant and equipment ¥ 743712 ¥ 733314 ¥ 708221 ¥ 639655 ¥ 596,544 $ 5078
" Total assets S 3063,077 2957665 3029084 2982056 3037379 25857

Tnterest bearing debt i 511,738 424,499 381,203 230716 216,608 1844

Liabiliti 1400384 1283930 1467322 1430256  1,217.306 10,363
' Total shareholders equity S 1613105 162261 7037 1468204  1.762.512 15004
Profitahility:

Return on equity 2.4% 4.7% (0.5%) 4.2% 12.4% —
EBITDA margn  74% - 15%  B81% 86%  93% —

" Operating income margn 3.6% 42% 5.1% 5.9% 6% -
" Total assets tumover s 149 155 155 154 —
Stability:

Equity ratio 52.7% 54.9% 49.8% 50.2% 58.0% —

Debt/Equity ratio (times) om0 02 0.25 015 012 —

Currentratio N O 196.3% 2264%  1953%  202.7%  256.7% —
e Rt e s ot A AU A T

Long-term capital ratio 74.9% 69.7% 69.9% 67.6% 60.7% —

Notes: 1. Figures stated it 1.5, dollars in this repart are translated solely for convenience at the rate of ¥117.47 per $1, the rate of exchange as of March 31, 2006.
(1) Effective from April 2000, the consolidated financial staternents have besn prepared in accordance with new accounting standards for linancial nstraments, loreign currency transactions and
employees’ retirement benelits,
{2) Effective from January 1, 2002, goodwill and other mtangible assets of a foreign consolidated subsidiary have been accounted for in accordance with new accounting standards. Also, effective
April 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for the translation into Japanese yen of the revenue and expense accounts of foreign consohdated subsidiaries.
(3) As discussed in Note 3 o) to the consolidated financial staternents, effective from April 2003, the Company changed its method of accounting {or the Obligation under the Public Official Mutual
Assistance Association Law,
(1) As discussed in Note 3 o) to the consolidated financial statements, effective from April 1, 2008, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with new accounting stan-
dards for impairment of fixed assets.
2. EBITDA = operating income + depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amonization = depreciation of tangible fixed assets + amortization of intangible fixed assets + amortization of long-term prepaid expenses + amortization of goodwill
3. FCF = (cash flow from operating activities + cash flow from investing activities) excluding the following tems:
From "cash flow from operating activities™ Dividends received / interest received and its tax effect / imterest paid and its tax effect
From "cash flow from investing activities”: Cash outflow from purchase of marketable securities / proceeds from sales of marketable securities / cash outflow from purchases of investment securities /
proceeds [rom sales of investment securities / others (hut not business-related investrnent securities, which are included (0 the investment securities item)
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Segment Information

Mitlions of yen GAlSmSS]SIaC:- E
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2006
Net sales ¥4544175 Y4,492264 ¥4,625151 ¥4.664514 ¥ 4,637.657 $ 39,480
Tobacco 4178034 4134466 4236920 T
© " Domestic “ i ' 3401488 3405281 28,989
* International 792,705 881,188 7502
" Phamaceutical 61868 53927 51242 S7.676 49257 419
Foods 221,197 232,404 250,138 265,380 278378 2370
* Others 83076 71467 86,851 57265 23533 200
EBITDA ¥ 334119 ¥ 337206 ¥ 373435 ¥ 400,115 ¥ 433391 $ 3,689
 Tobacco 320969 321,419 343,163 ‘ )
Domestic o - 296,031 305753 2603
 International 65,462 94003 801
Pharmaceutical (8,519) (5,110) (4,426} 5,474 (18037 (15)
Foods 2,259 546 3300 7931 11,869 o1
Others 19617 19,674 30,674 126810 22,140 188
Elimination/Corporate on 767 74 (1,593) 1339 TN
Operating income (loss) ¥ 163805 ¥ 188963 ¥ 234034 ¥ 273371 ¥ 306946 $ 2,613
" Tobacco 102114 213342 238,400
" Domestic o - 215,833 220095 1,874
International 44,458 71031 T 605
“Pharmaceutical (18,985) (13,855) (12840) 1855 (5057 (43)
Foods (11,860) (13,168) (4,851) 1,948 6325 54
Others 1,797 o3 11976 10,427 T8e73 74
" Elimination/Corporate i 730 1712 1340 (1,150) 5879 49

Four business segments, namely Tobacco, Pharmaceutical, Foods and
Others, had been used for the conselidated financial statements up to
the year ended March 31, 2005. From the year ended March 31,
2006, the tobacco segment is divided into Domestic tobacco and
International tobacco in order for our business results te be more
properly shown, considering the importance of the Group’s tobacco
business in which JT International S.A.. a foreign consolidated sub-

sidiary, conducts the main operational role. As a result, five business
segments, namely Domestic tobacco, International tobacco,
Pharmaceutical, Foods and Qthers, are used for the consolidated
financial statements, As for the results of the year ended March 31,
2005, retroactive application was made in accordance with the new
business segments as well.
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Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of
operations should be read together with our consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in Japan and other information included in this annual
report. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking state-

Overview

ments that invelve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual
results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including, but
not limited to, those described elsewhere in this annual report.

We operate primarily in the domestic and international tobacce
businesses, the pharmaceutical business and the foods business, In
our domestic and international tobacco businesses, we develop,
manufacture, distribute, and sell tobacco products, primarily ciga-
rettes. In our pharmaceutical business, we develop, manufacture and
sell pharmaceutical products. In our foods business, we develop,
manufacture and sell processed foods and develop and sell bever-
ages. Our other business segment includes our commercial real
estate and other operations.

Our net sales were ¥4,664.5 billion f[or the year ended March
31, 2005 and ¥4,637.7 billion {or the year ended March 31, 2006.
Our domestic and international tobacco businesses accounted for
74.9% and 17.0% of our net sales for the year ended March 31,
2005 and 73.4% and 19.0% of our net sales for the year ended
March 31, 2006, respectively. In recent years, net sales in our inter-
national tobacco business have become an increasingly important
companent of our total net sales; and, their increase has partially off-
set the gradual decline in net sales in our domestic tobacco business
over the past several years. In recent periods, net sales have also
increased in our foods business while decreasing in our pharmaceu-
tical business.

Our operating income was ¥273.4 billion for the year ended
March 31, 2005 and ¥306.9 billion for the year ended March 31,
2006. Although the foods business segment has recorded operating
income since the year ended March 31, 2005, our pharmaceutical
business has recorded operating losses since the year ended March
31, 1998, when we started to disclose industry segiment information,
except for the year ended March 31, 2005. As a result, substantially
all of our operating income is derived from our tobacco businesses.

While we have generally recorded operating income and net
income in each of the recent years, we recorded a net loss of ¥7.6 bil-
lion for the year ended March 31, 2004, primarily reflecting a charge
of ¥185.1 billion related to a change in an accounting pelicy for cer-
tain pension benefits obligations, which had no impact on our cash
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flows.

We greatly expanded our international sales of tobacco through
the $7.8 billion acquisition of the non-U.S. tobacco operations of RIR
Nabisco. Inc. in May 1999. The purpose of this acquisition was to
enhance and diversify our profit sources and cash flows. This acquisi-
tion expanded our ability to sell tobacco products in international
markets and provided us with the rights to intemationally recognized
trademarks such as Camel, Winston and Salem in substantially all
countries outside the United States. These three brands, together with
Mild Seven, constitute our global flagship brands, or GFBs. The inte-
gration of RJR’s non-U.S. tobacco operations and our intemational
tobacco operations was completed in 2000. Since this acquisition,
our international tobacco business sales, in particular overseas sales of
our global flagship brands, have increased steadily. We will continue
to focus on boosting overseas sales of these global flagship brands to
improve our profitability and make these global flagship brands
stronger sources of profits and cash flows,

In August 2003, we agreed with Philip Morris not 1o renew the
license agreement under which we manufactured and sold Marlboro
brand cigarettes in Japan. This agreement ended in April 2005.

In order to further diversify our future sources of profits and
cash {lows, we have been building our pharmaceutical and foods
businesses. Our December 1998 acquisition of 53.5% of the out-
standing shares of Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. substantially
increased the scale of our pharmaceutical business. We substantially
expanded our foods business through the acquisition in 1998 of a
majority of the outstanding shares of Unimat Corporation, later
renamed Japan Beverage Inc., a Japanese vending machine operator
with a large nationwide network of vending machines, and the July
1999 acquisition of the processed foods operations of Asahi Kasel
Corporation. We have been building these operations and refining
their focus through selective investments, acquisitions, joint ventures
and licensing arrangements. We are striving to transform these busi-
nesses into steady future sources of profits and cash flows.




Results by Industry Segment

Table of results by industry segment

- Millions of
Millions of yen US doltars
2004 2005 2006 2006
Netsales ¥ 4,625,151 ¥4664514 ¥ 40637657 $39.480
,,,,,,,,,, Tobacco Business 4236920
Domestic 3,491 488 3405281
International o 792,705 8 5
. Phanmaceuncal Business SL242 57676 49257 4lo
250,138 265,380 278378 2370
86,851 57,265 23353 200
- . Millions of
o MiWomsefyen U.S. dollas
2004 2005 2000 2006
Operating income (loss) ¥ 234034 ¥ 273371 ¥ 306546 $ 2,613
. Tobacco Business 238409 e
Domestic 215,833 220,095 1874
International B L A4as8 71031l 605
__ Pharmaceutical Business ) (12,840) 1,855 (3.057). a3
R (4.851) 1,948 6325 54
Other Business 11,976 (10427 80675 T4
Elimination/Corporate 1,340 (1,150) 5879 49

Four business segments, namely Tobacco, Pharmaceutical, Foods and
Others, had been used for the consolidated financial statements up to
the year ended March 31, 2005, From the year ended March 31,
2006, the tobacco segment is divided inte Domestic tobacco and
International tobacco in order for our business results 1o be more
properly shown, considering the importance of the Group’s tobacco
business in which JT International S.A.. a foreign consolidated sub-
sidiary, conducts the main operational role. As a result, five business
segments, namely Domestic tobacco, International tobacco,
Pharmaceutical, Foods and Others, are used for the consolidated
financial statements. As for the results of the year ended March 31,
2005, retroactive application was made in accordance with the new
business segments as well.

Domestic tobacco: Net sales for the domestic tobacco business
were ¥3,491.5 billion for the year ended March 31, 2005, and
¥3,405.3 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006. In addition to
sales of products we manufacture in Japan, including Marlboro,
which we manufactured under a license agreement with Philip
Morris that expired in April 2005, our domestic tobacco business
includes sales in Japan of tobacco products of foreign tobacco man-
ufacturers. We derive significantly lower profit margins from the
sale of these imported tobacco products than the rest of our domes-
tic tobacco business as our function is limited to distribution.

International tobacco: Net sales for the international tobacco busi-
ness were ¥792.7 billion for the year ended March 31, 2005 and
¥881.2 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006. International
tobacco sales include overseas sales of products manufactured by our
overseas subsidiaries and sales of tobacco products manufactured in

Japan and exported to {oreign countries, but exclude sales to China,

Hong Kong and Macau since January 2003,

Pharmaceutical: The pharmaceutical business accounted for approx-
imately 1.2% of our net sales for the year ended March 31, 2005 and
1.1% of our net sales for the year ended March 31, 2006. The phar-
maceutical business recorded an operating income of ¥1.9 billion for
the year ended March 31, 2005 since the operating income for the
year included one-time revenue from the licensing-out of a chemical
compound, but it recorded a ¥5.1 billion operating loss for the year
ended March 31, 2006. We do not expect our pharmaceutical busi-
ness to generate profits in the next few years.

Foods: The [oods business accounted for approximately 5.7% of our
net sales for the year ended March 31, 2005, and 6.0% of our net
sales for the year ended March 31, 2006. The operating income
recorded for the foods business was ¥1.9 billion for the year ended

March 31, 2005, and ¥6.3 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006.

Other: The other business segment accounted for approximately 1.2%
of our net sales for the year ended March 31, 2005, and 0.5% of our
net sales {or the year ended March 31, 2006. Net sales from the other
business segment increased for the year ended March 31, 2004 from
the previous fiscal year due to a non-recurring sale of real estate in our
real estate business, but on the whole have been decreasing over recent
periods. Operating income for the other business segnient was ¥10.4
billion for the year ended March 31, 2005 and ¥8.7 billion for the year
ended March 31, 2006. We do not currently plan to expand this seg-
ment and therefore expect net sales from this segment to decrease grad-
ually as we re-evaluate businesses in this segment.
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Results by Geographic Segment

We divide our operations into three geographic segments based on
the location of the entity recording the sales: Japan, Western Ewrope
(including Switzerland, France and Germany) and other regions. The
other regions segment comprises primarily Asia (excluding Japan but

Table of results by geographic segment

including China, Hong Kong and Macau), Canada, Russia and the
other Commonwealth of Independent States republics, the Middle
East and Africa.

Millions of yen Millions of

U.S. dollars
2004 2005 2006 2006
_E}J_S{Vsales ¥4625151 ¥46064514 Y40637.657  §$39480
Japan C 3,844,100 3823102 3709964 31.582
‘\‘Veslvcm Eurppg v 308,613 317,273 3»3@:5"606‘ 2883
Other 472,438 524,139 589,087 5015
s Millions of
Millions of yen US. dollars
2004 2005 2006 2000
Opera}tir_l‘g‘__i’n_gqme (1955) ¥ 234034 ¥ 273371 ¥ 306946 § 2613
Japan B B 195,086 228,347 228,137 1942
Western Europe (20,986) (3,373) (847 (7
Other 57,589 48,696 72865 620
Elimination/Corporate 2,345 (299) 6,791 58

Japan: Net sales in Japan for the year ended March 31, 2006 decreased
by ¥113.1 billion, or 3.0%, to ¥3,710.0 billion from the previous fiscal
year. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in sales from our
domestic tobacco business. Despite a decrease in operating expenses as
a result of cost reduction efforts, operating income for the year ended
March 31, 2006 decreased by ¥0.2 billion, or 0.1%, to ¥228.1 billion
from the previous fiscal year. Net sales in Japan for the year ended
March 31, 2005 decreased by ¥21.0 hillion, or 0.5%, to ¥3,823.1 bil-
lion compared to the previous fiscal year. This was primarily due to a
one-time increase in revenue from our real estate business in the previ-
ous fiscal year and a decline in sales as a result of a share transfer of our
printing business telated subsidiaries. Operating income for the year
ended March 31, 2005 increased by ¥33.3 billion, or 17.0%, 1 ¥228.3
billion compared 1o the previous fiscal year. This was primarily due to a
decrease in operating expenses as a result of cost reduction efforts.

Western Europe: Net sales in Western Europe for the year ended
March 31, 2006 increased by ¥21.3 billion, or 6.7%, to ¥338.6 bil-
lion from the previous fiscal year. This was primarily due to an
increase in sales in Italy. Operating loss for the year ended March 31,
2006 decreased by ¥2.5 billion to ¥0.8 billion from the previous fis-
cal year. Net sales in Western Europe for the year ended March 31,
2005 increased by ¥8.7 billion, or 2.8%, to ¥317.3 billion compared
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to the previous fiscal year. This was primarily due to an increase in
sales as a result of GFB sales volume growth. Operating loss for the
year ended March 31, 2005 decreased by ¥17.6 billion to ¥3.4 billion
compared to the previous fiscal year. This was primarily due to a
decrease in operating expenses as a result of cost reduction efforts.

Other Regions: Net sales in other regions for the vear ended March
31, 2006 increased by ¥64.9 billion, or 12.4%, to ¥589.1 billion from
the previous fiscal year. This was primarily due to an increase in the
international tobacco sales by JT International, particularly in coun-
tries such as Russia, Iran, Ukraine and Taiwan, Operating income for
the year ended March 31, 2006 increased by ¥24.2 billion, or 49.6%
to ¥72.9 billion from the previous fiscal year. Net sales in other
regions for the year ended March 31, 2005 increased by ¥51.7 billion,
or 10.9%, to ¥524.1 hillion compared to the previous fiscal year. This
was primarily due to an increase in international tobacco sales by JT
International, particularly in countries such as Russia and Taiwan, as
well as an increase in net sales of our foods business in Australia.
Operating income for the year ended March 31, 2005 decreased by
¥8.9 hillion, or 15.4%, to ¥48.7 billion compared to the previous fis-
cal year. This was primarily due to an increase in operating expenses
for aggressive marketing activities,




Outlook of Results for the Year Ending March 31, 2007

It is too early to forecast resulis of operations for the fiscal year end-
ing March 31, 2007. However, based on current trends and other fac-
tors known to us, we believe that net sales will increase due to bal-
anced growth in sales volume in both mature and emerging markets
for the international tobacco business. This increase will be partially
offset by a decrease in sales volume for the domestic tobacco busi-
ness, reflecting in part the effects of the tobacco excise tax increase
imposed in July 2006.

We expect operating income to decrease due to a decrease in
sales volume for the domestic tobacco business, reflecting in part the
tax increase, This decline will be partially offset by top-line growth in
the international tobacco business from focusing on GFB and enhanc-

Resulits of Operations

ing our brand portfolio, and cost reduction efforts.

We expect net income to decrease although improvements in net
finance income (interest and dividend income less interest expense)
and foreign exchange impact are expected.

Cigarette vending machines with adult identification functions
are scheduled to be introduced nationwide in Japan in the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2009. We expect to bear part of the initial costs up
to the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009, and part of the running
costs thereafter,

Qur actual results of operation could vary significantly from those
described above as a result of a number of factors including, but not lm-
ited to, those discussed in “Forward-looking and cautionary staternents.”

Income Statement Data

Millions of yen SA]S” ig;ﬁ;;i
For years ended March 31 2004 2005 2006 2006
Net sales ¥4.625 151 ¥4664514 ¥ 4637.657 $ 39480
Cost of sales T 3684013 3,713,725 3734074 31,788
Gross profit 941,138 950.789 903,583 7,692
Selling, general and administrative expenses 707,104 677,418 596.637 5079
Operating income 234,034 273,371 306,946 2,613
Other expenses, net (241 642) (172,038) (5953 51y
Income (loss) before income taxes (benefit) and
minority interest (7.608) 101,333 300,993 2,562
Income taxes (benefit) 4813 31,565 94,896 808
Income (loss) before minority interest (2,795) 69,768 206097 1754
Minority interest 4808 7,184 4,555 38
Net income (loss) ¥ (7.603) ¥ 62584 ¥ 201542 3 1,716

Year Ended March 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended March
31, 2005

Net sales

Net sales for the year ended March 31, 2006 decreased by ¥26.9 bil-
lion, or 0.6%, to ¥4,637.7 billion. Net sales amounts discussed below
represent amounts after the elimination of intersegment revenues.

* Domestic tobacco business

Net sales for the domestic tobacco business comprises sales in Japan
(including duty-free sales) of tobacco products manufactured by us in
or cutside japan, products manufactured by foreign tobacce manu-
facturers for which we serve as wholesaler, and sales for the China,
Hong Kong and Macau markets. which are conducted by the China
Division. The group’s net sales for the domestic tobacco business
were ¥3,405.3 billion, a decrease of ¥86.2 billion or 2.5% in net sales
from the previous fiscal year. The sales volume of JT’s tobacco prod-
ucts in Japan decreased by 23.7 billion cigarettes, or 11.2%, to 189.4
billion cigarettes [rom the previous fiscal year. Sales volume declined
despite the positive effect of the increased sales volume of JTI prod-
ucts for the Japan market such as “Camel” “Winston” and “Salem”
since May 2005, mainly due to the continued decline in total demand
for cigarettes caused by an aging Japanese population, growing con-

sciousness of smoking and health and tightening smoking regula-
tions. The decline in sales volume was also accelerated by the termi-
nation of the license agreement for Marlboro products in Japan at the
end of April 2005, The sales volume of tobacco products in Japan
excluding Marlboro products and including “Camel”, “Winston” and
“Salem” (on a like-for-like basis for comparability purpose) decreased
by 7.6 billion cigatettes or 3.9% from the previous fiscal year.

¢ International tobacco business

Net sales from the international tobacco business were ¥881.2 hillion,
an increase of ¥88.5 billion or 11.2% from the previous fiscal year.
The sales volume of our intemational tobacco business increased by
7.9 billion cigarettes, or 3.7%, to 220.3 billion cigarettes, and global
flagship brands (“Camel”, "Winston”, “Mild Seven” and “Salem”,
hereinafter, “GFB”) also increased by 2.4 billion cigarettes, or 1.8%,
to 133.8 billion cigarettes, The sales volume and GFB sales volume of
our intemational tobacco business excluding the Japan market (on a
like-for-like basis for comparability purpose) increased by 13.0 bil-
lion cigarettes or 6.3% and 6.9 billion cigarettes or 5.6% from the
previous fiscal year, respectively. Net sales in U.S. dollar terms
increased due to an increase in sales volume, a positive impact on
market and product mix and the imposition of higher tobacco excise
taxes in some markets. Sales denominated in foreign currencies are
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first translated into U.S. dollars and then translated into Japanese yen
using the 12-month average rate. Net sales in U.S. dollar terms
increased due 1o the weakness of the U.S. dollar, and the weakness of
the Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar also increased the size of the
net sales increase when these U.S. dollar amounts were translated
into Japanese yen. The average exchange rates between the Japanese
yent and U.S. dollar used for the translation were ¥108.23 to $1.00
for the year ended March 31, 2005 and ¥110.26 to $1.00 for the year
ended March 31, 2006.

» Pharmaceutical business

Net sales in the pharmaceutical business decreased by ¥8.4 hillion, or
14.6%, to ¥49.3 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006 {rom the
previous fiscal year. Despite one-time income from the licensing of
JTK-303 (anti-HIV) to US-based Gilead Sciences, net sales decreased
principally due to decreases in the royalty revenue from “Viracept” and
in net sales of Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (heretnafter “Torii”), and
the lack of one-time income from the licensing of JTT-705 (dyslipi-
demnia), as had been received in the previous fiscal year.

+ Foods business

Net sales from the foods business increased by ¥13.0 billion, or 4.9%, to
¥278.4 billion from the previous fiscal year. Net sales in the processed
foods business increased by ¥5.2 billion, or 5.9%, to ¥03.0 billicn as a
result of an expansion of scale in the frozen processed foods and chilled
processed foods businesses. Net sales in the beverage business increased
by ¥7.8 hillion, or 4.4%, to ¥185.4 billion, mainly due to the continu-
ous expansion of beverage vending machine sales channels.

¢ Others

Net sales from other businesses decreased by ¥33.7 billion, or 58.9%,
to ¥23.6 billion, due primarily to a decline in the number of consoli-
dated subsidiaries by the transfer of their shares.

Cost of sales

For the year ended March 31, 2006, cost of sales increased by ¥20.3
billion, or 0.5%, to ¥3,734.1 hillion from the previous fiscal year,
principally as a result of an increase in sales volume of our interna-
tional tobacco business, the purchase of Marlboro products through
owr subsidiary instead of their manufacture by JT and the expansion
of scale in the foods business. This increase was largely offset by a
decrease in sales volume of our domestic tobacco business and the
positive impact of business restructuring measures implemented in
the previous fiscal year.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

For the year ended March 31, 2006, selling, general and administra-
tive expenses decreased by ¥80.8 billion, or 11.9%, 1o ¥596.6 billion
from the previous fiscal year. The decrease was due primarily to a
decrease in personnel expenses resulting mainly from the business
restructuring measures implemented in the previous fiscal year and a
decrease in royalty payments on Marlboro products.

Operating income

As a result of the foregoing factors, operating income increased by
¥33.6 billion, or 12.3%, to ¥306.9 billion. Operating income by busi-
ness segment was as follows:

» Domestic tobacco business

Operating income in the domestic tobacco business for the year
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ended March 31, 2006 increased by ¥4.3 billion, or 2.0%, to ¥220.]
billion frem the previous fiscal year, in spite of the termination of the
license agreement for Marlboro products in Japan at the end of April
2005, The increase reflected a decrease in personrel expenses result-
ing mainly from the business restructuring measures implemented in
the previous fiscal year and an increase in the average unit price of
cigarettes sold in Japan, including the positive impact of “Camel”,
“Winston” and “Salem” since May 2005.

* International tobacco business

Operating income in the intemational tobacco business for the year
ended March 31, 2006 increased by ¥26.6 billion, or 59.8%. o
¥71.0 billion from the previous fiscal year. This was due primarily to
an increase in sales volume accompanied by a unit price increase. The
weakness of the U.S. dollar and the weakness of the Japanese yen
against the U.S. dollar also contributed to this increase.

¢ Pharmaceutical business

For the year ended March 31, 2006, in spite of a decrease in research
and development expenses and one-time income from the licensing of
JTK-303 (anti-HIV), there was a decrease of ¥6.9 billion from the pre-
vieus [iscal year to an operating loss of ¥3.1 billion. This was due pri-
marily to decreases in the royalty revenue from “Viracept”, the sales of
Torii, and the lack of temporary income from the licensing of JTT-705
(dyslipidemia) in the previcus fiscal year.

* Foods business

For the year ended March 31, 2006, operating income increased by
¥4.4 billion, or 224.7%, to ¥6.3 billion from the previous fiscal year.
This was due primarily to an improvement in margins resulting {rom
business expansion and a reduction of fixed costs resulting from effi-
cient operation. '

* Others

For the year ended March 31, 2006, operating income decreased by
¥1.8 billion, or 16.8%, to ¥8.7 billion from the previous fiscal year.
The decrease in operating income is attributable primarily to a
decline in the number of consolidated subsidiaries by the transfer of
their shares.

Other expenses, net

Other expenses, net, were ¥6.0 billion, a decrease of ¥166.1 billion
for the year ended March 31, 2006 from the previous fiscal year. This
was primarily due to a decrease in business restructuring costs
including addirional retirement benefits relating to a voluntary retire-
ment program.

Income before income taxes and minority interests

As a result of the foregoing factors, income before income taxes and
minoerity interests for the year ended March 31, 2006 increased by
¥169.7 billion, or 197.0%, to ¥301.0 billion from the previous fiscal year.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2006 increased by ¥63.3
billion, or 200.6%, 10 ¥94.9 billion from the previous fiscal year. For
the year ended March 31, 2006, the actual effective tax rate increased
by 0.4 percentage points to 31.5%. This was due primarily to the rise
in composition of JT's income before income taxes and minority
interests that bear relatively high income taxes.




Income before minority interests

Income before minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2006
increased by ¥136.3 billion, or 195.4%. to ¥206.1 billien from the
previous fiscal year. Minority interests for the year ended March 31,
2006 decreased by ¥2.6 billien, or 36.6%, to ¥4.6 billion from the
previous fiscal year.

Net income

As a result of the foregoing factors, net income for the year ended
March 31, 2006 increased by ¥139.0 billion, or 222.0%, to ¥201.5
billion from the previous fiscal year.

Year Ended March 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended March
31, 2004

Net sales

Net sales for the year ended March 31, 2005 increased by 0.9% to
¥4,664.5 billion, due primarily to increases in net sales from our
tebacco business, pharmaceutical business and {oods business. Net
sales amounts discussed below represent amounts after the elimina-
tion of intersegment revenues,

* Tobacco business

Net sales for the year ended March 31, 2005 increased by 1.1% to
¥4.284.2 billion from the previous fiscal year. We sold 430.7 billion
cigarettes worldwide for the year ended March 31, 2005.

— Domestic tobacco business

Net sales for the domestic tobacco business consist of sales in Japan
(including duty-free sales) of tobacco products manufactured by us in
or outside Japan, products manufactured by foreign tobacco manu-
facturers for which we serve as wholesalers and sales for the China,
Hong Kong and Macau markets, which are conducted by the China
Division. Net sales for the domestic tobacco business were ¥3,491.5
billion, a decrease of 0.2% from net sales for the previous fiscal year.
The sales volume of tobacco products in Japan decreased by 5.1 bil-
lion cigarettes, or 2.3%, to 213.2 billion cigarettes from the previous
fiscal year. Net sales from the domestic tobacco business were almost
flat despite the drop in the sales volume of tobacco products in Japan.
This was mainly due to the tobacco retail price increases instituted to
reflect the increase in tobacco excise taxes in July 2003, and the
increase in the average unit price resulting from aggressive introduc-
tion of premium new products. The decline in sales volume was
mainly due to a reduction in the number of smokers reflecting social
factors such as growing health consciousness and the aging of
Japanese society.

~ Intemational tobacco business

Net sales from the international tobacco business were ¥792.7 billion,
an increase of 7.3% or ¥34.0 billion from the previous fiscal year,
This increase in net sales reflected a shift toward higher-priced prod-
ucts, including our global flagship brands (*Camel”, “Winston”, “Mild
Seven” and “Salem”, hereinafter “GFB”) despite decreases in sales vol-
ume in some markets due to the imposition of higher excise taxes
and tetail price increases. Sales denominated in foreign currencies are
first translated into U.S. dollars and then rranslated into Japanese yen
using the 12-month average rate. Due to the weakness of the U.S.

dollar, net sales increased more than 6.9% in U.S. dollar terms but
the strengthening of the Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar reduced
the size of the net sales increase when these U.S. dollar amounts were
translated into Japanese yen. The average exchange rates between the
Japanese yen and U.S. dollar used for the translation were ¥116.00 to
$1.00 for the year ended March 31, 2004 and ¥108.23 to $1.00 for
the year ended March 31, 2005.

* Pharmaceutical business

Net sales in the pharmaceutical business increased by 12.6% to ¥57.7
billion for the year ended March 31, 2005 from the previous fiscal
year. The increase was principally because of an increase in one-time
income s a result of the licensing of JTT-705 (dyslipidemia) to Roche
exceeding decreases in royalties from the anti-HIV diug Viracept and
in net sales of our Torti Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. subsidiary.

» Foods business

Net sales from the foods business increased by ¥15.2 billion, or 6.1%,
to ¥263.4 billien frem the previous fiscal year as a result of the
expansion of scale in the processed foods business and the expansion
of beverage vending machine sales channels which exceeded the
decrease in the unprofitable sales channels in the beverage business.
The increase in net sales for the processed foods business 1o ¥87.9
billion was due mainly to an increase in frozen foods and a recent
expansion of our chilled foods business including the full year con-
solidation effect of newly consolidated subsidiaries. The increase in
net sales for our beverages business to ¥177.5 billion reflected an
increase in volume sold through vending machines, resulting from an
expansion of vending machine sales charnels. The increase in net
sales for the beverage business was partially offset by a decline in
sales volume through the wholesale channels.

» Others

Net sales from other businesses decreased by ¥29.6 billion, or 34,1%,
to ¥57.3 billion, due primarily to the absence of the sale of real estate
in the Shinagawa development project in Tokyo for the previous fis-
cal year and sale of the printing business in April 2004.

Cost of sales i

Tor the year ended March 31, 2003, cost of sales increased by ¥29.7
billion, or 0.8%. to ¥3,713.7 billion from the previous fiscal year,
principally as a result of the increase in tbacco excise taxes. In addi-
tion, cost of sales increased as a result of the recent expansion of our
chilled food business through acquisitions and a leaf tobacco devalua-
tion loss. The increase was slightly offset by decreased sales volume
and cost reduction measures in our domestic tobacco operations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

For the year ended March 31, 2005, selling, general and administra-
tive expenses decreased by ¥29.7 billion, or 4.2%, w0 ¥677.4 billion
from the previous fiscal year. The decrease was due primarily to a
decrease of ¥21.4 billion in personnel expenses resulting mainly from
the reduction of employee bonuses. The decrease also reflected a ter-
mination in amortization charges related to the acquisition of shares
of Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. in 1998. Other factors contributing
to the decrease included a decline in advertising and sales promotion
expenses as well as a decrease in research and development expenses
in our pharmaceutical business.
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Operating income

As a result of the foregoing factors, operating income increased by
¥39.3 billion, or 16.8%, to ¥273.4 hillion. Operating income by busi-
ness segment was as follows:

« Tobacco business

Operating income in the tobacco business for the year ended March
31, 2005 increased by ¥21.3 bllion, or 8.9%, to ¥258.7 billion from
the previous fiscal year. In addition to the decrease in the selling, gen-
eral and administrative expenses described above, the increase reflect-
ed our continued cost reduction measures in the domestic tobacco
business, an increase in the average unit price of cigarettes sold in
Japan excluding taxes and the steady shift toward higher-priced prod-
ucts, including our global flagship brands in the intemnational tabacco
business.

¢ Pharmaceutical business

For the year ended March 31, 2005, operating income increased by
¥14.7 billion to ¥1.9 billion from the previous fiscal year, when oper-
ating loss was ¥12.8 billion. This was due primarily to an increase in
one-time income resulting from the licensing of JTT-705. a termina-
tion in amortization charges related to the acquisition of shares of
Torit Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. for the previous fiscal year, and a
decrease in research and development expenses.

* Foods business

For the year ended March 31, 2005, we recorded operating income of
¥1.9 billion, an increase of ¥6.8 billion from the aperating loss of ¥4.9
billien for the previous fiscal year. The increase in operating income
was due to an improvement in margins resulting from business expan-
sion and more efficient use of sales and marketing expenses.

« Others

For the year ended March 31, 2005, operating income decreased by
¥1.5 billion to ¥10.4 billion from the previous fiscal year. The
decrease in operating income is attributable primarily to a decrease in
income from the real estate business.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Other expenses, net

Other expenses, net, decreased to ¥172.0 billion, a decrease of ¥69.6
billion for the year ended March 31, 2005 from ¥241.6 billion for the
previous fiscal year. The decrease in ather expenses, net, was primari-
ty due to a capital gain from sales of beneficial interests in a real estate
trust to Frontier Real Estate Investment Corporation and the absence
of a one-time charge related to the accounting policy change for
Public Official Mutual Assistance Association expenses of ¥185.1 bil-
lion for the previous fiscal year. The impact of the decline in other
expenses, net, was offset by an increase in business restructuring
costs including additional retirement benefits relating to a voluntary
retirement program.

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests

As a result of the foregoing factors, we recorded an income of ¥101.3
billion for the year ended March 31, 2005, compared 10 loss before
income taxes and minority interests of ¥7.6 billion for the previous
fiscal year.

Income taxes {benefit)

Income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2005 were ¥31.6 billion,
compared to an income tax benefit of ¥4.8 billion for the previous fis-
cal year. For the year ended March 31, 2005, the actual effective tax
rate was 31.1%.

Income (loss) before minority interests

Income before minority interests was ¥69.8 billion for the year ended
March 31, 2005, compared to the ¥2.8 billion in loss before minority
interests for the previous fiscal year. Minaotity interests increased to
¥7.2 billion for the year ended March 31, 2005 from ¥4.8 billion for
the previous fiscal year.

Net income (loss)

As a result of the foregoing factors, we recorded net income of ¥62.6
billion for the year ended March 31, 2005, compared to net loss of
¥7.6 billion for the previous fiscal year.

In our financial management, we strive to maintain a stable financial
base from which capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions and
investments, and research and development activities can be con-
ducted in a cost-efficient and effective manner to grow our businesses
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without being affected by short-term fluctuations of revenues. We
derive the funds we require to meet our capital requirements princi-
pally from cash flow provided by operations. borrowings from finan-
cial institutions and issuances of long-term debt securities.




Cash Flows
e Overview

As of March 31, 2005 and March 31, 2006, cash and cash equivalents totaled ¥829.1 billion and ¥920.1 billion, respectively.

Millions of yen 34 ;“lg‘;ﬁ:ri

For years ended March 31 2004 2005 2006 2006
Net cash provided by operating activities ¥ 334501 ¥ 250840 ¥ 150343 $ 1.280
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (228,620) 176,014 (26,358) (224)
“Net cash used in financing activities 109335y (202,196)  (48,135) (410
Effect oféxchange rate changes and other ‘ ué,‘ﬂO T 1868 15205 129
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 984) 227,426 Q1,055 775
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the pcn’od o 802645 601661 829.087 7058
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period ¥ 601,661 ¥ 829,087 ¥920.142 $ 7833

Year Ended March 31, 2006 Corpared to Year Ended March 31,2005
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥150.3 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2006, compared to ¥250.8 billion for the year
ended March 31, 2005, This was because although there was genera-
tion of stable cash flows by our tobacco business operations, there
was a payment of additional retirernent benefits relating to a volun-
tary retirement program implemented in the previous fiscal year.

Net cash used in investing activities was ¥26.4 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2006, while net cash of ¥176.9 billion was
provided by investing activities for the year ended March 31, 2005.
This was primarily due to a conversion of cash and cash equivalents
into short-term financial assets maturing over three months in this
fiscal year, as opposed to a conversion of short-term financial assets
maturing over three months into cash and cash equivalents through
redemption in the previous fiscal year.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥48.1 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2006, compared to ¥202.2 billion for the year
ended March 31, 2005. The decrease in net cash used in financing
activities was primarily due to the absence of redemption of long-
term debt in the previous fiscal year,

Liquidity and Capital Requirements

Year Ended March 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended March 31, 2004
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥250.8 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2005, compared to ¥334.5 billion for the year
ended March 31, 2004. Net cash provided by operating activities was
primarily due to an increase in cash generated by our tobacco busi-
ness operations, Net cash provided by operating activities decreased
primarily due to an increase in accrued tobacco excise taxes during
the previous fiscal year, as a result of the tobacco excise tax increase
which took effect in July 2003.

Net cash used in investing activities was ¥228.6 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2004, but net cash of ¥176.9 billion was pro-
vided by mvesting activities for the year ended March 31, 2005. This
was primarily due to a conversion of short-term financial assets
maturing over three months into cash and cash equivalents through
redemption, and a sale of beneficial interest in real estate trust to
Frontier Real Estate Investment Corporation.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥202.2 billion for the
year ended March 31, 2005, compared to ¥109.3 billion for the year
ended March 31, 2004. The increase in net cash used in financing
acrivities was primarily due to a redemption of long-term debt.

Our principal capital and liquidity needs have been for capital expenditures, working capital, strategic acquisitions and investments, repayments
of borrowings and payments of mterest and funds for payments of dividends and income taxes.

¢ Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures include purchases of property, plant and equipment, as well as trademarks and other assets related to tangible and intangible assets

needed to enthance the productivity of our factories and other facilities, strengthen our competitiveness, and promote businesses in various fields.

: , Millions of

Millions of yen US. dollars
For years ended March 31 2004 2005 2006 2006
Capital expenditures ¥ 90,870 ¥ 85,109 ¥ 98,927 $ 842

For the year ended March 31, 2006, we invested ¥98.9 billion in capi-
tal expenditures as a whole. In the domestic and international tobacco
businesses, we invested in capital expenditures ¥75.0 billion and ¥25.0
billion, respectively, principally to streamline the product manufactur-
ing process, strengthen supply and demand functions corresponding to
the diversification of products and to enhance new product develop-
ment. In the pharmaceutical business, we invested ¥2.1 billion in capi-
tal expenditures to improve production and research and development
facilities and for other purposes. In the foods business, we invested
¥4.6 billion in capital expenditures primarily to strengthen production

facilities. In other businesses, we invested ¥19.3 billion in capital
expenditures principally for real estate development. In addition, the
amount of capital expenditures invested in the domestic tobacco busi-
ness mcludes goodwill relating to integration to the Japanese market
acquired from foreign tobacce business subsidiaries. Therefore, such
amount was eliminated together with other internal transactions when
caleulating the total amount,

For the year ended March 31, 2005, we invested ¥85.1 billion in
capital expenditures primarily to improve production capabilities. In the
tobacco business, we invested ¥65.3 billion in capital expenditures prin-
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cipally to boost the efficiency and flexibility of manufacturing operations
and to enhance new product development. In the pharmaceutical busi-
ness, we invested ¥3.1 billion in capital expenditures to improve research
and development facilities and for other purpeses. In the foods business,
we invested ¥7.4 billion in capital expenditures primarily to strengthen
manufacturing facilities. In other businesses, we invested ¥10.6 billion in
capital expenditures principally for sales facility and office equipment.

For the year ended March 31, 2004, we invested ¥90.9 billion in
capital expenditures primarily to improve production capabilities. In
the tobacco business, we invested ¥60.6 billion in capital expendi-
tures principally to boost the efficiency and flexibility of manutactur-
ing operations and to enhance new product development. In the
pharmaceutical business, we invested ¥2.6 billion in capital expendi-
tures for better research and development facilities and for other pur-
poses. In the {oods business, we invested ¥9.1 billion in capital
expenditures primarily to strengthen manufacturing facilities. In
other businesses, we invested ¥18.1 billion in capital expenditures
principally for real estate development projects,

For the year ending March 31, 2007, we plan to spend approxi-
mately ¥124.0 billion on capital expenditures. We plan to spend
approximately ¥73.0 billion in the domestic tobacce business to
improve productivity and reduce cost, and approximately ¥32.0 bil-
lion in the international tebacco business to increase production
capability. We plan to spend approximately ¥2.5 billion for strength-
ening pharmaceutical research and development facilities and func-
tions, approximately ¥5.0 billion to improve and strengthen foods
preduction facilities and approximately ¥13.5 hillion for real estate
development in other businesses.

Our actual capital expenditures could vary significantly from
described above as a result of number of factors including, but not limit-
ed to, those discussed in “Forward-looking and cautionary statements.”

* Working capital

Qur principal working capital requirements are for the purchase of
raw matetials, including leaf tobacco and other inventory items, and
the payment of salaries and wages, selling expenses, advertising and
promotion expenses, taxes and research and development.

* Strategic acquisitions and investments

From time to time, we invest in or acquire companies that we believe
have the potential to help us diversify our sources of cash flow or
improve our profitability.

* Dividends

We also require sufficient liquidity to make our scheduled dividend pay-
ments. As for the basic dividend policy. we are aiming to provide a com-
petitive level of returns to shareholders in the capital market in consider-
ation of the accomplishment of our mid to long-term growth strategies
and the outlook of the company’s consolidated financial results. We
intend to increase the dividend level on a continual basis with a target of
20% for the consolidated dividend payout ratio.

* Stock repurchases

Any repurchase of our own shares also requires cash outlays. In order
to exercise flexible stock repurchases, we amended the articles of
incorporation at the general shareholders'meeting held on june 24,
2004 to enable share repurchases based on a resolution of the Board
of Directors. Based on this amendment, we repurchased 38,184
shares of common stock by March 24, 2005. We may hold the repur-
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chased shares as treasury stock, cancel them, or utilize them for any
other purpose. Stock repurchases provide our management with an
additional option to increase flexibility and speed in capital manage-
ment to meet the needs of a rapidly changing business environment.
We will consider the timing, scale and manner of any further repur-
chases based upon business needs and market trends.

* Stock split

To create an environment where investors can more easily invest in
our shares and to expand our shareholder base by lowering its price
per share, we completed a Five-for-One stock split as of April 1, 2006.

Capital Resources and Use

We have historically had, and expect to continue to have, significant
cash flow from operating activities. Cash from operating activities was
¥150.3 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006 and ¥250.8 billion for
the year ended March 31, 2005, We expect to continue to cover capital
expenditures and repayment of debt from cash generated by operating
activities. For significant capital requirements relating to strategic acqui-
sitions and investments, we also sometimes utilize debt financing, pri-
marily borrowings from financial institutions and issuances of debt secu-
rities. See “Long-term and Short-tenm Debt” below.

Equity financing, including warrants and bends with subscrip-
tion rights for new shares, is subject to the approval of the Minister of
Finance under the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law. Revisions to the Japan
Tobacco Inc. Law effective April 19, 2002 gave us the flexibility to
issue new equity shares so long as we have the approval of the
Minister of Finance and the Japanese government continues to hold
more than one-third of our issued shares. We may choose to raise
capital through equity issuances in the future, which would have the
effect of diluting existing shareholders’ ownnership.

Long-term and Short-term Debt
+ Long-term debt
Qur long-term liabilities consist mainly of long-term debt and habilities
for retirement benetits. At March 31, 2006, long-term debt was ¥183.3
billion, of which ¥150.0 billion was in the form of bonds. The remain-
ing long-term debt (including the current portion) consisted of loans
from banks and life insurance compantes. Annual interest rates applica-
ble to yen denominated long-term bank loans outstanding at March 31,
2005 and 2006 ranged from 0.84% to 5.10% and 1.50% to 5.10%,
respectively. Anmual interest rates ranged from 5.80% to 8.24% for
leng-term loans denominated in other currencies outstanding at March
31, 2005, and ranged from 7.05% to 7.91% at March 31, 2006.
Annual maturities of long-term debt (including the current por-
tion) at March 31, 2006 were as follows:

For years ended March 31 Millions of yen L’jhslhg‘l;ﬁfrfs
2007 ¥ 18,204 $ 155
2008 10927 93
S50 550 . 2
2010 - ' 150,800 1,285

S0l [ - R 1,168. . 19

"2012 and thereafter T 1337 11
Total ¥ 183316 $ 1,561




As of March 31, 2006, our long-term debt was rated as Aa2 by
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and AA- by Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services. These ratings are some of the highest ratings among
international tobacco companies. By maintaining high credit ratings,
we expect to be able to finance large sums of capital at relatively low
costs from third parties from time to time. The ability to maintain
high ratings is influenced by a number of factors such as develop-
ments in the principal markets in which we conduct our business
and the success of our business strategies, as well as some elements
beyond our control such as general economic trends in Japan. The
ratings are not recommendations to purchase, sell or possess securi-
ties. The ratings could be withdrawn or modified at any time. Each
rating should be evaluated distinetly from other vatings.

Under the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law, bonds issued by Japan
Tobacco Inc. are secured by a statutory preferential right over the
property of Japan Tobacco Inc. This right gives bondholders prefer-
ence to unsecured creditors in seeking repayment, with the exception
of national and local taxes and other statutory obligations.

In September 2002, in order to diversify our capital resources
and enhance our debt financing capabilities, we established a medi-
um term note program in the eure market allowing us to issue up to
$5 billion. We may issue notes under this program, from time to
time, with board approval.

* Short-term debt

We also use banks and other financial institutions for short-term
loans. Short-tetm loans were ¥26.9 billion at March 31, 2005 and
¥33.3 billion at March 31, 2006, including foreign currency denomi-
nated loans of ¥25.6 billion and ¥33.0 billion, respectively. Annual
interest rates applicable to yen denominated short-term bank loans
outstanding at March 31, 2005 ranged from 0.46% to 1.50%, and
from 0.47% to 1.50% at March 31, 2006. Annual interest rates
ranged from 3.10% to 9.30% for short-term loans denominated in
other currencies outstanding at March 31, 2005 and from 3.95% to
7.35% at March 31, 2006.

As is customary in Japan, short-term and long-term bank loans
are made under general agreements which provide that, under certain
circumstances, security and guarantees for present and future indebt-
edness will be given upen request of the bank, and that the bank
shall have the right, as the obligations become due, or in the event of
their default, 1o offset cash deposits against such obligations due w
the bank. We have never been tequested to provide such collateral.

Derivative Transactions
We are exposed to market risks principally from changes in interest
tates, foreign exchange rates and equity and debt security prices. Our
interest rate risk exposures primarily relate to financing activities. Our
foreign currency exposures relate to buying, selling and financing in
currencies other than the local currencies in which we operate. In
order to reduce foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk, we
use derivative financial instruments that include interest rate swaps,
forward exchange contracts, currency swaps and option contracts. We
do not hedge against price fluctuations of debt and equity securities.
We have risk management policies and procedures designated to
mitigate the risks arising from exposures from the use of derivative

financial instruments. We utilize derivatives solely for risk manage-
ment purposes, and no derivatives are held or issued for trading pur-
poses. As part of our risk management procedures, we identify the
specific risks and transactions to be hedged and the appropriate
hedging instruments to be used to reduce that risk, and then assess
the correlation between the hedged risks and the hedging instru-
ments. The effectiveness of our hedging activities is assessed in accor-
dance with our risk management policies and practice manual for
hedging transactions.

We are also exposed to credit-related risks in the event of non-
performance by counterparties to derivative financial instruments.
However, we strive to mitigate this risk by limiting counterparties to
international financial institutions with high credit ratings, with
which we believe there is no significant risk of default,

We use interest rate swaps for the purpose of managing interest
rate risk relating to financing activities. The interest rate swap agree-
ments which qualify for hedge accounting under Japanese GAAP and
meet specific matching criteria are not measured at market value, but
the differential to be paid or received under the swap agreements is
accrued and included in interest expenses.

We use foreign exchange forward contracts, currency swaps and
option contracts for the purpose of managing the risk of fluctuations
in foreign exchange rates on our borrowings, bonds and forecasted
transactions in foreign currencies. Hedging contracts owtstanding as of
March 31, 2006 and March 31, 2005 held by Japan Tobacco Inc. and
domestic subsidiaties qualify for hedge accounting. Therefore, gains or
losses arising from change in value of these contracts are deferred and
recognized in the period in which corresponding losses or gains from
transactions being hedged by such contracts are recognized. On the
other hand, we dao not use hedge accounting for hedging contracts
associated with our international tobacco operations and therefore rec-
ognize changes in value in derivative foreign exchange instruments
currently in eamings. This could result in a gain ot loss from fluctua-
rions in exchange rates related to a derivative contract. being recog-
nized in a period which may be different from the gain or loss recog-
nized from the underlying forecasted transaction.

For information about the contract or notional amounts of for-
eign currency forward contracts and currency option contracts out-
standing as at March 31, 2006 and 2005 that did not qualify for
hedge accounting, please see Note 17 to the audited consolidated
financial statements included in this annual report.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006

Assets

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
(Note 2)
2005 2006 2006

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)

¥ 820087 ¥ 920142 $ 7,833

Short-term investments (Note 3) 34536 o 59,516 507
'-T'rz;c‘le notes and accounLé receivable » 126067 N 134,183 N 1.142
Inventories (Note 6) 432,827 406,832 3463
Orhcr current assets (Note 8) 83,903 89257 760
Allowance for doubtful accounts (902 (e s
" Total current assets 1504448 1,608,154 13.690

Property. plant and equipment (Note 7):

Land 170,947 138,672 1,180

Bui]d'u“xgs and structures 028,149 603,224 T 535

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 503175 528,186 4,496
e S S 33550 308 e
Construction in progress 20,402 21715 185

Total

1,545,223 1,503.831 12.802

hecumlaied depreciation - ovssas T
Net property, plant and equipment 639,655 5.078

Investments and other assets:

Investment securities (Note 5) 74,840 105,363 897
lnvestrn_c;u{lhandadvanca tvo‘ﬁﬁconnsolidéted sﬁbsidiar'les"anélv associated companies 3,812 T “"2,664 23
Trademarks ' S 711524 190,587 1,622

Goodwill 321414 355184 3,024

Deferred tax assets (Note 8) 151,875 102,902 376

Other assets ' 80,131 77805 663

Allowance for doubtful accounts (‘3,003) (1 2‘33) o () ] )I )

Allowance for léss on investments (640) (531) ‘ (3)

Total investments and other assets 837,953 832,681 7.089

Total

¥ 2982056 ¥3.037.379 $ 25857

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Miltions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
(Note 2)
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 2005 2006 2006
Current liabilities:
Short-term bank loans (Nou 7) ¥ 26885 ¥ 33292 $ 283
Carrent p pomon of Ionq term debt (Note 7) S S '18,8?2 18:204 T ss
Tobacco excise taxes payab e (Note 9) ‘ ‘ - 188,955 176,160 1,500
Trade notes and accounts payable - . C 111299 137455 170
Other payable (Note 10) - 236524 119675 1019
Income taxes payable (Note 8) I R . 41804 31992 272
Accrued e employees bonuses 30,309 235
‘Consumptlon taxes payable “ ‘ ‘ - . . 27, 705 240
o Newsy e T o
Total current liabilities 742,339 626.356 5.332
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt (I\ote 7) 185,019 165.112 1.406
"Liabilities f for retirement bgnuﬁrs (Note ]0) o ‘ 289,016 o 293 425 2498
VDefETIEd tax hdblhtltﬂ (Notc 8) o o o “‘44,246 46 178 393
Non-current other payable B N ‘ 1'38,206 54,876 467
>Other non-current liabilities H o ” 31,430 . 31,359 267
Total non-current liabilies 687 917 590950 5.031
Minority interests 53,596 57,561 490
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 14)
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 11 and 18):
Common stock ~ authorized, 8,000,000 shares;

Issued, 2,000,000 shares in 2005 and 2006 100,000 100,000 851
Capital sarplos e e T e W 366"
Retained eamnings 805927 972 512 o 8279
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities " - - 16:888 35532 302
%ﬁireignﬂ éurr‘eﬁ‘cyb translation adjﬁsl.memsl » “ ‘ (86,433) (7.354) (c2)

Total 1 5 /2,782 ] 837 000 ] D 639

a'reasury stock, at cost — 83 984 shares in 2005 and 2006 h o (74 578) o (74 77& (63‘3)

Total shareholders’ euity 1,468 204 1,762,512 15,004

Total ¥2982,056 ¥3037379 § 23.857
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Millions of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
(Note 2)
2004 2005 2006 2006
Net sales ¥ 4,625,151 ¥4664514 ¥ 4,637,657 $ 39,480
Cost of sales (Note 9) 3684013 3713725 3734074 31788
Gross profit 041,138 950,789 Q03,583 7.692
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 12) 707,104 677,418 596,637 5079
Qperating income 234,034 273,371 306,946 2,613
Other income (expenses):
Interest and dividend income 3,243 3,316 5,910 350
Gain on disposition of property, plant and equipment-net (Note 15) 1,464 57,458 22881 194
Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Note 15) ‘ (53) (182) (11.439) Q7)
Interest e}(penée (Nofe ) ) (8,1.»‘1-3) o (5147) o (5‘.77'6') (49)
“_C“h‘arge for recognition of obligations under the Public -
Official Mutual Assistance Association Law (Note 3 o)) (185,093) — —_ —_
Business restructuring costs (Notes 10 and 15) (40,819) (224848  (8.009) (68)
Other—net (Note 15) R (12.239) (2.635) ©50) 8L
Other expenses-net (241.,642) (172,038) (5.953) [G28]
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Minority Interests (7,608) 101,333 300,993 2,562
Income taxes (Note 8): ' - o
Current 67,488 70,071 49,686 423
Deferred (72,301) (38506) 45210 385
Total income taxes (4,813) 31,565 94,896 808
Income (Loss) Before Minority Interests (2,795) 69,768 206.097 1.754
Minority interests ‘ 4,808 7184 43555 3y
Net income {loss) ¥ (7,603) ¥ 62584 ¥ 201,542 $ 1,716
Yen U.S. dollars
2004 2005 2006 2006
Amounts per share:
Net income (loss) (Notes 3 n) and 18) ¥ 3967y ¥ 32080 ¥ 105085 $ 895
Cash dividends applicable to the year 10,000 13,000 16,000 136

See notes to consolidated financial staternents,
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Thousands Millions of yen
Number of ) ) Unrealized Foreign
shares of Common Capital Retained gain on currency Treasury
stock surplus carnings avatlable-for-  translation Stack
common stock sale securities  adjustments
Balance, April 1, 2003 2,000 ¥ 100,000 ¥7 ¥ 789,912 Y (6,200) ¥ —
et lose . = R Rt = R
Adjustments 1o retained earnings B
for change in scope of consolidation — - — 3,714 — e —
Minimum pension liability adjustment - b
of foreign consclidated subsidiaries — —_ — (D) _ _— —_
Ai?prol;;‘riau ons:
Cash dividends paid (¥11,000 per share) — — J— (22,000) — — J—
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors —_ — — v 247 —_ —_ —_
Repurchase of common stock (45 800 shares) — —_— — — — . (34,‘379)
Net increase in unrealized ‘ga‘m‘ o ‘ ' '
on available-tor-sale securities — — — — 11,554 — —
Net cl{a;xige”n-{ foréign currency uanslation adjustments — — —_ — — (65 ,556) —
Balance, March 31, 2004 2,000 100,000 736,400 763,770 14,186 (71,840) (34,579)
Net income v — — ‘ - 62,584 — — R
Adjustments to retained eaming“s“fdbr-dwnge
in scope of consolidation —_ — — (637) — — —
Minimum pension liability adjustment of v »
foreign consolidated subsidiaries — — — © — — —
Appropriations:
Cash dividends paid (¥10,000 per share) — — — (19,542) — — —
" Bonuses to directors and corpordte auditors _ —_ ) — ’ (2;3§) — —_ —
P;epurc]{étse of common stock (38,]84 shares) — — — —_ = i (39;999)
Net increase in unrealized gain on e
available-for-sale securities —_ — — — 2,702 — —
Nel(.hdnge in fbfeigri currency translation adjusrménrs — — — — —(14,593) —
Balance, March 31, 2005 2,000 100,000 736,400 805,927 16,888 (86.433) .‘(74,578)
Net income — - — W% — -
Minimum pension liability adjustment of T T
foreign consolidated subsidiaries — — — (5.981) — — —
_Apf;roﬁfialiohsf o o o » :
Cash dividends paid (¥15,000 per share) — —_— — (28 .740) — — —_
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors — — - (236) — — —_
Net increase in unrealized gélin on ‘ ‘ ' S . .
available-for-sale securities —_ — j— — 18,644 —_ —
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — - 79.079 —
Balance, March 31, 2006 2.000 ¥ 100,000 ¥736.400 YO972.512 ¥ 35532 ¥ (7.354) ¥ (745378)
Millions of US. dollars (Note 2)
Unirealized Foreign
Common Capital Retained gain on currency Treasury
stock surplus eamings available-for-  translation Stock
sale securities  adjustments
Balance, March 31, 2003 $ 851 § 6260 § 6861 3 143 ¢ (736) §  (63%)
Net income — - 1,7]6 ) —_ — —
"Minimum pensioflnllabilil)'f ad_j‘uslmem‘o‘f .
foreign consolidated subsidiaries - — (51 — — —
Appropriations:
Cash dividends paicl ($128 per share) — - (245) —_ — —
" Bonuses to directors and corpéfat.e auditors — —_ ’ (“2’) ' — — —
Net increase in unrealized gain on available for- sale securities — — — 159 — —
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — 674 —
Balance, March 31, 2006 $ 831 § 6269 $ 8279 S 302 % (62) & (635
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
(Note 2)
2004 2003 2006 2006
Operating Activities:
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests ¥ (7,608) ¥ 101,333 ¥ 300,993 5 2,562
Adjustmens for:
Income taxes paid (63,145) (73,037) (39,015) (502)
v Depreciation and amortlzanon other than good\wﬂ 133,228 125,862 124,855 1.063
" Accelerated deprunauon of property, plam and equtpmmt ‘ ‘ 14,188 e -
Amortization of goodwill 6,173 882 1.590 L4
" Gain on d1<p0\1t10n of property plant and eqmpmcnt ' o o - (] 464) (57,458) (22 881)" o (1094)
Loss on impairment of long-lived assels 53 182 11 439 97
" Write-down ohnvestment secunncs o 460 o 362 1 o
'Change in assets and liabilites: B o ‘ -
Decrease (increase) in trade notes and accounts receivable 7,101 (4 ‘+’23) 765 7
Decrease in inventories o ‘ ‘ ' 23,798 16995 44,091 375
Increase (decrca%) in tobacco excise laxes payable o o o 18 747 (10 736) . (13.973) (119)
Increase (dccrcasc) in trade notes and accounts pqyable o 877). » 4,507 B 20,260 ‘ Can
Increase (decrease) in other payable 27,224 141,778 (125.689) (1.070)
" Increase (decruﬁe) in liabilities tor retirement benefits “ ' 147,153 (DS,Q?S)M N (6. SQD (56) '
Increase (decrease) in ong -lerm buarauuce deposu recelved R (530) (26,224) ) 631 5
" ncrease (decrease) in non- current other payable v ) ]4,‘234 12 2 24—4 (8'/,377) v ) (744)7
" Other — net - 16,766 4,461 (38,766) (330)
Total adjustments 342,109 149,507 (150.650) (1.282)
Net cash provided by operating activities 334,501 250,840 150343 1,280
Investing Activities:
Purchases of short-term investments (262,554) (57.,56Q) (146,467) {1.247)
Proceeds {rom sale and recIempnon of short-term investments v 86,961 222414 122118 1040
Purchases of investment securities . (226) (767D (2.734) (23)
Proceeds from sale and rLdmeuon of investment suurmcs i 14,860 3,064 4342 37
Purchases of property, plant and equipment o T (84,214) (71,997) (82.850) (703)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment o 25,288 36,448 82.147 699
Proceeds from sale of beneficial interest in real estate trurst o “ —_— 65,100 — ‘ —
Purchases of trademarks and other assets » (4,982) (7.964) _(8Y60) _(76)
Purchases of shares of newly consolidated o - o - o
subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (13%) — (1,400 12)
Other —net '  (3.618) (79200 7452 63
Net cash used in investing activities (228,620) 176914 (26,358) (224)
Financing Activities:
Net increase in short-term bank loans 6,190 4935 1,552 13
Proceeds from issuance ofnllo‘ng~lerr'ﬁv debt ' 1,349 » 237 — —
Repayments of long-term debt “ (60.166)  (147,135) (19,474)  (166)
Dividends pdld i o (22,000) (19,542) o (>28.740) N (245) )
Dividends paid to mmomy >hareholdcr> o o o (1 ,~788) » (1,827) v(-l ,468} ) o ( 12)
Repurchdse of common sLocl\ o i (34,579) (39,999) . .
Other — net ‘ o o 1,659 ‘ 1135 ' ' (5). . )
Net cash used in financing activities (109,335) (202,196) (48.135) (410)
Cash and Cash Equivalents of Newly Consolidated
Subsidiaries, Beginning of Year k 6.860 — —_— —
P oreign Lurrcm\ Translation Adjustments » »
on Cash and Cash Egquivalents (4,390) 1,868 15.205 129
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (984) 227,426 91,055 775
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year » 602,645 601,661 829.087 7.058
Cash and Cash Equivalents. End of Year ¥ 601,661 ¥ 829,087 ¥ 920.142 5 7,833
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Japan Tobacco Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. Business

Japan Tobaccoe Inc. (“]T") is a joint stock corporation
(kabushikikaiska) incorporated under the Commercial Code of Japan
(the “Code”) pursuant to the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law (the “JT Law”).
JT is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale of tobacco prod-
ucts in the domestic and international markets as one of the largest
producers of tobacco products in the world. The total sales of ciga-
rettes of JT and its consolidated subsidiaries (the *JT Group”) in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, excluding tobacco products pur-
chased from overseas tobacco manufacturers and sold 10 vetail stores
through its logistic subsidiary, TS Network Co., Ltd. (“TS Network”),
was 412.9 billion cigarettes (189.4 billien cigarettes (45.9%) in the
domestic market; 3.2 billion cigarettes (0.8%) in the domestic duty-
free market and the markets in Ching, Hong Kong, and Macau where
JT operates in the tobacco business; and 220.3 billion cigarettes
(53.3%) in other overseas markets).

In the domestic tobacco market, JT manufactures and sells its
tobacco products to retail stores all over the country in accordance
with the Tobacco Business Law. The Tobacco Business Law provides
that (1) JT shall be the sole manufacturer of tobacco products in
Japan and (2) the maximum wholesale price of each tobacco product
manufactured and sold and the retail price of every product sold in
Japan, as well as any changes in these prices, shall be approved by the
Minister of Finance. The products are transported from its factories to
its distribution bases by its logistic subsidiary, JT Logistics Co., Ltd.,
and then distributed to the retail stores through TS Network which
also purchases and sells tobacco products of foreign tobacco manu-
facturers to retail stores as wholesalers in the domestic market.

JT greatly expanded its international tobacco business through
the acquisition of the non-U.S. tobacco operations of RJR Nabisco,
Inc. ("RJR Nabisco”) on May 12, 1599, In connection with this acqui-
sition, JT paid $5.0 billion to purchase the non-U.S. tebacco opera-
tions of RJR Nabisco, which resulted in $3.5 hillion of goodwill, and
JT also acquired non-U.S. tobacco-related trademarks and intellectual
property for $2.7 billion and other assets for $0.1 billion. The acqui-
sition, totaling $7.8 billion, was financed by a syndicate loan of $5.0
billion, which was refinanced through domestic and foreign bond
issues and long-term loans from banks and insurance companies, and
$2.8 billion in cash. JT repaid in full the long-term loans from banks
and redeemed foreign bonds by July 2004. JT has been constantly
repaying long-term loans from insurance companies, Domestic bonds
are expected to be redeemed in June 2009. As a result of this acquisi-
tion, JT obtained expanded access to overseas markets, especially in
Europe and Russia, and the rights in substantially all countries out-
side the United States to internationally recognized trademarks such
as Camel, Winston and Salem, which currently comprise JT's global
flagship brands along with Mild Seven, which JT developed. JT
International S.A. (“JTISA™) and other consolidated subsidiaries of JT

International Holding B.V. (JT Intemational”), a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of JT, conduet the overseas tobacco business of the JT Group.

Mitsubishi Corporation (“*Mitsubishi™) (except for Okinawa
Prefecture) and Kokuba-Gumi Co., Ltd. (“Kokuba") (Qkinawa)
imported the newly acquired brands such as Camel, Winston and
Salem, from JTISA to Japan, and sold them through TS Network (in
Okinawa, through Kokuba). The JT Group terminated its contracts
with Mitsubishi and Kokuba regarding import and distribution of
these products at the end of April 2005, and since then, JT imports,
manufactures and sells these products by itself in Japan.

Beginning in 1973, JT had manufactured and sold Marlboro
brand cigarettes in Japan under a license arrangement with Philip
Morris Products $.A. Upon the expiration of the license term in April
2003, JT ceased the production and sale of Marlboro brand cigarettes.

In addition to the tobacco business, the JT Group has diversified
into and is developing other business segments in the areas of phar-
maceutical and foods primarily through acquisitions, investments and
licensing arrangernents,

In the pharmaceutical business, the JT Group focuses on the
research and development of prescription drugs. In the domestic
market, Torii Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a majority of whose outstand-
ing shares JT acquired for ¥42 billion in December 1998, manufac-
tures and sells prescription drugs using its wide marketing network.
In the overseas market, JT principally receives royalties from licensing
arrangements of an anti-HIV drug.

In the foods business, the JT Group principally manufactures
and sells beverages, processed foods and seasonings in the domestic
market. As for chilled foods, the operation is mainly conducted
through its subsidiary, Mans Continental Smallgoods Pty, Ltd., in
Australia. JT's presence in the beverage market was substantially
expanded through the acquisition of a majority of the owstanding
shares of Unimat Corporation, a nationwide operator of soft drink
vending machines, later renamed as Japan Beverage Inc., for ¥29 bil-
lion in April and September 1998, Additionally, JT acquired the food
business of Asahi Kasei Corporation for ¥24 billion in July 1999.

According to the JT Law, JT must obtain approval from the
Minister of Finance for certain matters, such as (1) the issuance of
new shares (as well as subscription rights for new shares (shinkabuy-
oyahuken) and bonds with subscription rights for new shares) and (2)
the resolution of shareholders meetings for any amendments to the
Articles of Incorporation and appropriations of retained earnings.
Pursuant to the |T Law, the Japanese government is required to hold
one-half or more of JT's shares which were originally issued upon the
establishiment of )T in 1985. The JT Law also authorizes JT to issue
new shares to the extent that the number of shares held by the
Minister of Finance continues to account for more than one-third of
the issued shares.
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2. Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been pre-
pared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan and in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Securities
and Exchange Law of Japan and its related accounting regulations
(collectively, the “Securities Law™), which are different in certain
respects from application and disclosure requirements of accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S.
GAAP”) and International Financial Reporting Standards. In the case
of mest foreign consolidated subsidiaries, their financial statements
are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP (see 3(m) Foreign
Consolidated Subsidiaries) and are included in the consolidated
financial statements on that basis.

In preparing these consolidated (inancial statements certain
reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consoli-
dated financial statements issued domestically in order to present

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In
addition, the notes to the consolidated {inancial staterments include
information which is not required under accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in Japan but is presented herein as additional informa-
tion. Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have
been made to conform with classifications for the year ended March
31.2006.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen,
the currency of the country in which JT is incorporated and operates.
The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dellar amounts
are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and
have been made at the rate of ¥117.47 to $1, the rate of exchange at
March 31, 2006. Such translations should not be construed as repre-
sentations that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into
U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2006 include
the accounts of JT and its 157 significant (188 as of March 31, 2004
and 160 as of March 31, 2005) subsidiaries. The Company expanded
the scope of its consolidation to include substantially all subsidiaries
effective from the year ended March 31, 2004. During the year ended
March 31, 2005, the number of subsidiaries decreased due to the
mergers of subsidiaries within the consolidation scope, and also the
sale of subsidiaries of which businesses were categorized as “Others”
industry segment. Consolidation of the remaining unconsolidated
subsidiaries would not have had a material effect on the accompany-
ing consolidated financial statements. Most foreign consolidated sub-
sidiaries have a December 31 fiscal year-end, which differs from the
March 31 fiscal year-end of JT. Any necessary adjustments for the
three-month period are made for conselidation purposes.

Investments in 11 material associated companies (nine as of
March 31, 2004 and ten as of March 31, 2005) are accounted for by
the equity method. The equity method is not applied to account for
the investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and the remaining
associated companies, since the effect on the accompanying consoli-
dated financial statements would not have been material. Investments
in the unconsolidated subsidiaries and the remaining associated com-
panies are stated at cost (see (¢) Securities).

All significant inter-company balances and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized gains result-
ing from inter-company transactions have been eliminated.

The excess of the cost of the Company’s vestments in consoli-
dated subsidiaries over its equity in (prior to April 1, 1999) or the fair
value of (from April 1, 1999) the net assets purchased at the date of
acquisition is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is amortized on a
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straight-line basis over five to twenty years except for that recorded at
JT International Group (see (in) Foreign Consolidated Subsidiaries).
Such amortization expense is included in selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses, however, insignificant goodwill is charged to
income when incurred.

b) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are all short-term, highly liquid investments that are
convertible to known amounts of cash and that have original maturi-
ties of three months or less.

¢) Securities
The Company’s securities are classified as held-to-matwity debt securities
or available-for-sale securities, depending on management's holding
intent. Held-to-maturity debt securities are repotted at amortized cost.
Avatlable-for-sale marketable securities are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate
compenent of shareholders” equity.  The cost of available-for-sale mar-
ketable securities sold is determined hased on the moving-average
method.  In addition, compound financial instruments. including
embedded derivatives which cannot be measured separately, are reported
at fair value in aggregate, with these gains and losses reported in the con-
solidated statements of operations. Non-marketable available-for-sale
securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method.
For significant impairment in value which is judged unrecover-
able, carrying amounts of securities are reduced to fair value, with a
resulting charge to income. An allowance for loss on investments is
recorded to provide for the loss on investments in certain non-mar-
ketable equity accounted for by the cost method and is determined
based on the respective {inancial condition of the investees.



d) Inventories

Inventories are stated principally at average cost. In addition, leal
tobacco held by JT is subject to devaluation (see Note 6). Leaf tobac-
co is classified as a current asset, although part of such inventories,
due to the duration of the aging process, will not ordinarily be put
into production within one year.

e) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated ar cost. Under certain condi-
tions, such as exchanges of similar fixed assets, sales and purchases
resulting from expropriation and acquisitions made with the benefit of a
government subsidy. Japanese tax laws permit companies to defer the
profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost of the assets
acquired or by providing a special reserve in shareholders” equity. The
provision and the reversal of the special reserve are made through appro-
priation of retained eamings. The costs of the acquired assets resulting
from expropriation for the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2005 were
reduced by ¥8,719 million and ¥17 396 million, respectively.

Depreciation is generally computed using the declining-balance
method while the straight-line method is applied to buildings
acquired after April 1, 1998. The useful lives of buildings and struc-
tures, and machinery, equipment and vehicles are principally from
38 to 50 years and 8 years, respectively.

The Group adopted the new accounting standard for impair-
ment of fixed assets as of April 1, 2005 (see (0) Accounting Change
{2) The adoption of new accounting standards).

f) Intangible Assets
Trademarks are carried at cost less accunuilated amortization, which
is calculated by the straight-line method principally over 10 years.

g) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income
or loss included in the consolidated statements of operations. The asset
and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and labili-
ties for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.
and tax operating loss and other credlit carry-forwards. Deferred taxes
are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the temporary
differences, tax operating loss and other credit carry-forwards. A valua-
tion allowance is provided for any portion of the deferred tax assets
where it is considered more likely than not that they will not be realized.

h) Liabilities for Retirement Benefits

(1) Employees retivement benefits

JT has an unfunded severance indemmity plan and a cash balance
penision plan (the “Pension Plans”) as well as a defined contribution
plan, which cover substantially all of its employees (including execu-
tive officers who are not directors). lts consolidated subsidiaries prin-
cipally have unfunded severance indemnity plans and/or non-con-
tributory defined pension plans.

The Pension Plans and the subsidiaries’ plans are stated based on
actuarially estimated retirement benefit obligations, considering the
estimated fair value of plan assets at each balance sheet date. Certain
domestic subsidiaries apply a simplified method, under which retire-
ment benefit obligations are recorded based on the amount required
if all employees terminated their employment as of the balance sheet
date. Contributions to the defined contribution plan are charged to
expenses when they are paid ot accrued.

Liabilities for retirement benetits to directors and corporate audi-
tors are provided at the amount which would be required if all direc-
tors and corporate auditors retired at each balance sheet date.

(2) Obligations under the Public Official Mutual Assistance

Association Law
As a formerly wholly government-owned company, JT is obligated by
the Public Official Mutual Assistance Association Law to reimburse
the Japanese government for pension expenses incurred each year by
the government for former employees of Japan Tobacco and Salt
Public Corporation, JT's predecessor entity, and others for their serv-
ices during certain periods before July 1, 1956. Effective April 1,
2003, such obligations have been recognized as a liability at their
present value using the actuarially determined computation method.
Prior to April 1, 2003, they were charged to expenses based on the
annual cash payments in respect of claims for reimbursement
invoiced to JT by the Social Insurance Agency (see (0) Accounting
Change, (1) Change in accounting policies).

i) Leases

All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under Japanese
accounting standards for leases, finance leases that deemed to have
tansferred ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be
capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted
for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” informa-
tion is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements.

J) Appropriations of Retained Earnings
Appropriations of retained earnings are reflected in the financial state-
ments for the following year upon shareholders’ approval.

k) Foreign Currency Transactions

Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are
tanslated into Japanese yen at the rates prevailing at each balance
sheet date. The exchange gains or losses from wranslation are recog-
nized in the conselidated statements of operations to the extenr that
hedging derivative financial instruments tor foreign currency transac-
tions do not qualify for hedge accounting (see (1) Derivatives).

All assets and liabilities of foreign consolidated subsidiaries are
translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at each subsidiary’s
respective fiscal year end. All revenue and expense accounts are trans-
lated at average exchange rates during each subsidiary’s respective fis-
cal year. The resulting translation adjustments are reported as a sepa-
rate component of sharehelders’ equity.
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1) Derivatives

All derivatives, except for certain foreign exchange forward contracts,
foreign currency swap agreement and interest rate swaps described
below, are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at
fair value, and gains or losses on derivative transactions are recog-
nized in the consolidated staterments of operations. For derivatives
which qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation and
effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items,
gains or losses on derivatives are deferred until the corresponding
hedged items are recognized in earnings.

JTs trade payables denominated in foreign currencies hedged by
foreign exchange forward contracts and the 6.75% U.S. dollar bonds
repaid in July 2004 hedged by a foreign currency swap agreement
qualified for hedge accounting and were translated at the foreign
exchange rate stipulated in the contracts.

Interest rate swaps that qualify for hedge accounting and meet
specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value, but the
differential to be paid or received under the swap agreements are

accrued and included in intetest expense or income.

m) Foreign Consolidated Subsidiaries

JTISA and other foreign consolidated subsidiaries principally maintain

their accounting records in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The significant

accounting policies, which are different from JT°s policies, are as follows:

(1) Inventories

Inventories are generally stated at the lower of cost or market, cost

being determined by the first-in, first-out method or average cost.

(2) Propenty, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is generally computed

using the straight-line method over the estimated useful Jives of the

respective assets.

(3) Goodwill and trademarks

Goodwill arising from the acquisitions including fereign subsidiaries

of RJR Nabisco and recorded at )T International Group is not subject

to amortization but is tested for impairment at least annually.
Trademarks are principally amortized using straight-line method

over 40 years.

(4) Retirement benefit pension plans

1f the liability for retirement benefits already recognized is less than

the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation, an additional mini-

mum liability is recognized. The additional minimum liability is

charged directly 1o retained earnings, if such amount exceeds unrec-

ognized prior service cost, net of any tax benefits.

(5) Derivatives

All derivatives are used to hedge foreign exchange risk and are recog-

nized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measured

at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded in

current eamings for each fiscal year.
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n) Per Share Information

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income avail-
able to commen shareholders by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding in each peried, which was 1,977.100
shares for the year ended March 31, 2004, 1,942,901 shares for the
year ended March 31, 2005 and 1,916,016 shares for the year ended
March 31, 2006, not retroactively adjusted for stock split. Diluted net
income per share is not disclosed because there were no potentially
dilutive common shares that were outstanding during each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2006.

Cash dividends per share presented in the consolidated state-
ments of operations are dividends applicable to the respective years
including dividends te be paid after the end of the year, not retroac-
tively adjusted for stock split.

Upon the meeting of the board of directors held on February 27,
2006, ]T decided to split the company’s shares on five for one basis with
the effective date of April 1. 2006 (see Note 18 “Subsequent Events”).

o) Accounting Change

(1) Change in accounting policies

Accounting for the Obligations under the Public Official Mutual Assistance
Association Law —

Effective April 1, 2003, the Company changed its accounting policy
for certain obligations for annuity payments of the government-spon-
sored defined benefit pension plans. Its annuity-basis obligations
which are subject to the accounting change relate to pension benefits
to which beneficiaries are entitled for their services rendered up to July
1, 1956, as prescribed by the Public Official Mutual Assistance
Association Law. The change in accounting policy recognized this lia-
bility as part of the labilities for retirement benefits in light of the actu-
arially determined computation methods prescribed under the Revised
Accounting Standards for Independent Administrative Institutions,
which were applied to accounting for annuity obligations for govern-
ment-sponsored pension plans effective from April 1, 2003. Prior to
the change, annuity-basis contributions had been recorded as expens-
es when paid. In connection with this accounting change, the
Company tully recognized a liability as of April 1, 2003 and a related
charge of ¥185,095 million for the year ended March 31, 2004. As a
result of this change, operating income for the year ended March 31,
2004 increased ¥15,581 million and income before income taxes and
minority interest for the year ended March 31, 2004 decreased by
¥172,291 million as compared to under the previous method, which
resulted in a loss before income taxes and minority interest for the
year then ended. The effects of this accounting change on segment
information are disclosed on Note 16 “Segment Information”™.

(2) The adoption of new accounting standards

Accounting for Impairment of Fixed Assets —

In August 2002, the Business Accounting Council issued a Statement of
Opinion, “Accounting for Impairment of Fixed Assets”, and in October
2003 the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASB]") issued ASB]




Guidance No.6, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for Impairment of
Fixed Assets”. These new pronouncements are effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2005. The group adopted the new
accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets as of April 1, 2005.

The new accounting standard requires an entity to review its
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset
group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recog-
nized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the
sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The
impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the car-
rying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and even-
tual disposition of the asset or the net slling price at disposition.

The effect of adoption of the new accounting standard for
impairment of fixed assets was to decrease income before income
taxes and minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2006 by
¥11,192 million (395 million).

p) New Accounting Pronouncements

Business Combination and Business Separation —

In October 2003, the Business Accounting Council (BAC) issued a
Statement of Opinion, Accounting for Business Combinations, and
on December 27, 2005 the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
(ASB)) issued “Accounting Standard for Business Separations” and
ASB] Guidance No.10, “Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Business Separations”. These new
accounting pronouncements are effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after April 1, 2006.

The accounting standard for business combinations allows com-
panies to apply the pooling of interests method of accounting only
when certain specific criteria are met such that the business combina-
tion is essentially regarded as a uniting-of-interests.

These specific criteria are as follows:

(a) the consideration for the business combination consists solely of
common shares with voting rights,

(b) the ratio of voting rights of each predecessor shareholder group
after the business combination is nearly equal, and

(c) there are no other factors that would indicate any control exerted
by any shareholder group other than voting rights.

For business combinations that do not meet the uniting-of-interests

criteria, the business combination is considered to be an acquisition

and the purchase method of accounting is required. This standard

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

also prescribes the accounting for combinations of entities under
common control and for joint ventures. Goodwill, including negative
goodwill, is to be systematically amortized over 20 years or less, but
is also subject to an impairment test.

Under the accounting standard for business separations, in a
business separation where the interests of the investor no longer con-
tinue and the mvestment is settled, the difference berween the fair
value of the consideration received for the transferred business and
the book value of net assets transferted to the separated business is
recognized as a gain or loss on business separation in the statement of
operations. In a business separation where the interests of the
investor continue and the investment is not settled. no such gain or
lass on business separation is recognized.

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors -

Prior to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, bonuses to directors
and corporate auditors were accounted for as a reduction of retained
earnings in the fiscal year following approval at the general share-
holders meeting. The ASBJ issued ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force
(PITF) No.13, “Accounting treatment for bonuses to directors and
corporate auditors”, which encouraged companies to record bonuses
to directors and corporate auditors on the accrual basis with a related
charge to income, but still permitted the direct reduction of such
bonuses from retained earnings after approval of the appropriation of
retained earmings.

The ASB] replaced the above accounting pronouncement by
issuing a new accounting standard for bonuses to directors and cor-
porate auditors on November 29, 2005. Under the new accounting
standard, bonuses to directors and corporate auditors must be
expensed and are no longer allowed to be directly charged to retained
earnings. This accounting standard is effective for fiscal years ending
on or after May 1, 2006. The companies must accrue bonuses to
directors and corporate auditors at the year end to which such
bonuses are attributable.

Presentation of shareholders’ equity ~

On December 9, 2005, the Accounting Standards Board of fapan
(ASB]) published a new accounting standard for presentation of
shareholders’ equity. Under this accounting standard, certain items
which were previously presented as liabilities are now presented as
components of shareholders’ equity. Such items include stock acqui-
sition rights, minority interest, and any deferred gain or loss on deriv-
atives accounted for under hedge accounting. This standard is effec-
tive for fiscal years ending on or after May 1, 2006.

Cash and cash equivalents include gensaki transaction, securities purchased under repurchase agreements. The fair value of such securities
received as collateral from the counterparty at March 31, 2003 and 2006 were ¥19,924 million and ¥79,975 million (3681 million), respectively.
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5. Short-Term Investments and Investment Securities

Short-term investments and investment securities at March 31, 2005 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen Shslhgg].’lf;i -
2005 2006 2006
Short-term investments:
Time deposits ¥ 451 ¥ 497 $ 4
vvvvvv Corporate bords ol e 560
" Trust fund investments and other ' T ‘ o ‘ 4,004 402 3
Total ¥ 34,556 ¥ 59516 $ 507
Investment securities:
Equity securities ¥ 64,146 ¥ 92912 $ 791
" Government and Corporate bonds o ‘ ©2986 3036 26
Trust fund investments and other ' ‘ ‘ T o 7708 9,415 80
Total ¥ 74 840 ¥ 105,363 S 897

“Government and Corporate bonds” of Investment securities on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 include compound finan-
cial instruments whose gains and losses including those of embedded derivatives are recorded to the consolidated statements of operations.

The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable securities at March 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2005
Cost Unrealized gain ~ Unrealized loss Fair value

Available-for-sale

Equity securities ¥ 33,713 ¥ 28,190 Y 438 ¥ 61,465
" Corporate bonds 4,421 203 21 4,603

Trust fund investments and other - ' ‘ o 5420 ‘ 11,107‘4‘ h 14 7 6,489
Held—{;’rﬁ'a’ﬁl‘riiy e e e . e e . B T

Government bonds and municipal bonds 1,195 12 — 1,207

Others ‘ h 200 B - 201

Millions of yen

20006
Cost Unrealized gain ~ Unrealized loss Fair value
Available-for-sale
Equity securities ¥ 33016 ¥ 57.524 ¥ 253 ¥ 90.287
Corporate bonds » D+ 23T . 1 3 37,657
~ Trust fund investments and other ” 5,150 3,069 3 8216
Held-to-maturity i '
Government bonds and municipal bonds 1,497 0 10 1,487
" Others R ‘ o T JN R — 3 T 999
Millions of U.5. dollars
20006
Cost Unrealized gain  Unrealized loss Fairvalue
Available-for-sale
Equity securities $ 281 $ 489 $ 2 $ 768
Corporate bonds . ' 318 3 0 321
Trust fund investments and other o 44 26 0 70
Held-to-maturity o o ) - S
Government bonds and municipal bonds 13 Q o 13
Others ' 9 — 0 9
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The carrying amounts of non-marketable securities at March 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen 34 lsl_llg;ﬁ;i
2005 2006 2006
Available-for-sale
Equity securities ¥ 2.68] ¥ 2,625 s 22
" Corporate bonds 26990 21500 183
Trust fund investments and other 5,313 1,598 14
Total ¥ 34,993 ¥ 25723 $ 219

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities and related gross realized gains and losses on those sales, computed on the moving average
cost basis for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, were as follows:

Millions of yen g‘lghg&i:;
2004 2005 2006 2006
Proceeds from sales ¥ 6923 ¥ 2,878 ¥ 3,262 $ 28
Gross realized gains ¥ 480 ¥ 1,435 ¥ 950 $ 8
" Gross realized losses (983) o (342) () (V)]
Net realized gain (oss) ¥ O(B03) ¥1,113 ¥ 950 5 8

The amounts of securities classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity at March 31, 2006, based on their contractual maturity dates, were as follows:

Millions of yen Millions of U.$. dollars

Available for sale  Held-to-maturity ~ Available for sale Held-to-maturity

Due within one year

¥ 58.756 ¥ 300 $ 501 53

Due after one year through five years 2117 o117 18 10
“Due alter five years through ten years 54 — — -
Due after ten years — — — -
Total ¥ 60927 ¥ 1,497 $ 519 $13

For the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2006, write-downs of
securities including investments in affiliated companies totaled ¥505
million, ¥1,836 million and ¥11million ($0 million), respectively. In
evaluating securities values. a security, whose value has declined by

more than 50% 1s considered to have experienced “significant deteri-

oration.” A security, whose value has declined from 30% to 50% and
the impact on JT's financial position is material, is considered to have
experienced “significant deterioration.” If a security has a strong
chance of regaining its value, a security is not devaluated.

6. Inventories

Inventories at March 31, 2005 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen S%”lgg‘sl:é
2005 2006 2006
Leal tobacco ¥ 262,533 ¥ 274,549 $ 2337
Fimished products S ” S 55325 44512 379
Other T 84,069 87.771 747
Total ¥ 432 827 ¥ 406832 3 3,463

JT leaf tobacco inventory in excess of the minimum amount necessary for future production is subject to annual devaluation

. The net effect of
the change in the devaluation was debited (credited) to cost of sales as follows:

Millions of yen G{Lmj:)llsifri,
2004 2005 2006 2006
Net effect of the change in devaluation (credit) ) ¥(6,624) ¥ 9,856 ¥ 9,588 $ 82
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7. Short-term Bank Loans and Long-term Debt

Short-term bank loans as of March 31, 2005 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen Millions of

U.5. dollars
2005 2006 2006
Yen loans with interest rates of 0.46% to 1.50%
at March 31, 2005 and of 0.47% w0 1.50% at March 31, 2006 ¥ 1335 ¥ 300 $ 3
Forelgn currency loans with interest rares of 3.10% 10 9.30% " )
at March 31, 2005 and of 3.95% to 7.35% at March 31, 2006 25,550 32,992 280
Total ¥ 26,885 ¥ 33,292 $ 283
Long-term debt at March 31, 2005 and 2006 comprised the following:
Millions of yen thhggﬁa‘i
2005 2006 2006
1.98% yen bonds, due 2009 ° ¥ 150,000 ¥ 150,000 $ 1,277
fong-re rm bank loans due through 2014 53 831 33316 W
Total 203831 183316 1,561
Less current portion (18812) (18.204) W( 133)
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥ 185019 ¥ 165112 $ 1,406

JT entered into interest rate swap agreements in March 2004 to con-
vert interest payments on fixed rate 1.98% yen bonds due 2009 to
floating rate payments on a LIBOR basis, which was at 1.24% at
March 31 2005, in order to manage interest rate risks on these bonds.
Taking changes in market conditions into consideration, JT unwound
the above interest swap agreements in May 2005. Consequently, JT
pays fixed rate interest of 1.61%.

JT has also entered into currency swap agreements to fix
Japanese yen cash {lows on principal and interest payments of 6.75%
U.S. dollar bonds repaid in July 2004, under which JT paid 1.546%
Japanese yen interest in exchange for 6.75% U.S. dellar interest.

Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2006 were as follows:

Years ending March 31,

In addition, JT and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries
have entered into interest rate swap agreements to fix variable rate
interest payments on Japanese yen loans. The range of effective inter-
est rates for yen denominated long-term loans outstanding at March
31, 2005, after giving effect to such swap agreements, was 0.84% to
5.10%. Annual interest rates applicable to Japanese yen loans of JT
and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries at Mawch 31, 2006
ranged from 1.50% to 5.10%.

Annual interest rates applicable to long-term loans denominated
in foreign currencies outstanding at March 31, 2005 and 2006
ranged from 5.80% to 8.24% and 7.03% to 7.91%, respectively.

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

2007 ¥ 18,204 S 155
2008 10,927 93
2009 R0 7
2010 150,800 1,285
2011 1,168 10
2012 and thereafter 1,337 11

Total ¥ 183.316 $1.561

Under the JT Law, obligations created by the bonds issued by JT are
secured by a statutory preferential right over the property of JT. This
right entitles the holders thereof to claim satisfaction in preference to
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unsecured creditors (with the exception of national and local taxes
and certain other statutory obligations).




Substantially all of the short-term bank leans and long-term debt are unsecured. Secured loans and debt of certain consolidated subsidiaries at

March 31, 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Long-term bank loans

¥ 1514 $13
Others, principally short-term bank loans and bonds 660 6
Total ¥2174 $ 19

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for the above secured loans and debt at March 31, 2006 were as {ollews:

Millions of yen Millions of U.S. dollars

Buildings and structures

¥ 4.921 S 42

vMarciu'nery‘, equipxﬂém azﬁ@fehicles 7,781 ' 66
o ; R
Total ¥ 13,354 $ 114

General agreements with respective banks provide, as is customary in
Japan, that additional collateral must be provided under certain cir-
cumstances if requested by such banks and that certain banks have

8. Income Taxes

the right to offset cash deposited with them against any long-term or
short-term debt ot other debt payable to the banks. JT has never been
requested to provide additional collateral.

JT and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries are subject to Japanese
corporate tax, inhabitants tax and enterprise tax based on income
which, in the aggregate, resulted In a normal effective statutory tax
rate of approximately 41.75% for the year ended March 31, 2004 and

40.35% lor the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006. Foreign con-
solidated subsidiaries are subject to income taxes of the countries in
which they operate.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and loss carry-forwards which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2005

and 2006 were as [ollows:

Millions of

Millions of yen Us. dollars

2005 2006 2006

Deferred tax assets:

* Liabilities for émployees' retirement benefits ¥ 32486 ¥ 36526 $ 31
Obligations under the Public Official Mutual Assistance Association Law o 64‘,4(:5.5 C O se966 510
Net oberabting loss ca?ryforwards o o » o 23,322 19.638 167
Other payable for benefits to retired employees‘ v 81.787 30,356 258
Other 63,230 61.853 527
Less valuation allowance (25932) (14.110) (120

Total 239358 194229 1,653

Deferred tax liahilities:

" Deferred gaih on sales of fixed assets for income tax pu‘rp“o”se's >(39;143).- 7 (32079) o i (273)
Basis differences in assets acquired and liabilities assumed upon acq{f‘i.;llion (33,162) (36,433) (310)

SR T . ; ; R (26 260) (40,232 (343

Total (98,574) (108.744) (925)

Net deferred tax assets ¥ 140,784 ¥ 85,485 $ 728
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Net deferred tax assets at March 31, 2005 and 2006 were reflected on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the following captions:

Millions of yen G’I lﬁmjgﬁ:rts
2005 2006 2006
Other current assets ¥ 33177 ¥ 32,324 § 275
Deferred tax assets 151,875 102,902 876
QOther current liabilities (22) (356‘3; (_30}
Deferred tax liabilities (44246)  (46.178) (393)
Net deferred tax assets ¥ 140,784 ¥ B5S485 s 728

A teconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 and the actual effective tax

rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations was as follows:

2004 2005 2006

Normal effective statutory tax rate 41.75% 40.35% 40.35%
Tax rate difference appiied for fdrcigm consolidated subsidiaries 10196 (14.42)
“Tax credits 52.46 426
"Non-deductible expenses " (39.77) 519
Amortization of géodwﬂl not tax-deductible (33.83) 035
Lower tax rates applied for fiscal years beéihﬁing on or after Aprﬂ 1,2004 (40.‘863) ‘ — —
Other - net - (18.41) 3.04 (0.67)

Actual effective tax rate 63.27% 31.15% 31.53%

9. Tobacco Excise Taxes

JT is subject to national and local tobacco excise taxes (per unit tax) on
its tobacco products sold in the domestic market. JT's domestic distri-
bution service subsidiary is also subject to the local tobacco excise tax
(per unit tax) on its wholesale of foreign brand tobacco products pur-
chased from foreign tobacco manufacturers throngh importers, while
the national tobacco excise tax is paid and charged to this subsidiary
by importers. At March 31, 2006, subject to a few minor exceptions,
the national tobacco excise tax. the local tobacco excise tax and the
national tobacco special excise tax on cigareties are ¥3,126 per thou-
sand units, ¥3,946 per thousand units and ¥820 per thousand units,
respectively, for a total tobacco excise tax of ¥7,892 per thousand
units. Prior to the amendment of the tobacco excise tax law effective
July 1, 2003, the national tobacco excise tax, the local tobacco excise
tax and the national tobacco special excise tax on cigarettes were
¥2,716 per thousand units, ¥3,536 per thousand units and ¥820 per

10. Liabilities for Retirement Benefits

thousand units, respectively, for a total tobacco excise tax of ¥7,072
per thousand units. Foreign subsidiaries are also subject to excise taxes
on cigarettes sold in their domiciles. The aggregate amount of such
tobacco excise taxes included in cost of sales for the years ended
March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥2,605,343 million,
¥2 650,586 million and ¥2,628,878 million ($22,379 million),
respectively, including national tobacco excise taxes paid by importers
of ¥209 255 million, ¥283,787 million and ¥371,227 million ($3,160
million), respectively.

In accordance with the amendment of the tobacco excise tax
law, an increase in the national tohacco excise tax and the local tobac-
co excise tax on cigarettes will be implemented on July 1, 2006,
which will be reflected in the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2007.

{1) Employees’ retirement henefit

JT's unfunded severance indemnity plan and a cash balance pension
plan as well as a defined contribution plan, were implemented effec-
tive October 1, 2003 to replace the pre-existing defined benefit plans,
an unfunded severance indemnity plan and a non-contributory
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defined benefit penston plan. The newly-implemented unfunded sev-
erance indemnity plan provides lump-sum retirement benefits based
on credits earned in each year of service. Employees are entitled to
receive larger payments in certain circumstances such as involuntary
termination, retirement at the mandatory retitement age, voluntary




termination at certain specific ages prior to mandatory retirement age
or death. The cash balance pension plan provides retirement benefits
in the form of a lump-sum payment or annuity payments based on
current and past principal credits earned and interest credits over
time based on these principal credits.

Domestic consolidated subsidiaries principally have unfunded
severance indemnity plans and/or defined benefit pension plans cov-
ering substantially all of their employees, under which benefits are

provided based on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years of
service and certain other factors.

Foreign consolidated subsidiaries principally sponsor non-con-
tributery defined benefit pension plans covering most of their
employees. Plans covering regular full-time employees provide pen-
sion benefits based on credits, determined by age, years of service and
final average compensation before retirement.

The liabilities for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2005 and 2006 consisted of the following;

Millions of
U.5. dollars

2006

Millions of yen

2005

2006

Projected benefit obligations

Fair value of plan assets

¥(291964) ¥ (309.038) $ (2631

163,708 103,133 1,644
Funded status (128.256) (115,90%) {987)
ml]xru’eéo‘gnized actuarial netloss ‘ 16461 o 7Q+7 - 67
Uﬁrecognized prior service cost (726) (257) (2)
Loss on pérual termination of defined benefit plan (see Note 15) — (3.097) (26)
Net amount recognized (112.521) {(111.312) {948)
”Minimun‘l pension habilit); adjusmwrit; . “4.,537) (14,955) (12;/)
Prepaid pension cost o (12.193) (18,543) (158)
Liabilities for employees’ retirement benefits ¥(129.251) ¥ (144810 $ (1,233)

JT wansferted a portion of its unfunded severance indemnity plan to
a defined contribution plan on April 1, 2006, and thereby recognized
¥3,097 million for the year ended March 31. 2006 as other expense
which led to an increase of liabilities for retirement benefits by the

same amount in accordance with “Accounting for the Transfer
between Retirement Benefits Plans (ASB] Guidline No.1)” and
“Practical Solution on Accounting for Transfer Between Retirement
Benefit Plans (Practical lssues Task Forces Report No.2)".

Millions of yen Miflions of

U.5. dollars
2006 2006
Settlement of projected benefit obligations ¥ 4,567 $ 39
Pnor S;;;’ICC co<t recogmﬁié& in eamiﬁgs (1-5595 (2)
Actuarial gain recognized in eamings 139 1
Decrease in liabilities for retirement benefits +.507 38
Related assets due to be transferred to defined contribution plan (7,'(;074) ) 7{64)
Loss on partial termination of defined benefit plan ¥ (3,097) $ (26)

Related assets of ¥7.604 million ($64 million) due to be transferred to defined contribution plan will be paid in instaliments by 2009,

The components of net periodic retirement benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen SA ;“ﬁgﬁ:li
2004 2005 2006 2006
Service cost ¥ 16 947 ¥13015 ¥ 9278 $ 79
Interest cost 12,399 11,282 9,409 80
prectcd return on“plékll assets (4,410) ‘(4'72‘0)‘ " (5,823) (507
Recognized actuarial loss 17,125 3378 171815
Amortization of prior service cost 2696 526 541 5
Net periodic retirement henefit costs ¥ 44757 ¥ 23481 ¥ 15123 $ 129
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Significant assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2006 were as follows:

2004 2005 20006
Discount rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.0% 2.0% 2.5%

Actuarial gains or losses that result from changes in plan experience
and actuarial assumptions are principally amortized over 10 years.
The amortization period for the prior service cost that resulted from
retroactive application of a plan amendment is principally 10 years,
The retirement benefit attributable to each year is calculated by
assigning the same amount of pension benefits to each year of service.

In connection with the implementation of the defined contribu-
tion plan at October 1, 2003, JT partially terminated its pre-existing
defined benefit plans and recognized a gain of ¥9.870 million with
the following effects reflected in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2004.

Millions of yen

2004
Setlement of projected benefit obligations ¥ 52,321
Prior service cost recognized in éamiﬁgs (1,003)
Actuarial loss reéogllized in earnings ' (8,798
Withdrawal of plan assets for initial contributions (14,718)
Decrease in liabilities for retirement benefits 27,802
Related assets due to be transferred to defined contribution plan (17932
Gain on partial termination of the defined benefit plan ¥ 9870

Related assets of ¥17,932 million due to be transferred to defined
contribution plan have been paid in installments through 2006,

The Company's contributions, including those of certain foreign
consolidated subsidiaries, to the defined contribution plans which
were charged to expenses for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005
and 2006 were ¥1,332 million, ¥2,750 million and ¥2.212 mil-
lion($19 million), respectively.

In accordance with the Defined Benefit Pension Plan Law enacted
in April 2002, certain domestic subsidiaries applied during the year
ended March 31, 2004 for exemption from obligations to pay benefits
for future employee services refated to the substitutional portion of the
National Welfare Pension, which resulted in the transfer of the pension
obligations and related assets to the government during the year ended
March 31, 2005. The domestic subsidiaries obtained approval for
exemption from the future obligation by the Ministry of Health, Labor
and Welfare on December 19, 2003 and recognized a gain on exemp-
tion from the future pension obligation of the governmental program in
the amount of ¥1,357 million for the year ended March 31, 2004.

JT has offered additional retirement benefits to its employees
under the eatly retirement programs as a part of various business
restructuring efforts in order to rationalize operating efficiencies in

administrative and other headquarter functions and to reduce costs in
the domestic tobacco business. These efforts principally related to clo-
sure of four factories and integration of the leaf tobacco purchase func-
tions in 2004, closure of eight cigarette factories and company-wide
offering of early retirement plan to employees who are age 40 or clder
with more than 15 years of services in 2005 and other business
restructuring in 2006. Certain domestic and foreign subsidiaries also
provided additional retirement benefits for early-retired employees in
connection with the reorganization of demestic distribution operations
or rationalization of other businesses during these periods. These
restructuring activities resulted in recognition of additional retirement
benefits as business restructuring costs of ¥29,688 million, ¥209,540
million and ¥8,557 million ($73 million) for the years ended March
31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, which included a one-time
charge for the unrecognized actuarial net loss and unrecognized prior
service cost attributable to the employees who retired earlier than
expected during the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

Due to the retirement of a large number of employees in 2005,
JT applied the accounting standard for partial termination of defined
benefit plans with the following effects reflected in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Millions of yen

2005
Settlement of projected benefit obligations ¥ 88,695
Prior service cost recogniied in eafnings . (62.5) “
Actuarial loss recognized in earnings » 70
Decrease in liabilities for retivement benefits ¥ 88,000
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Related payables to employees who applied the early retirement pro-
grams including additional retirement benefits of ] T were reported as
other payable and non-current other payable, which would be paid
over by 2008.

Certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries participate in multi-
employer contributory pension plans, the required conuributions to
which are recognized as a net pension cost for the year. Plan assets allo-
cated based on amounts contributed as of March 31, 2005 and 2006
were ¥4,348 million and ¥5,346 million ($46 million), respectively.

Certain foreign consolidated subsidiaties also provide certain
health and life insurance benefits for retired employees and their
dependents.

The retirement benefits paid to directors and corporate auditors
are subject to approval by resolution at the shareholders meeting. The
Company’s liabilities for retirement benefits for directors and corpo-
rate auditors as of March 31, 2005 and 2006 were ¥958 million and
¥900 million ($8 million), respectively.

(2) Obligation under the Public Official Assistance Association Law
Employees of ] T, including {ormer employees of Japan Tobacco and
Salt Public Corporation (*JTSPC™), IT's predecessor entity before the
privatization in 1985, and others, are entitled to receive benefits
under the government-sponsored pension plan by the Public Official
Mutual Assistance Association Law (the “Law”). The benefits, in the
form of lifetime annuity payments by the Social Insurance Agency,
are determined based on the standard pay rate, the length of service
and other factors, As a formerly wholly government-owned company,
JT is obligated by the Law to reimburse the Japanese government for
pension expenses incurred each year by the government in respect of
former employees of JTSPC and others for their services during cer-
tain periods before July 1, 1956, the enactment date of the Law.

Such obligations were first recorded as liabilities at April 1, 2003
based on the actuarially determined computation method. Any actu-
arial gain or loss arising subsequent to April 1, 2003 is deferred and
amortized over 10 years.

The liabilities and costs recognized for such obligations as of and {or the year ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were as follows:

Millions of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2005 2006 2006
Benefit obligations ¥ (165878) ¥ (152.534) $(1.,298)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 6,113 3919 33
Liabilities recognized ¥ (159,765) ¥ (148,615) $(1,265)
e Millions of
Millions of yen U.s dollars
2004 2005 2006 2006
terest cost ¥2,776 ¥ 2,546 ¥ 2,488 %21
ecognized actuarial (gain) loss — (254) 586 5
Net periodic costs ¥2,776 ¥ 2,292 ¥ 3074 $ 26

The assumed discount rate used in the actuarial computation for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was 1.5%.

11. Shareholders’ Equity

Japanese companies are subject to the Code.

The Code requires that all shares of common stock are recorded
with ne par value and at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is
required to be recorded as common stock and the remaining net pro-
ceeds as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital sur-
plus. The Code permits Japanese companies, upon approval of the
Board of Directors, to issue shares to existing shareholders without
consideration as a stock split. Such issuance of shares generally does
not give rise to changes within the shareholders® accounts.

The Code also provides that an amount at least equal to 10% of
the aggregate amount of cash dividends and certain other appropria-
tions of retained earnings associated with cash outlays applicable to

each period shall be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of

retained earnings) until such reserve and additional paid-in capisal
equals 25% of common stock. The amount of total additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve that exceeds 25% of the common stock may
be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addi-
tion, the Code permits the transfer of a portion of additional paid-in
capital and legal reserve to the commen stock by resolution of the
Board of Directors. JT’s legal reserve amount, which is included in
retained eamnings, totals ¥18,776 million ($160 million) as of March
31,2005 and 2006.

The Code allows Japanese companies to purchase treasury stock
and dispose of such treasury stock upon resolution of the Board of
Directors.  The amount of treasury stock available for purchase can-
not exceed the amount available for future dividends plus the amount
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of common stock, additional paid-in capital or legal reserve that
could be transferred 10 retained earnings or other capital surplus
other than additional paid-in capital upon approval of such transfer
at the shareholders meeting,

Based on the resolutions by the general shareholders’ meeting
and the Board of Directors, JT repurchased 43,800 shares of its com-
mon stock [or a total repurchase price of ¥34,579 million, or
¥753,000 per share during the year ended March 31, 2004.

At the general shareholders’ meeting held on June 24, 2004, a
partial revision of ]T’s articles of incorporation was approved so that
JT shares can be repurchased by the resolutions by the Board of
Directors’ resolutions. Following this amendment, at the meeting of
the Board of Directors of JT held on October 29, 2004 it approved
repurchasing JT's common stock up to 435,000 shares or ¥40 billion
during the period {rom November 1, 2004 to March 24, 2005, and
JT repurchased 38,184 shares of its common stock for a total repur-
chase price of ¥39,999 million, or average of ¥1.047,538 by March
24,2005.

Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held
subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends are applicable.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid upon a resolution
of the Board of Directors, subject to certain limitations imposed by
the Code.

Under the Code, the amount available for dividends is based on
retained eamings as recorded on JT’s books. At March 31, 2006, the
amount of retained earnings available for future dividends subject to
the approval of the shareholders as well as the Minister of Finance
under the JT Law was ¥753,534 million ($6.432 million).

The Special Taxation Measures Law in Japan permits companies
to take as tax deductions certain reserves if provided through an
appropriation of retained earnings. Under Japanese tax laws, these
reserves must be reversed to income in future years. The deferred
gain on sales of fixed assets, net on tax effects, ncluded in “Retained
earnings” provided under the Special Taxation Measures Law at
March 31, 2005 and 2006 was ¥62,370 million and ¥61,354 million
($522 million), respectively.

Upon the meeting of the board of directors held on February 27,
2006, JT decided to split the company’s shares on five for one basis
with the effective date of April 1, 2006 (see Note 18 “Subsequent
Events”™).

On May 1, 2006, a new corporate law (the “Corporate Law”
became eftective, which reformed and replaced the Code with various
revisions that would, for the most part, be applicable to events or
transactions which occur on or after May 1, 2006 and for the fiscal
years ending on or after May 1, 2006. The significant changes in the
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Corporate Law that affect financial and accounting matters are sum-
marized below:

(a) Dividends
Under the Corporate Law, companies can pay dividends at any time
during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon reso-
lution at the shareholders meeting. For companies that meet certain
criteria such as: (1) having the Board of Directors, (2) having inde-
pendent auditors, (3) having the Board of Corporate Auditors, and
(4) the term of service of the directors is prescribed as one year rather
than two years of normal term by its articles of incorporation, the
Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends in
kind) if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorperation.
Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon
resolution by the Board of Directors, Under the Code, certain limita-
tions were imposed on the amount of capital surplus and retained
eamnings available for dividends. The Corporate Law also provides cer-
tain limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase
of treasury stock,

(b) Increases / decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve
and surplus

The Corporate Law requires that an amount equal to 10% of divi-
dends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of
retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component of
capital surplus) depending on the capital account charged at the pay-
ment of such dividends until the aggregate amount of legal reserve
and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of comumon stock. Under
the Code, the aggregate amount of additional paid-in capital and legal
reserve that exceeds 25% of the common stock may be made avail-
able for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. Under the
Corporate Law, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and
legal reserve may be reversed without limitation of such threshold.
The Corporate Law also provides that common stock, legal reserve,
additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained eamings
can be transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon
resolution of the shareholders.

(¢) Treasury stock

The Corporate Law alse provides for companies to purchase treasury
stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of
Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed
the amount available for distribution to the shareholders which is
determined by specific formula.




12. Research and Development Costs and Advertising Costs

Research and development costs charged to expenses as incurred for
the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥42.226 mil-
lion, ¥40,541 million and ¥37,505 million ($319 million), respectively.

Advertising costs were charged to expenses as incurred and

13. Lease Transactions

totaled ¥177.116 million, ¥167.608 million and ¥ 166,093 million
($1,414 million) for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006, respectively.

The Company. as a lessee, leases certain vehicles, vending machines
and other assets. Total rental expenses under the above leases for the
years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were ¥5.810 million,
¥5,559 million and ¥5,117million ($44 million). respectively.

Pro forma information of leased property, such as acquisition
cost, accurmulated depreciation and obligations under finance leases
that do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on
an “as if capitalized” basis at March 31, 2005 and 2006 was as fellows:

Millions of yen Millions of

U.S. dollars
2005 2006 2006
Acquisition cost:
Machinery, equipment and vehicles ¥ 5392 ¥ 4722 3 40
Tools 20,261 17,769 151
Others 2,464 2,455 21
Total acquisition cost 28,117 24,946 212
Accumulated depreciation 13,338 12277 104
Net leased property ¥ 14,779 ¥ 12.669 $ 108
The abeve acquisition cost includes related interest expenses.
Millions of yen gismgéﬁ:ri
2005 2006 2006
Obligations under finance leases:
Due within one year ¥ 4946 ¥ 4,182 $ 36
Due after one year 9,832 8,487 72
Total ¥14,778 ¥ 12,669 5108

The above obligations under finance leases included related interest
expenses. Pro forma depreciation expenses for the years ended March
31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, which have not been reflected in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations, computed by
the straight-line method, were ¥5 810 million, ¥5,559 million and
¥5,117 million ($44 million), respectively.

The minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating lease at March 31, 2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen g}{;“‘ggﬁi;
2005 2006 2006
Due within one year ¥ 4262 Y 4.189 $ 36
‘Due after one year 8962 10,151 86
Total ¥13,224 ¥ 14,340 $ 122
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The Company, as a lessor, leases certain computer equipment and
other assets. Total lease revenue under the above leases for the years
ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was ¥411 million, ¥377 mil-
lion and ¥279 million ($2 million), respectively,

Information of leased property included in the accompanying
financial statements, such as acquisition cost, accumulated deprecia-
tion and claims under finance leases that do not transfer ownership
of the leased property to the lessee, at March 31, 2005 and 2006 was

as {ollows:

Millions of yen G‘I;lhg(r)\ﬁ;fs
2005 2006 2006
Acquisition cost:
Machinery, equipment and vehicles ¥ 729 ¥ 346 $ 5
eols e ‘ it 53 .
Total acquisition cost 1,850 1,209 11
Accumulated depreciation 1,163 862 7
Net leased property ¥ 687 ¥ o437 $ 4
Millions of yen g] }s“lggﬁf;ls
2005 2006 2006
Claims under finance leases:
Due within one year ¥ 308 ¥ 187 $1
" Due after one ycar" » 459 o295 3
Total Y 767 Y 482 $ 4

The above claims under finance leases included related interest income.
Depreciation expenses for the years ended March 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 which have been reflected in the accompanying con-

14. Commitments and Contingencies

solidated statements of operations were ¥354 million, ¥335 million
and ¥250 million ($2 million), respectively.

{(As of May 23, 2006)
The Tobacco Business Law and related regulations govern JT's domes-
tic leaf tobacco procurement. The Tobacco Business Law requires JT
to enter into advance purchase contracts annually with each domestic
tobacco grower whao intends to cultivate leaf tobacce for sale to JT.
These contracts specily the total cultivation area for each variety of leaf
tobacco and the prices of leafl tobacco by variety and grade. JT is
obliged to purchase all leaf tobacco produced pursuant to these con-
tracts which is suitable for the manufacture of tobacco products.
Before conclusion of the contracts, ] T is required to consult with
the Leal Tobacco Deliberative Council (Hatabako shingi kai), a delib-
erative body organized under the Tobacco Business Law to provide
their opinion to JT as to the aggregate cultivation area for each variety
of leaf tobacco and the prices for leaf tobacco by variety and grade. J T
is legally required to respect the opinion of the council. The council is
charged with examining and deliberating important matters relating
to the production and purchase of domestically produced leal tobac-
co. The council consists of members appointed by JT with the
approval of the Minister of Finance from among representatives of
domestic leal tobacco growers and various academiic appointees. The
council is obliged to provide its opinion as to the appropriate prices
of leal tobacco based on the level which would allow continued

82 JT Annual Report 2006

domestic production of leaf tobacco, by taking into account econom-
ic conditions such as production costs and commodity prices.

Domestic tobacco growers typically entrust the Japan Tobacco
Growers Association (Zenkoku tabakokosaku kumiai chuo kai) with
negotiation of the fundamental terms of their contracts with JT. including
the purchase price of tobacco. JT enters inte a conumon agreement with
the association regarding fundamental contractual terms. The common
agreement also includes disaster relief provisions which require JT to pay
money to domestic tobacco growers whose tobacco plants or crops suffer
from natural disasters. Pursuant to these provisions and based on the
degree of damages, JT pays a maximum of 50% of the figure calculated
by multiplying each cultivator’s agreed cultivation area for the disaster
year by their average procurement price per acreage for previous years.

JT and its subsidiaries are involved in lawsuits filed by plaintiffs
claiming damage to their health allegedly caused by smoking or
exposure to tobacco smoke. Up to the present, JT and its subsidiaries
have never lost a case or paid any money to settle a case out of court.

At present, JT is involved domestically in the following lawsuit
related to smoking and health.

» Three smokers who contend that they developed diseases as a
result of smoking [iled a lawsuit on January 19, 2005 with the
Yokohama District Court against JT and the Government of Japan,




ete., asking for a total of ¥30 million in compensation for damages
and a strengthening of the wording of warnings placed on tobacco
products, ete. The first hearing in this case took place on April 20,
2005 and the case is still pending in the district court.

Lawsuits related to smoking and health in which JT subsidiaries are
invelved owtside Japan include damages claims filed by individuals,
medical expense recovery lawsuits filed by governments and insurers,
and class actions for damages and injunctive relief. As of the end of
May 2006, a total of 13 such lawsuits were pending in which JT or its
subsidiaries are named as a defendant or for which RJ Reynolds
Tobacco Company (RJR) has sought indemnification following JT's
acquisition of RJR Nabisco Inc's overseas (non-US) tobacco operations.

Among these smoking and health related lawsuits, there are three
actions in Canada: one is an action brought in January 2001 by the
Province of British Columbia against the nwjor cigarette companies,
including RIR and the Canadian subsidiary of T, JTI-Macdonald Corp
(*JTI- Macdonald™), seeking the recovery of health care costs allegedly
incurred as a result of the defendants’ asserted misconduct; the other
two lawsuits are class actions in Quebec against the major Canadian
cigarette companies, including JTl-Macdonald, authorized in February
2005 and filed in September 2005, The British Columbia action is
brought under a provincial statute enacted for this action. Several
defendants challenged the statute’s constitutionality.  This challenge
was [inally rejected by the Supreme Court of Canada in September
2005. For the time being, both the Quebec class actions and the
British Columbia action remain in early pre-trial proceedings with no
decision yet made as to JT1-Macdenald’s or RJR’s liability.

In November 2000, the European Community (the “EC”) com-
menced a civil action in the United States against various members of
the JT, R} Reynolds and Philip Morris groups claiming that they had
conspired to smuggle tobacco products, thereby reducing tax revenues
and harming other economic interests (‘EC I"). A federal district court
dismissed this case in July 2001, In August 2001, the EC and ten of its
Member States commenced a second civil action in the same court
against various members of the RJR and Philip Moris groups (“EC
1I"). The EC I was virtually identical to the earlier EC 1, except that
neither T nor any of its subsidiaries was included as a defendant and
the ten Member States were included as plaintiffs. In January 2002,
the EC and the ten Member States commenced a third civil action
identical in all material respects to EC 11 in the same court against,
inter alia, JT and several of its subsidiaries ("EC III"). The plaintiffs
did not (and still have not) served the JT-related entities. In February
2002, the district court entirely dismissed the EC 11 and EC 11T actions,
and in March 2002, the plaintiffs appealed the dismissal of both EC 11
and EC I to a federal court of appeals. In Qctober 2002, the EC and
the ten Member States conumenced a fourth similar civil action with
added allegations of money laundering in the same court against RJR
group {(“EC IV"). Neither JT nor any of its subsidiaries was named as a
defendant in EC V. In January 2004, the federal court of appeals
affirmed the district court’s dismissal of EC 11, but vacated the district

court’s dismissal of EC 111 because the district court lacked jurisdiction
over the JT-related entities. In April 2004, the EC 1l plaintiffs filed a
petition for writ of certiorari to the United States Supreme Court. In
May 2005, the Supreme Court summarily granted certiorari, vacated
the judgment of the lower court, and remanded the action to the fed-
eral court of appeals. In September 2005, the court of appeals reaf-
In November 2003, the
EC 11 plaintiffs again filed a petition for writ of certiorari to the United
States Supreme Couut, which was denied on January 9, 2006.

In August 2003, the Canadian government filed a civil action in
Ontario, Canada against RJR and its subsidiaries as well as JT and its
subsidiaries, including JT1-Macdonald, which was acquired by JT
when it took over the former non-U.S. tobacco operations of RJR
Nabisco Inc in 1999, mainly claiming damages allegedly suffered by

firmed the district court’s dismissal in EC 11.

the Canadian govemment in connection with the alleged illicit
importation of tobacco products into Canada.

In August 2004, JTI-Macdonald received a Notice of Assessment
from the Quebec Ministry of Revenue requiring immediate payment
of approximately 1.36 billion Canadian dollars (approximately
¥114.6 billion) on claims that it had allegedly contributed to tobacco
smuggling from 1990 to 1998. This amount consisted of allegedly
lost tobacco taxes, with penalties and interest.

If the assessed amount were not paid, JTI-Macdonald faced the risk
that it would not be able to continue its usual business operations in the
face of collection action by the Quebec Ministry of Revenue, Therefore,
in order to continue its operations, JT1-Macdonald filed a successful
application under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act
(“*CCAA™* with the Ontario Superior Cowrt of Justice. JTI-Macdonald
has since been continuing its business as usual under CCAA protection.

Filing for CCAA protection is not an admission that JTI-
Macdonald contributed to smuggling as claimed by the Quebec
Ministry of Revenue. JTI-Macdonald intends to challenge the tax
notice submitted by the Quebec Ministry of Revenue through all
appropriate means. Furthermore, in the evert that JTI-Macdonald
bears any damages or costs associated with this case, JT's view is that
it will be entitled to seek indemnification from RJR Nabisco Inc or its
successors, based on the contract signed between JT and RJR Nabisco
Inc and RJR at the time of JT's acquisition of JTI-Macdonald in 1999.

Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act

Companies doing business in Canada are eligible to seek protection
under the CCAA if they encounter a financial situation that creates
noticeable difficulities in their business operations. The CCAA’s
intent is to enable these companies to continue their operations
while restructuring.

Many Canadian companies have undergone restructuring
processes under the CCAA.  Unlike bankruptey proceedings, CCAA
proceedings are not undertaken for liquidation.

*The fundamental characteristics of the CCAA are as follows:
+ The company continues to manage and control its business and
property;
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* The CCAA is a very flexible law that can be tailored to fit the cii-
cumstances of each case;

+ The company may seek to restructure its businesses or deal with
contingent and other claims under cowrt protection with the assis-
tance of a court-appointed menitor;

* All lawsuits against the companies and other procedures are stayed,
and companies are able to continue their businesses and carry out
their restructuring;

* After the claims against the company are determined, the company
may put a Plan of Arrangement befere its creditors or some of them;

If creditors have agreed to the aforementioned plan and the
court approves it, it will be binding on the company and all
affected creditors.

In July 2004, a Russian subsidiary of JT, JTI Marketing & Sales (‘M&S
Corp.”), which oversees distribution-related businesses in the Russian
market, received an assessment from the Moscow tax authorities in
which it was ordered to pay approximately 2.4 billion rubles (approxi-
mately ¥9.0 billion) as VAT, etc. for the period of January 2000 to
December 2000. The taxed amount includes unpaid taxes (VAT, etc.),
interest and additional taxes, M&S Corp. believes that the assessment

15. Other Income (Expenses)

from the Moscow tax authorities is based upon a misconception of gen-
eral business practices and sued to invalidate the assessment. Although
lower courts disimissed the claims of M&S Corp., the Russian Federation
Higher Arbitration Court reversed the lower courts’ judgments and
remanded the case to the court of first instance in April 2006.

In February 2005, another Russian subsidiary of JT, OOQ Petro
("Petro”) received an assessment from the St. Petersburg tax authori-
ties that ordered payment of approximately 420 million rubles
(approximately ¥1.6 billion) as corporate tax, etc. and interest there-
on from 2001, Petro believes the assessment to be groundless and has
taken measures to demonstrate this fact in court. In February 2003,
Petro challenged the assessment and, in September 2005, the court of
first instance rendered judgment in favor of Petro. On appeal by the
tax authorities, the court of appeals upheld the judgment of first
instance in Janwary 2006, Further, in April 2006, the cassation court
also upheld the lower courts’ judgments.

Although JT and its subsidiaries believe that they have valid
defenses and claims in these pending cases. it is possible that the
results of operations, cash flows of JT or the financial condition of JT
could be materially affected by, among others, the ultimate outcome
of certain pending litigation matters.

(1) Gain on disposition of property. plant and equipment-net

For the year ended March 31, 2005, gain on disposition of property,
plant and equipment-net included ¥42 868 million of gain on sale of
beneficial interest in real estate trust to Frontier Real Estate
Investment Corp. (FRD with respect to six large commercial proper-
ties that JT owned. In order to facilitate asset portfelio reallocation by
securitization of its own real estale property through a real estate
investment trust structure, FRI was initially set up as a wholly-owned

subsidiary of JT and Frontier REIT Management Inc., a newly estab-
lished asset management subsidiary of JT, and was listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange on August 9. 2004. At March 31, 2006, the
Company hoelds seven per cent of FRI's equity interest and FRI is not
included in the consolidation scope.

(2) Business restructuring costs

Business restructuring costs for the years ended March 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen G‘;mggﬁ;i
2004 2005 2006 2006
Additional Retirement Benefits (see Note 10) ¥ (29,688) ¥(209,540) ¥ (8,557) $ (73)

Accelerated depreciation charge (9.393) — — —

Loss on dlspogmon of pfdpert,y, plant and eq{.ﬁpmenf — (5,323) (99) (1)

Others-net (1738) (9985 647 6
Total ¥ (40,819) ¥(224,848) ¥ (8,009) S (68)

Additional retirement benefits relating to early retirements of employ-
ees incurred as discussed in Note 10.

Accelerated depreciation charges of ¥9,393 million for the year
ended March 31, 2004 and loss on disposition of property, plant and
equipment of ¥5.323 million for the year ended March 31, 2005,
respectively, were recorded as a result of the reduction of the useful

lives to the remaining period of use and intention of furure disposi-
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tion of certain tobacco manufacturing factories and other tobacco
operation facilities which ceased their operations by March 31, 2005.

For the year ended March 31, 2006, “Others-net” in the Business
restructuring costs includes the reversal of payables recognized due to
the acceleration of planned retirement dates for employees on long-
term leave who accepted the early retirement program implemented
during the year ended March 31, 2005,




(3) Loss on impairment of long-lived assets
The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment during the
year ended March 31, 2006 and, as a result, recognized an impair-
ment loss of ¥11,439 millien ($97 million), which principally con-
sists of ¥7,738 millien ($66 million) on land and ¥3,452 million
($29 million) on buildings and structures, as other expense mainly
for the company housings due to be discontinued which are mostly
located in Tokyo metropolitan area.

Asset grouping is based on the smallest identifiable unit that
generates cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows

{4) Other — net

from other assets.

During the second half of the year, land and buildings of compa-
ny housings were finally assessed to be discontinued, resulting in the
change of asset groups for impairment testing. Most of impairment
losses were recognized on these company housings after judged and
measured for impairment losses individually as a result of the asset
group change.

The recoverable amounts of these assets were measured at its net
realizable value determined mainly by real estate appraised values.

“Other - net” included in “Other Income (Expenses)” for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen L'}A élhg;'ﬁ;i
2004 2005 2006 2006
Financial support for domestic tobacco growers (see Note 14) ¥ (3.641) ¥ (1,009) ¥ (R63) $ (7
Foreign exchange gain (loss)—);ét """" ' (5,857) 1,026 (2,893) (25)
Write-down of investment securities O (460) G@62) an ()
Gain ﬂoss) onnsales of investment secun'ties-nét o (503) ‘ 1,112 879 7“
Losé on discontinued‘ businesses (5,866) S - .
Géin (lo») on bartiéftennimtioﬁ of defined benefit plan; (s'é,é,N'ote lO} S ' 9870 o T (3.,097) (26)
Gain on d‘i'sposirjvéh of 'mérketin?, righrs‘ - 2‘333 —_ -
One-timue terminatibn payment to domestic leaf tobac.cb 'g'rowers — (4,228) — -
Othersmet (5,782) (1,617) (3.535) 30y
Total ¥ (12,239) ¥ (2,635) ¥ (9,520) $ (81)

The Company sold a hotel building and other property used by JT
Tokushima Prince Hotel Inc., a subsidiary, on March 31, 2004. An
accelerated depreciation charge on these properties of ¥4,795 million
recognized at the time of agreement of the sale was included in loss
on discontinued businesses for the year then ended.

At the Leaf Tobacco Deliberative Council meeting in August

16. Segment Information

2004, JT inquired about soliciting farm families that meet certain
qualifications with respect to planting area sizes and farmers’ ages to
quit farming and it was approved by the council. As a result, JT paid
¥4,228 million to those tobacco growers who decided to quit farming
in signing of farming contracts for the 2005 crop of leaf tobacco.

The Company’s business is divided into the demestic tobacco, inter-
national tobacco, pharmaceutical, foods and other industry segments,
The domestic tobacco segment censists of the manufacture and sale
of tobacco products, primarily cigarettes. in Japan, including tobacco
products sold at duty free shops in Japan, as well as at markets in
China, Hong Kong and Macau, which are covered by the China
Division. The domestic tobacco segment includes the sales by TS
Network Co., Ltd., JT's subsidiary. TS Network Co., Ltd. distributes
the tobacco products and conducts wholesale ete. of foreign brand
tobacco products purchased {rom foreign tobacco manufacturers
through impoerters. The international tobacco segment consists of the
manufacture and sale of cigarettes worldwide outside Japan and other
markets covered by the domestic tobacco segment. The pharmaceuti-
cal segment is concerned with the development, manufacture and

sale of prescription drugs. The foods segment mvolves the manufac-
ture and sale of beverages and processed foods. Other segments
include the real estate business, agribusiness (discontinued after July
2003), engineering business and other operations.

Effective with the year ended March 31, 2006, the former
“Tobacco” segment is divided into “Domestic Tobacco” and
“International Tobacco” segments, considering the importance of the
tobacco business of a group led by JT International S.A., and the need
for more appropriate disclosure of JT and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries’ business operations. With respect to the international tobac-
co business, the accounting period of consolidated overseas sub-
sidiaries, mainly represented by JT International $.A., ends Decernber
31, 2005 and the results for the twelve months ended December 31,
2005 are consolidated for the year ended March 31, 2006.
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(1) Industry Segments

Information about the industry segments of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006 was as follows:

Millions of yen

2005
Domestic Int§rnationa] Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Total Eljmimtioxv Consolidated
Tobacco Tobacco Corporate
Sales to customers ¥3401488 ¥ 792705 ¥ S7676  ¥265380 ¥ 57,265 ¥4664514 ¥ —  ¥4664514
Intersegment sales 49,550 54933 J— 203 30,440 135126 (135,126) —
Total sales 3541038 847,638 57,676 265,583 87,705 4799640  (135126) 4664514
Operating expenses 3325205 803,180 55821 263,635 77278 4525110 (133876)  4,301.143
Operating income ¥ 215833 ¥ 44458 ¥ 1855 ¥ 1948 ¥ 10427 ¥ 274521 ¥ (1,150) ¥ 273371
Assets ¥1208,222  ¥838500  ¥117828 ¥ 141,647 ¥ 107050 ¥2,503337 ¥388719 ¥2982056
Do . 99, .
amortization other
than goodwill 80,219 21,004 3,619 5,150 16,313 126,305 (443) 125,862
et T . . . 4,
(negative goodwill) 2 — — 833 70 882 —_ 882
Capital expenditures 46,485 18,787 3,108 7356 10629 86365 (1,256) 85,109
Miltions of yen
2006
Domestic International Pharmaceticals Foods Others Total Elimination/ Consolidated
Tobacco Tobacco Corporate
Sales to customers ¥3.405281  ¥881,188 ¥ 49257 ¥ 278378 ¥ 23553 Y 4637657 ¥ — X 4637657
‘Intersegment sales C 41554 36914 — 123 25212 103803 (103,803) —
Total sales 3446835 918,102 49,257 278,501 48765 4741460  (103.803)  4.637,657
Operating expenses 3226740 847,071 54314 272,176 40,092 4440393 (109.682) 4330711
Operating income (loss) ¥ 220,095 ¥ 71.031 ¥ (5.057) ¥ 6,325 ¥ 8,673 ¥ 301067 ¥ 5879 ¥ 306,946
Assets Y 1,131,751 ¥994.834  ¥Y117003  ¥141477  ¥104401 Y 2580366 ¥ 457013 ¥3.037379
'Depreciation and ' o ' ' ‘
amortization other
han goodwill 84,570 23.062 3.254 5,042 13,467 129,395 (4.540) 124,855
Impatrment Loss 991 184 — 70 — C 1245 10,194 11,439
Amortization of goodv;r{ll‘ 1.088 - — Cs02 — 1,390 — 1.590
"Capital expenditures 75028 24995 2,107 4576 19318 126024 (Q7.097) 98927
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Millions of U.S. dollars

2006
I;Z.o rgm.st\lc I]]EFrllz"at??nal Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Total Ei;nma(ion/ Consolidated
opacco obacco rporate
Sales to customers $ 28,989 $ 7,502 $ 419 $ 2370 $ 200 $ 39,480 8 — $ 39,480
Intersegment sales 354 314 - 1 215 884 (884) -
Total sales 29343 7816 419 2,371 415 40,364 (884) 39,480
Operating expenses 27,469 7.211 462 2317 341 37,800 (933) 36.867
Operating income (loss) $ 1,874 $ 605 S {43) $ 54 $ 74 $ 2,564 $ 49 $ 2,613
Assets S 9,634 $ 8,469 $ 1.004 $1.204 $ 1,655 $ 21966 $3891 $ 25857
Deprecjiauol:[ -~ : S o " v ) U Gt RO = >l
amortization other
than goodwill 720 196 28 43 115 1,102 (39) 1.063
Impairment Loss 8 = I I 86 o7
Amortization o.fmgoodwﬂl 10 — — 4 — 14 — 14
Capital expenditures 639 23 18 39 164 1073 (23D 842

Effective the year ended March 31, 2006, a part of goodwill recog-
nized by overseas consolidated subsidiaries, represented by JT
International $.A., is included in Domestic Tobacco segiment, not of
Tobacco segment as previously reported. Such change is to reflect the
fact that JT. during the period ended March 31, 2006, started the
import, manufacturing and sales of overseas consolidated subsidiaries’
products for the Japanese market. Intersegment goodwill acquisition
by the Company is included in capital expenditure of Domestic

Tobacco segment, and is eliminated in Elimination/Corporate.

The domestic tobacco segment includes the sales by TS Network
Co., Ltd,, JTs subsidiary. TS Network Co., Ltd. distributes the tobacco
products and conducts distribution-related operations such as sales and
distribution of foreign brand tobacco products purchased from foreign
tobacco manufacturers. Net sales of such imported tobacco products via
TS Network Co., Lid. for the year ended March 31, 2005 and 2006 were
¥947.522 million and ¥1,160,744 million (39,881 million), respectively.

Information about the industry segments of the Company on the former segmentation basis for the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2005 was

as follows:

Millions of yen

2004
Tobacco Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Total Eg::;?;?;v Consolidated
Sales to customers ¥ 4236920 ¥ 51242 ¥ 250,138 ¥ 86,851 ¥ 4,625,151 ¥ —  ¥4625151
Intersegment sales ) ‘ 5,286 h - 338 ”3v7,281 4.3,905 ' (43,905) -
Total sales 4,243,206 51,242 250,476 124,132 4,669,056 (43,905) 4,625,151
‘Operating expenses 4,004,797 64,082 255,327 112,156 4436362 (45245) 4391117
Qperating income (loss) ¥ 238,400 ¥ (12,840) ¥ (485D ¥ 11,976 ¥ 232694 ¥ 1340 ¥ 234,034
Assets ¥2,122261 ¥ 114315 ¥ 141,430 ¥ 250,268  ¥2628274 ¥ 400810  ¥3.029,084
D-epreciarion and - - . ‘ R
amortization other than goodwill 104,754 3828 6,252 19,010 133 844 (616) 133228
Aorisaion of ssedwl , Rt T
(negative goodwill) — 4,586 1.868 (312) 6,173 — 6,173
‘Capital expenditures 60,558 2,612 9.143 18,077 T 00390 480 190,870
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Millions of yen

2005
Tobacco Pharmaceuticals Foods Others Total Eéi:-;?;:l?;v Consolidated

Sales 1o customers ¥ 4,284,103 ¥ 57676 ¥ 265,380 ¥ 57,265 ¥ 4,664,514 ¥ —_— ¥ 4664514
1 ine‘rscgment. sales 4857 — 203 30,440 35500 ) 5 O)- I
Total sales 4,289,050 57,676 265,583 87,705 4,700,014 (35,500) 4,664,514
Operating expenses 4,029,385 55,821 263,635 77278 4,426,119 (34976) 4,391,143
Qperating income ¥ 258,665 ¥ 1855 1,948 ¥ 10,427 ¥ 273895 ¥ (524) ¥ 273371
Assets ¥2,112.881 ¥ 117828 ¥ 141,647 ¥ 197,050 ¥ 2,569,406 ¥ 412,650 ¥ 2,982,056
Depreciation and ; ! T

amortization other than goodwill 101,223 3619 5,130 16313 126,305 (443) 125862
Amortizaton of goodwill

(negative goodwill) Qn — 833 70 882 — 882
Capital expenditures 65272 3,108 7,356 10,629 86,365 (1256) 85,100

Operating expenses represent the aggregate amount of the cost of
sales and selling, general and administrative expenses. Capital expen-
ditures include long-term prepaid expenses and expensed amounts of
the long-term prepaid expenses are included in depreciation and
amottization other than goodwill. Depreciation and amortization

As described in Note 3 o) Accounting Change (1) Change in
accounting policies, the Company recognized a liability for certain
obligations for annuity payments of the government-sponsored
defined benefit pension plans as of April 1, 2003. As a result of this
change, operating income of the tobacco segment for the year ended

other than goodwill presented herein does not include accelevated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment recorded for the year
ended March 31, 2004 (Note 15).

March 31, 2004 increased by ¥15,581 million as compared to the
previous method.

(2) Geographical Segments

The geographical segments of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 were sumimarized as [ollows:

Millions of yen

2004
Japan \;:;T Others Total Egg;:g;::/ Consolidated
Sales 1o customers ¥3844,100 ¥308613  ¥472438  ¥4625151 ¥ —  ¥4625,151
Tntersegment sales 53,813 139,463 18677 212253 (12253 _
Total sales 3,897,913 448,076 491,415 4837,404  (212253) 4,625,151
‘Operating expenses 3,702827 469,062 433826 4605715  (214598)  4391,117
Operating income (loss) ¥ 195,086 ¥ (20,986) ¥ 57,589 Y 231,689 ¥ 2,345 ¥ 234,034
Assets ¥ 1750804 ¥634,438  ¥105984 ¥2581.226 ¥ 447858 ¥ 3,029,084
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Millions of yen

2005
Japan \girs;;r:] Others Toral Egg:-i;)?:ﬁ:/ Consolidated
Sales to customers ¥ 3,823,102 ¥ 317273 ¥524,139 ¥4,66451 — ¥46064514
Intersegment sales » 54,785 137,406 14,563 ' » 206,75 754) o —_
Total sales 3877887 454,679 538,702 4,871,268 (206,754) 4,664 514
Operating expenses 3,649,540 458,052 490,006 4,597,598 (206,455) 4,391,143
Operating income (loss) ¥ 228347 ¥ (3,373 ¥ 48,696 ¥ 273670 ¥ (299) ¥ 273371
Assets ¥ 1,630,225 ¥ 664,106 ¥211362 ¥2505,693 ¥ 476363  ¥2982056
Millions of yen
2006
Japan \g:}:;:; Others Total Egg:';:;ﬁ:/ Consolidated
Sales to customers ¥ 3.709,964 ¥ 338.606 ¥ 389.087 ¥ 4,637,657 ¥ —_ ¥ 4,637,657
Intersegment sales 42368 153514 18,943 214825 (214,825) —
Total sales 3,752332 492,120 608,030 4,852,482 (214,825) 4,637,657
Operating expenses 3524195 492967 535,165 4552327 (221.616) 4330711
Operating income (loss) ¥ 228,137 ¥ (847) ¥ 72.865 ¥ 300,155 ¥ 6,791 ¥ 306,946
Assets ¥ 1446958 ¥ 760,456 ¥ 276327 ¥ 2,483,741 ¥ 553,638 ¥ 3.037.379
Millions of U.S. dollars
2006
Japan \é/‘::;?: Others Total Eg?:;;:;?év Consolidated
Sales 1o customers $3).582 £ 2883 $ 5015 £39 480 g _ $ 36,480
ihvtersergmcm saies ‘ - 361 1,366 o 161 » 1,828 (1,828) B —
Total sales 31,943 4,189 5,176 41.308 (1,828) 39,480
Operating expenses. 30,001 4196 4556 38753 (1.886) 36,867
Operating income (loss) S 1942 $ (7) $ 620 $ 2,555 S 58 $ 2613
Assets $12,318 $ 6,474 $ 2,352 $21,144 $ 4713 $ 25857

“Western Europe” includes Switzerland, France and Germany while
“Others” includes Canada, Russia and Malaysia. Operating expenses
represent the aggregate amount of the cost of sales and selling, gener-
al and administrative expenses.

As described in Note 3 0) Accounting Change (1) Change in
accounting policies, the Company recognized a liability for certain
obligations for annuity payments of the government-sponsored
defined benefit pension plans as of April 1, 2003, As a result of this

change, operating income of the Japan segment [or the year ended
March 31, 2004 increased by ¥15 581 million as compared to the
previous method.

(3) Sales to Foreign Customers

Sales to foreign customers for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005
and 2006 amounted to ¥789,350 million, ¥855,658 million and
¥935,198 million ($7.961 million). respectively.
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17. Derivatives

JT and certain consolidated subsidiaries use derivative financial
instruments (“derivatives”), including foreign currency forward con-
tracts, currency optiens and currency swaps to hedge foreign
exchange risk associated with certain assets and liabilities denominat-
ed in foreign currencies. JT and certain consolidated subsidiaries also
entered into interest rate swaps as a means of managing their interest
rate exposure.

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk. Market
risk is the exposure created by potential fluctuations in market con-
ditions, including interest ot foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is
the possibility that a loss may result from a counterparty’s failure to
perform according to the terms and conditions ef the contract.

JT and these consolidated subsidiaries do not hold or issue

Hedging instruments

derivatives for trading purposes. The main objective of using deriv-
atives is to hedge the Company's exposure to interest rate risks
associated with certain future interest receipts on debt securities,
certain interest payments on borrowings and bonds and forecasted
foreign currency denominated transactions, such as payments for
purchase of imported leaf tobacco.

The effectiveness of the hedging instruments is assessed in accor-
dance with the Risk Management Pelicy and Practice Manual for
financial mstruments of JT and these consolidated subsidiaries by
comparing the accumulated amount of changes in hedging instru-
ments with hedged items. Hedging instruments and hedged items are
summarized as follows:

Hedged items

Foreign currency forward contracts

Forecasted foreign currency transactions

Currency optons
Currency swaps

Interest rate swaps

Forecasted foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency-denominated bonds

Borrowings and Japanese yeini bonds

Because the counterparties to such derivatives are limited to major
international financial mstitutions, the Company does not anticipate
any losses arising from credit risk.

The Company had the following derivatives contracts that do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are ouwtstanding at March 31,
2004, 2005 and 2006:

Millions of yen

2004 2005 2006

G ae cn O e on Gt can

Amount Value {Loss) Amount Value (Loss) Amount Value (Loss)
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying ¥ 11,157 ¥12,132 ¥ 975 ¥21,543 ¥23296 ¥ 1,753 Y 12621 ¥ 12330 ¥(291)
Selling 10992 11883 (891) 12048 12116 (68) 43234 43663  (429)
Currency options: - T o
Buying 111,286 219 — — e 24201 212 212

Total ¥ 303 ¥ 1685 ¥(508)

Millions of U.S. dollars

2006
Amount alue (Loss)

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Buying $ 107 $ 105 $()
Selling 368 372 )
Currency options: S
Buying 206 2 2

Total 3 (4)

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the parties and

do not measure the Company’s exposure to credit or market risks.
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18. Subsequent Events

(1) Stock Sphit )
The board of directors of T decided the stock split of the company’s
shares at the board of directors meeting held on February 27, 2006,
Details of the stock split are as follows:
1. Each share of common stock will be split into five shares on April
1,2006.
(1) Number of shares to be increased by the stock split: 8,000,000
(2) Method of stock split:
Fach share of common stock held by shareholders listed or

recorded on the final register of shareholders and the final reg-
ister of beneficial shareholders as of March 31,2006 will be
split into five shares.
2. Effective date: April 1, 2006
The shareholder’s equity and net income per share and the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding for the years ended
March 2004, 2005 and 2006 are as follows. on the assumption that
this stock split took place at the beginning of each fiscal year:

Yen U.S. dollars
Years ended March 31, 2004 2005 2006 2006
The shareholders’ equity per share ¥ 154303 ¥ 156363 ¥ 183936 $1.566
Net income (loss) per share ¥ (793) Y - 6,418““ ¥ 2]1_(_‘1.7 ‘ ‘5 179
The weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 4,885,500 9,714,505 9,580.080

Note: There’s no disclosure {or the diluted net income per share, a5 no such securities causing dilution exist.

(2) Appropriations of Retained Earnings

The following appropriations of retained eamings at March 31, 2006 were approved at the general shareholders’ meeting of J T held on June 23, 2006:

Millions of yen Millions of U5.

dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥9,000 (§77) per share ¥ 17,244 $ 147

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 119 1

Total ¥ 17,363 $ 148
Fimancial Information a1




Independent Auditors’ Report

] Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

De l o Itte P MS Shibaura Building 4-13-23,
Shibaura, Minato-ku,
Tokyo 108-8530, Japan
Tel: +81-3-3457-7321
Fax:+81-3-3457-1694
www.deloitte.convjp

To the Board of Directors of

Japan Tobacco Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Japan Tobacco Inc. (f1") and consolidated subsidiaries (the “Company”) as
of March 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related consclidated statements of opetations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 31, 2006, all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financial state-

mient presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Company as of March 31, 2005 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended March 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, effective from April 1, 2003, the Company changed its method of
accounting for certain obligations for annuity payments of the government sponsored defined benefit pension plans.

As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, JT1-Macdonald Corp. (“JTI-MC™), JT’s Canadian subsidiary, received a
Notice of Assessment from the Quebec Ministry of Revenue on August 11, 2004, demanding payment of approximately Canadian dollar
1.36 billion (approximately ¥114.6 billion). JTI-MC filed an application of “Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (“CCAA”) to the
Ontario Superior Court of Justice, and the filing of CCAA makes it possible for JTI-MC to continue business operations with its assets

safeguarded.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been

made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 2. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Daleltte Towcldle 7oboalil

Tokyo, Japan
June 23, 2006
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Fact Sheets

94  Tinancial Data 100 Domestic Tobacco Business 108 International Tobacco Business
Net Sales Including Taxes JT Sales Volume and JT Share Worldwide Demand for Cigaretie
Net Sales Excluding Taxes Sales Volume of China Division and Top 10 Brands by Sales Volume Worldwide
SG&IA Expenses Domestic Duty-free Tobacco Sales Volume by Brand
R&D Expenses Market Share by JT Brand Family Tobacco Sales Volume by Region
EBITDA Top 20 Selling Products in Japan by Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand
o ] Market Share Cigarettes
perating Income Market Share by Tar Level and Market Number of International Factories
Non-Operating Income and Expenses Share of Menthol Products
F%ecumng Profit . D-spec Products and Products Priced at 110 Pharmaceutical Business
Extraordinary Profit and Loss ¥300 or more per pack
Net Income (Loss) JT Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand R&D Expense on a Non-consolidated
Earnings per Share (EPS) Clgarettes Basis
Return on Equity (ROE) Composition of JT Products b}/ Price Range I%gy;hy Income from Viracept ®
N New Product Launches and Sales Area Clinical Development
Return on Assets (ROA) Fx R
Free Cash Flow (FCF) .xpansmr}‘ :
Camital Exvendi CAPEX Number of JT Cigarette Products 112 Foods Business
-apital Expenditure (C ) Smoking Rate (by gender)
Depreciation & Amortization Smoking Rate (by age) Net Sales
Total Assets Taxation Number of Marking / Combined Vending
Shareholders’ Equity and Equity Ratio Breakdown of Package of Cigarettes Machines
Book Value per Share (BPS) System of Tobacco Sales
Number of Tobacco Retailers 112 Number of Employees

Liquidity and hterest-Bearing Debt

Debt / Equity Ratio

Interest coverage Ratio

Annual Dividends per Share

Dividend Payout Ratio on a Consolidated
Basis

Number of Tobacco Vending Machines

Number of Domestic Tobacco Growers
and Area under Domestic Leaf Tobacco
Cultivation

Volume of Domestic and International
Leaf Tobacco Purchase

Value of Domestic Leaf Tobacco Purchase
and Price per 1kg

Leaf Tobacco Reappraisal Profit / Loss

Taobacco Manufacturing Structure

Number of Domestic Cigarette
Manufacturing Factories

Tobacco Manufacturing-related Factory
Location

Note; This “Fact Sheet” has been prepared in accordance with disclosure rules in Japan.

Number of Employees (Consolidated)
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Financial Data

Net Sales Including Taxes
(Billions of Yen)
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Net Sales Excluding Taxes
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Years enked March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2003 2006
03 Total 3.697.4 35069 38765 43712 45017 45441 44922 46251 46645 4,637.6
Tobacco Business T 36167 40244 41402 41780 41344 42369
) Dblllestic 3,491.4 3,405.2
Imerna‘liér.ml.m » 7927 881.‘1
Pharmaceutical Business 3.7 617 664 618 539 512 576 492
Foods Business 1507 1950 2103 2211 2324 2501 2653 2783
Other Business 853 830 845 830  TL4 868 572 235
Years ended March 31 1907 1998 1999 2000 001 2001 2003 2004 2005 2006
07 Total 15000 15082 16351 18810 L9966 20410 20075 20198 20139 20087
Tobacco Business 13954 15343 16352 16758 16407 16315
" Domestic 12038 1,173.2
.Iﬁterhationnl 429.7 4843
Pharmaceutical Business B 6.7 664 618 539 512 516 492
Foods Busiress 1507 195.0 2103 2211 2324 250 2653 2783
Other Business 853 839 846 830 714 868 572 235
Years ended March 31 1907 1008 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
0 SG&A 4504 4966 3582 7126 7905 7815 7339 7070 6774 5966
Personnel* 1439 1484 1587 2072 2206 2217 2007 2053 1830 1308
Advéru’si ng and ‘ ‘ .
general publicity 23.3 31.1 315 36.9 48.3 40.2 35.7 354 27.4 239
Sales promotion 708 776 1097 1343 1623 1552 1420 1417 14001 1421
R&D 360 377 370 415 470 526 445 421 404 375
Depreciation 150 147 166 512 589 5905  $67  S67 542 534

*Personnel expense is the sum of compensation, salaries, allowances, provision [or retirernent benefit, legal welfare, employee bonuses

and accrual of employee bonuses

Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
O R&D* 47.5 470 52.7 44.5 42.2 40.5 37.5
"1‘0bacco Business 15.7 13.7 14.3 ‘ 14.8 16.6 18.2

Domestic ) 15.1

‘ In‘L‘ernzu‘ional. v ‘70,9‘
Pharmzceutical Business 289 305 354 271 237 205 199
Foods Business 09 07 o7 12 10 10 08
Other Business 1.8 1.1 0.7 0.6 Ol 0.0 -

*R&D expense in FY2000-2005 includes expenses posted as manufacturing cost.




EBITDA

*’;5(‘;310“‘ of Yen) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
{1 CBITDA* 3151 3120 3341 3372 3734 4001 4333

400 I Tobacco Business 2004 2063 3209 3214 3430 o
Domestic 2060 3057

100 el . . e . X

International 65.4 94.0

200 “[v’harmac:cuﬁcal Business T 0.7 3.1 (8.5) 5.1 4.4 5.4 i (1.8
" Foods Business ©4 (@& 22 05 33 19 118
100 Other Business 160 200 196 196 306 268 22

0 *EBITDA = operating income + depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization = depreciation of tangible fixed assets + amortization of intangible fixed assets + amontization of long-term pre-

‘00 01 02 03 '04 05 06 ) :
paid expenses + amortization of goodwilt

Operating Income

f(;gim of Yen) Years ended March 31 1907 1998 1999 000 2001 2002 2003 200+ 2005 2006
{1 Operating Income 1562 1205 1688 1539 1309 1638 1886 2340 2733 3069
0 . Tobacco Business A 18 1815 1659 1021 2”13“.;“ ‘2‘35:4‘“___ - )
Domestic 2158 2200
200 . Inl(;.l'néiional o . v o ’ "(-H 71.0
Pharmaceutical Business (126) (114) (128 (189 (138 (128 1.8 5.0
100 Foods Business L@ sy (73 Ule (3D @8 19 63
Other Business ‘ Q6 (7 34 L7 09 119 104 86
o i
97 08 "99 00 01 02 03 04 03 06
Non-Operating Income-and Expenses - - .. . e
(B"(;“W of Ven) Years ended March 31 1097 1998 1090 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
H U (7 Non-Operating fncome .
) and Expenses (143) (143)  G.6) (143) (78 (LD (157 04 G O
Non-Opemsting lncome 103 146 159 226 1.0 112 93 103 159 126
a0 Financial income 69 88 98 75 65 47 37 32 33 39
as Non-Operating Expenses 249 200 195 37.0 230 183 250 307 9o 217
Financial expense 6.1 4.9 4.6 159 12.4 10.2 8.7 8.1 5.1 5.7
20 U

*1 Financial income is the sum of interest income, interest on marketable securities, interest on investment securities, dividend
income, profit on redemption of securities, et
@25 *2 Financial expense is the sum of interest expense, bond interest paid, lass of redemption of securities, ete.
97 "3 "99 '00 "01 02 03 '04 05 06

Recurring Profit - - .. I R R

g‘zgionﬂf Yen) Years ended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
1 O Recurring profit 1417 1151 1652 1395 1320 1566 1732 2135 2702 2978

250

200

150

1

I=3
<

5
<

0

97 (98 09 00 0) 02 03 04 D5 06
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Extraordinary Profit and Loss

(5““05“; of Yen) Years ended March 31 1967 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
O Exwsordinary ProfitandLoss 0.1 (5.0)  (5.0) (1200 (123) (384) (30.7) (21.2) (1689) 3.1
0 —TT] CExwaordinary Profit 125 38 62 168 207 300 183 203 792 654
0 H Gain on sale of property,
plant and equipment 5.0 2.3 4.5 8.0 16.3 282 15.4 17.2 733 60.0
(100) Extraordinary Loss 124 88 113 288 330 885 490 2505 2482 623
Loss on sale of property, N ‘ R »
{150 plantand equipment 0.2 0.1 0l 29 16 22 26 48 22 248
(200 FL(F)sgo‘n‘dispnsavil ofi)ropeny, T ‘ B S )
plantand equipment 106 81 92 1.9 133 93 98 108 136 122
@50 . Business restructuring cosls — — — — — 134 1l4 408 2248 8.0
97 °98 V9 00 '01 02 '03 04 05 06 - . B e . B S o
Impairment loss - —_ — —_ - —_ — — 0.1 114

*Extraordinary loss in FY2004 includes ¥185 billion of one-time loss on recognition of obligations under Public Official Mutual

Assistance Association Law,
Net Income (Loss)

{BRillions of Yen)

Years ended March 31
220

1097

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002 2003 2004 2005

2006

{3 Net Income (Loss) 80.1
200

58.0

74.6

50.7

43.6

368 753 (7.6) 625

2015

o

80

60

4

<

2

=1

[
(20

"7 '8 99 °00 01 '02 '03 '04 05 06

Earnings per Share (EPS) -

(Yen)
120,000

Years ended March 31 1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002 2003 2004 2005

2006

O EPS 40,098

29,010

37,316

23,393

21,843

18425

37327

(3.966) 32,089 105084

100,000

-

40,000
20,000

L

(20,0000

'Q7 798 99 '00 '01 02 "03 '04 '05 06

Return on Equity (ROE)

(%l)4 ’ Years ended March 31

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002 2003 2004 2005

2006

— ROE 6.3

4.4

5.4

35

29

2.4 4.7 (0.5) 4.2

12.4

97 '98 98 00 "1 02 03 04 05 06
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Return-on Assets (ROA) -

(%>12 Years ended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 20001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
— ROA 7.8 6.6 83 6.1 +.7 5.4 6.4 7.9 9.2 104
10 *Business Income = Operating Income + Financial Income
8
6
4
2

97 98 09 00 01 '02 '03 04 '05 06

:Free Cash Flow (FCF)

(Billions of Yen) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
400

[ FCF (786.4) 3073 3L4 1703 2691 2694 1453
300

*ECF = (cash flow from operating activities + cash flow from investing activities) exchuding the following items:
From “cash flow from operating activities™ Dividends received 7 interest received and its tax effect, / interest paid and its tax effect

200 From “cash flow from investing activities™ Cash owtflow from purchase of marketable securities / proceeds from sales of marketable
securities / cash outflow from purchases of investment securities / proceeds from sales of investment securities / others (but not busi-
100 ness-related investment securities, which are included in the investment securities item)
R
(700)
(800)

00 01 '02 '03 ‘04 05 06

Capital Expenditure (CAPEX)

(Billions of Yen)

<00 Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
[ Capital Expenditure 82.0 4428 1148 96.5  109.1 90.8 85.1 98.9

400 I Tobacco Business 57.6  401.1 77.3 70.0 60.9 60.5
AL Domestic 46.4 75.0

N
200 International 18.7 249
Pharmaceutical Business 17 38 3.6 2.2 1.1 2.6 3.1 2.1
100 n o n Foods Business 4.7 14.5 4.2 6.9 7.2 9.1 73 4.3
I -‘ H Other Business 17.8 23.2 20.2 18.1 388 18.0 10.6 19.3
0 “1 CAPEX in FY'1999-2000 = Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets
99 ‘00 01 02 ‘03 '04 '05 06 *2 CAPEX in FY2001-2006 = Tangible Assets + Intangible Assets + Long-Term Prepald Expenses

*3 CAPEX in FY2000 includes Intangible Assets of ¥323 billion related to the RJRI acquisition.

Depreciation & Amortization

(82"’;'0““ of Yen) Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
J Depreciation & Amortization 88.6 1388 1720 1703 1483 1304 1267 1264
150 N TobwccoBusiness 638 01 103 18s 1080 1047
Domestic 80.2 84.5
100 International . 21.0 23.0
Pharmaceutical Business 3.4 +9 9.7 10.4 8.7 8.4 3.6 3.2
50 Foods Business o 3.7 6.0 14.7 14.1 13.7 8.1 5.9 5.0
* Other Business 170 171 166 178 187 186 163 134
0 *1 Depreciation & Amortization tn FY1999-2000 = Depreciation of Tangihle Fixed Assels ~ Amortization of Intangible Fixed Assets
9% 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 *2 Depreciation & Amonization in FY2001-2006 = Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets + Amortization of Intangible Fixed Assets

+ Amortization of Long-Term Prepaid Expenses + Amortization of Goodwill
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Total Assets - - .- - -

(Billions of Yen)
3,500

3,000 n
2,500
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0
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Shareholders’ Equity and Equity Ratio

(Billions of Yen) (%)
2,000 80
1,500 1l - 70
1,000 60

gt
i
500 {\ 4 50
0 . L 40

*97°98 99 °00 '01 02 ‘03 '04 05 06

Book Value per Share (BPS) . - -

(Yen)
1,000,000

800,000
600,000
400,000

200,000

[
97798 °99 00 01 02 '03 04 05 06

Liquidity and Interest-Bearing Debt
(Billions of Yen)
1,000
800 .
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200
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As of March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2003 2006

[ Total assets 2,108.5 2,058.6 2,228.3 3,0952 3,1832

3,063.0 2,957.6 3,020.0 2,982.0 3,0373
1,634.9 23467 24527

Tobacco Business 2,3(59.5 2,133.0 é,J 22.ﬁ ‘

Domestic T12082 11317
International 8385 9948
Pharmaceutical Business 1211 1266 1209 1252 1147 1143 1178 1179
Foods Business 92,6 1269 1338 1332 1353 1414 1416 1414
Other Business 175.0 1955 1981 190.1 2365  250.2 197.0 1944
As of March 31 1097 1008 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
[J Shareholders’ Equity 13108 13556 14159 15265 15138 16131 16226 15079 14982 17625
- Equity Ralio 62.2 65.9 63.5 49.3 47.5 327 549 498 50.2 580
As of March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
J BPS 653,493 677,833 707998 763,291 736,922 806,552 811,204 771,516 781,813 919,780
As of March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2003 2006
I Liguidity 755.4 7138 8062 4968 6437 5307 6235 7984 B63.6 9746
{71 Interest-Bearing Debt 1343 1157 1233 660.5 6060 511.7 4244 3812 2307 2166

1 Liquidity=Cash and deposits + Marketable securities + Commercial Paper received under repurchase agreement
*2 Interest-Bearing Debt=Short-Term Debt (includes current portion of Bonds and current portion of Long-Term Dept) + Bonds +
Long-Term Debt




Debt / Equity Ratio
m“g‘? Asof March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
' ~ Debt 7 Equity Ratio* 010 008 009 043 040 032 026 025 Q13 012

0.4 *Debt to Equity Ratio = Interest-bearing debt / Shareholder’s equity
0.3
0.2

0.1

979899 '00 01 02 °03°04 05 °06

Interest Coverage Ratio

(-‘nmg';) Years ended March 31 1997 1908 1999 2000 200) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

— Interest coverage ratio* 207 282 38.8 10.2 1.8 165 221 293 54.2 54.9

*Interest coverage ratio = (Operating Income + Financial Income} / Financial Expense

40

20

97 °98°99 '00 01 02 03 "0+ 05 '06

Annual Dividends per Share

(1\23300 Yearsended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
’ F [ Annual dividends pershare 7,000 7,000 7,000 8,000 8000 8,000 10,000 10,000 13,000 16000

14,000
12,000
10,000

8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000

¢

07 98 99 00 01 02 '03 '04 05 '06

Dividend Payout Ratio-on a Consolidated Basis

(%iOO Years ended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
— Dividend Payout Ratio 17.5 24.1 18.8 3L3 36.6 43.4 266 (252.1) 405 15.2
50
. /\/\ 4/\
(200)
(300)

97 "98 99 "00 "01 02 '03 '04 05 '06
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Domestic Tobacco Business

JT Sales Yolume and JT Share .. .. e e
g(‘)“w of Cigaredes) %é Years ended March 31 1007 1008 1690 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
0 -l nflnna . o, DTowlDomestcMarker 3483 3280 3366 3322 3265 3193 3126 W94 W26 252
i TN [71J7 Sales Volume 270.6 2545 2575 2501 2431 2372 2200 2183 2132 189.4

20 i b L  JTshare 77 716 765 753 749 743 733 729 729 664
200 % T ! N1 7o *Source: Tobacco Institute of Japan

150 | ] 60

100 E & 50

50 ! } i 40

0 L ! 30

97 "98 '99 00 01 '02 '03 '04 '05 06

Sales-Volume of China Division and Domestic Duty-Free . .. - .. - o
(Billions of Cigarettes)

8 Years ended March 31 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
3 Sales Volume 5.8 6.0 5.4 5.1 3.2

6 1 *China Division covers China, Hong Kong, and Macau markets.

4

2

0

02 03 0+ 05 ‘06

Market Share by JT Brand Family

(;/5’ Years ended March 31 1967 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Ao 1 Mild Seven 358 348 348 345 340 332 325 326 329 322

© B A& i Lo ‘ DGster 03 02 87 83 80 78 715 | 71 ‘—6:6— 63
Fhd T i CJ Seven Suars 82 79 78 78 77 81 83 84 83 87

w THHHRHEL I} Cabin 60 63 59 53 50 47 44 41 42 40
10T O3 Peace h 31 33 33 32 31 30 30 30 29 20

2 OHope 22 23 22 21 21 21 20 20 21 21
[ Frontier ‘ 34 36 33 31 29 28 26 22 19 17

0 1 Other Brands ’ 0.7 102 105 110 121 125 130 135 140 85

97 "98 99 00 '01 02 "03 "04 05 06
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Top 20 Selling Products in Japan by Market Share -(Year ended March 31, 2006) - e : :

Product Manufacturer Share (%)

1 MILD SEVEN SUPER LIGHTS JT 7.7
2 MILD SEVEN LIGHTS - B ' T &)
3 MILD SEVEN B IT 6.0
4 SEVENSTARS I ‘ o 5.4
5 MILD SEVEN EXTRA LIGHTS o ' - ' JT o 35
6 MARLBORO LIGHTS MENTHOL BOX S ‘ ‘ ‘ PM 3.4
7 CASTER MILD ’ S ' ' T 2.9
8 MILD SEVEN ONE 100's BOX | ‘ S gt 25
9 CABIN MILD BOX JT 19
e . o T ) o
e , R . o . =
12 MARLBORO LIGHTS BOX ' N S L6
13 MARLBORO BOX o ' ' ' PM 1.5
14 KENT ULTRA 1 100's BOX T ” o BAT 15
“15 SEVEN STARS BOX R N . [ S
T N e It e e
et . e R i
18 FRONTIER LIGHTS BOX o ' B % 13
19 MILD SEVEN ONE BOX o ‘ I S 12
20 CASTER ONE 100 BOX ' N T 11

*PM = Philip Morris, BAT = British American Tobacco
Source: Tobacco Inatitute of Japan

Market Share by Tar Level and Market Share of Menthol Products
G Market Share by Tar Level (Market Share in top 100 sales products)
(%)

00 - A oo o ) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
- | Ot me 17 129 140 146 161 184 197
so 00010 1 } 023 mg ' “ 79 81 79 15 66 67 719
Fl4-6mg o e 18 240 38 35 B0 31
% a73mg 08 408 408 400 403 308 377
40 1 I ] ) 14 my or Higher ' 137 134 134 133 134 121 117
| Source: Tobacco Institute of Japan
20 & N M 1 : ]
il
0
o0 01 02 03 04+ 0% 06
> Market Share by Tar Level (T Products) - . e e
(Z’()) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
f N A e - Olmg 53 58 60 61 72 &5 117
60 qon oL T Oximg o 36 38 58 59 54 59 66
: []4-6mg 187 186 179 173 170 165 145
‘0 0713 mg ’ ' C 37 322 320 316 309 300 220
| £ 14 mg or Higher 3.0 126 125 125 124 120 116
0 1
F 0o F H ol
0

VOO0 02 03 04 05 06
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U Menthel Products R I ey S rn e e e
(%)

20 Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
— Menthol Products *1» 8.6 10.0 113 12.7 14.0 16.4 18.7
Is ~ Menthol JT Products 2 4.6 5.3 6.4 6.8 7.6 89 7.0
*1 Market Share in top 100 sales products Source: Tobacco Institute of Japan
*2 As menthol products comprise products of varylng tar levels, the market share for menthol products overlaps with the market
10 shares provided by tar level.
5 /
0

00 '01 '02 03 04 05 ‘06

D-spec Products and-Products Priced at ¥300 or more per.pack

®, Years ended March 31 2003 2004 2005 2006
- D-spec Products* 0.01 038 093 1.72
lo -~ JT Products Priced at ¥300 or more per pack 10.2 111 118 6.3
8 *D-spec products, reduced odor segment products ( known as “less Smoke Smell” products abroad), incorporate the company’s odor-
reducing tschnology in response to customer demands for a reduction ip the unpleasant smell of smoke.

6
4
2
0

‘03 04 05 06

JT Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand Cigarettes

S’;gé Years ended March 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2003 2006
— JT Net Sales Excluding Taxes
3900 Per Thousand Cigaretles 3790 3822 3840 3830 3,856 3908 3941 3864
*|T Net sales excluding taxes thousand cigarettes = (retail price sales - retailer margins - consumption tax
3,800 - national tobacco excise tax - local tobacco excise tax
- national tobacco special excise 1ax) 7 sales volume X 1,000
3,700
3,600
3,500

99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06

Composition of JT Products by Price Range
(%)

100 Years ended March 31 1907 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
. moA AT
| ’f i {3 Products priced at
80 ¥280 or more per pack ** 33,9 36.9 37.2 36.5 37.7 382 38.4 42.6 44.8 40.2
Products priced at
0 ¥300 or more per pack ) ) ol 14T 16.1 9.5
Products priced at
" Horl ¥290 per pack 3.8 1.0 0.0 0.0
annnonn Products priced at
0 ¥280 per pack 225 269 287 307
2 [ Products priced at
¥270 or less per pack *?  66.1 63.1 62.8 63.3 623 61.8 61.6 57.4 55.1 59.8

V7798 09 00 01 '02 03 04 05 06 *1 ~ Nov. 98: ¥240 or more, Dec. 98 ~ Jun. 03: ¥260 or more
*2 ~ Mar. 97 ¥220 or less, Apr. 97 ~ Nov. 98: ¥230 or less, Dec. 98 ~ Jun. 03: ¥250 or less
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New Product Launches and Sales Area Expansion N S

Year ended March 31, 2004 (14 products) (D-spec: two products, Menthol: six products, Tar Img: one product, Products at ¥300 or more per pack: nine products)

Date  Product Despec Menthol {2¢ Hlegune 3pm££§l,m‘?ﬁ§5j§; Sales Region
May-03  HOPE MENTHOL . ~ e § 06 ¥l40* ¥150 Aichi — (Jan-04) Aichi, Tokyo, Osaka — (May-04) Nationwide
Aug-03  ALPHABETH 10 0.8 ‘B_OO B " Fukuoka — Discontinued
Aug3 L.PH e B i 706 00 Fukuoka — Discontinued T
Aug-03  ALPHABETC B S o} 705 B Fukuoka — Discontinued
Aug03  CABINMILDMENTHOLBOX T e 706 ¥B0 W00 Miyag — (May04) Nationwide
Sep-03 CASTER SUPER MILD 3 0.3 V270 Y290 Hiroshima — (Aug- -04) Nationwide
Nov-03 _ MILD SEVEN PRIME SUPER LIGHTS BOX o 6 04 W00 w20 Tokyo — (Mar04) Naionwide
Jan-04 MILD SEVEN ONE MENTHOL BOX S ©° 1ol ww ¥300 Eastern Japan (incl. Kinki region), Okinawa
—» (Apr-04) Nationwide
Jan-04  BITTER VALLEY ) ' 8 1.0 ¥300 leo:hlmé Shimane, Yamaguchi - Discontinued
Jan-04  FUJI RENAISSANCE o 6 0.7 Y300 Ol\ayama To[lon Shikoku Region ~» Discontinued
Jan-04 " FUJI RENAISSANCE 100's ’ S ’ 6 07 w00 W Kumamoto, Oita — (Jun-04) Kumamoto, Oita, Okayama,
Tottori, Kagawa, Ehime, Tokushima, Kochi —»
{Aug-06) To be discontinued
Jan-04  HILITEMENTHOL o R [ ¥4 w7 Y200 Fukuoka, Saga, Nagasaki ~ (Sep-04) Tokyo
~ {Oct-04) Nationwide
Jan-04 BB SLUGGER 12 11 Y300 7 Miyazald, Kagoshima — Discontinued
Mar-04  MILD SEVEN PRIME MENTHOL LIGHTSBOX o o 6 04 ¥300 ¥320 Tokyo = (Sep-04) Nationwide )

* Launch price is ¥130

Years ended March 31, 2005 (18 products) (D-spec: five products, Menthol: six products, Tar Img: three products, Products at ¥300 or more per pack: fourteen products)
Price

Date Product D-spec Menthol Tar  Nicotine mﬂ'— Sales Region
m) (mgd 359005 1,206

Ju04  HOPESUPER LIGHTS 6 05 ¥i40  ¥I50 Hoklwido — (Apr-05) Nationwide
Jul-04  GOLDENBATBOX s 06 W00 Miyagi — Discontinued
Ju04 T GOLDEN BAT MENTHOL BOX Y T R Miag — Discontinued
Jul-04  ALPHABET H SIDE SLIDE BOX 10008 ¥300 ¥320 Tokyo — (Feb-03) Tokyo, Kanagawa, Chiba, Saitana, Fukuoka
Jul04" TALPHABET RSIDE SLIDE BOX 706 ¥300 ¥320 Tokyo — (Teb-05) Tokyo. Kanagawa. Chiba, Saftama, Fuknoka
Jul04  ALPHABET CSIDE SLIDE BOX ‘ o) 703 B w0 Tokyo —+ (Feb-03) Tokyo, Kanagawa, Chiba, Sailama, Fukuoka
Jul-04 SIESTA e U0l w00 " Kanagawa — Discontinued
Jul-o4 T CASTER COOL VANILLA MENTHOL BOX ) e 3 03 w70 R Shizuoka — (Feb-05) Shizuoka, Osaka and areas west of Nara

(excl. Fukuoka, Kagoshima, Miyazaki) —» (Apr-05) Nationwide
Jul04 PEACE AROMA MENTHOLBOX ' o} 706 ¥i00 T ¥320 Aichi = (Feb-03) Aichi, Shizuoka, Yamanashi, Niigata,

Tochigi and areas east of Ibaraki —» (Apr-05) Nationwide
Jul-o4 " MILDSEVEN PRIMEBOX o 0 07 ¥300 " QOsaka = Discontinued
Jul04 " MILD SEVEN PRIME LIGHTS BOX o T8 06 Y000 w3200 Osaka — (Feb-03) Osaka, Fukuoka — o

{Aug-06) To be discontinued

Jul04 " SEVENSTARSLIGHTS BOX 707 ¥280 ¥300 Fuloka = (Apr-05) Nationwide

Feb-035  SEVEN STARS REVO LIGHTS MENTHOL BOX o o 706 ¥0 20 T Gunma, Nagano — (Sep-05) Nationwide

Feb05  FRONTIER NESBOX ™ o 101 ¥300 ¥330 Gifu

Feb-05" LUCIA CITRUS FRESH MENTHOL ONE e o) 10l ¥00 ¥320 Aichi = (Sep-03) Nationwide

Feb-05  MILD SEVEN SUPER LIGHTS ECOSTYLE 605 Y270 ¥300 Mie = Discontnued

Feb-05  RIN ’ ’ N ‘ Y 1.2 ¥350 ¥370 Kyolo, Shiga, Fukui, ishikawa, Toyama —
(Aug-06) To be discontinued

Feb-05  SAKURA o o ’ 10 08 ¥300 ' " Kagoshima, Miyazaki = Discontinued

Years ended March 31, 2006 (14 products) {D-spec: five products, Menthol: five praducts, Tar Img; three products, Products at ¥300 or more per pack: eleven producs)

Price

Date Product D-spec Menthol (r;xrg) ﬁ:“‘g’me m Sales Region
Ju05 MILD SEVEN ONE MENTHOL 1005 BOX o [N Y270 ¥300 Nationwide
Jul05™ " PIANISSIMO PECHE MENTHOL ONE TS o 1770l 300 ¥320 Miyagi Yamagata — (Nov-05) Nationwide  +
Jul05 ~ " BEVEL FINA SHINE BERRY - o) ) 5 04 ¥300 ¥320  Nigaa o o
Jul-05~ " SEVEN STARS REVO SUPER LIGHTS BOX I 505 ¥300 ¥320 Shizuoka — (jan.06) Nationwide

5 MILD SEVEN PRIME SLIMS THREE o) 3002 ¥300 ¥320 Aichi ) B
Jul0s™ " CABIN ONE 1005 BOX ) 1701 W0 Y200 Aomor, Akit, [wate i
Jul0s T ISITBOX 6 05 ¥300 ¥320 Fukushima, Ibaraki, Tochigi = (Aug-06) To be discontinued
Jul05™ T ISIT MENTHOL BOX o) g8 06 Y3000 W20 Fukushima, Tharaki, Tochigi — (Aug-06) To be ciscontinued
Julos™ SIESTA ) o 504 W00 ¥320 Hyogo — (Aug-06) To be discontinued
Jul0s " WINSTON MENTHOL BOX o) 705 ¥280 ¥300 Osaka, Nara \Wakayama — (Aug-06) To be discontinued
Ju05 " PEACESMOOTHAROMABOX 6 05 ¥300 ¥320  Olayama, Totiori
Jul0s ™ CAMEL FULL FLAVOR BOX 127709 w300 ¥320  Kumamoto, Oita = (Aug-06) To bx discontinmed
Jul05 " CAMEL MILD FLAVOR BOX 605 ¥00 w20 Kumamoto, Oita — (Aug-06) To be discontinued
Jan-06" " SEVENSTARS REVO ULTRA LICHTS MENTHOLBOX 0 © 37702 ¥300 ¥320 Shizuoka — (Apr-06) Nationwide




Number of JT Cigarette Products - e

120 Asof March 31 1997 1998 1909 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
T {0 Number of
100 ~nn e . JT Cigarette Products 89 94 97 99 99 102 98 93 95 117

80

60

40

20

97 'G8 a9 00 '01 '02 '03 0+ '05 ‘06

Smoking Rate (by gender)

* At the time of survey 1996 1097 1098 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
60 —Male Y >
\_A‘/\ — All Adults 35.1 34.6 33.6 33.6 329 327 309 303 29.4 29.2
50 \N“ -~ Male 57.5 56,1 55.2 54.0 535 52.0 49.1 48.3 46.9 45.8
. — Female 14,2 145 133 14.3 13.7 14.7 14.0 13.6 13.2 13.8
40
/__AH Adults Source: )T “lapan Sroking Rate Survey”
30
20 -
e
10
DG 07 D8 99 00 01 02 '03 04 05
Smoking Rate (by age) -~ . - \
(qé()) Survey in 2003 Total 20s 30s 40s 50s  over-60s
- _ 3 Male 45.8 51.6 54.6 53.9 487 3l4
R | n ] Female 138 209 209 179 144 55
40 Source: JT "Japan Smoking Rate Survey”
30
20 " L
10 |
* i
! I
0 { | i

Total 20s  30s  40s 505 over<0s

Taxation e e

All tobacco products sold in Japan are subject to the national tobacco under the Consumption Tax Law, 5% of consumption tax is imposed on
excise tax, the natonal tobacco special excise wax, and the local tobacco as with other goods and services. All tobacco excise taxes and consump-
excise tax. The national tobacco excise tax is set at ¥3,126 (from July 1, ton tax are imposed not only for tobacco products manufactured in

2006: ¥3,552) per thousand units, the national tobacco special excise tax Japan but also for imported tobacco products. As for imported tobacco
is set at ¥820 per thousand units, and the local tobacco excise tax is set at products, from April, 1987 no customs duties apply.

¥3.946 (from July 1, 2006: ¥4,372) per thousand units. In addition,
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Breakdown of Package of Cigarettes. (Prior toJun.30,2006) - -

List price ¥270 per pack List price ¥280 per pack List price ¥300 per pack

Consumption Tax Y 1286 4.76% ¥ 1333 476% ¥ 1420  476% A

Retailer's Margin ¥ 2700 10.00% Y 28.00 10.00% ¥ 30.00 10.00%

Total Tobacco Excise Tax Y5784 5646%  Yi5784  5637%  ¥is7.e4  52.61% N Retatl o
National Tobacco Excise Tax Y6050 T36% {6, 33% TV 62152 20,84% \ Net sl e FrEE
Local Tobacco Excise Tax V789200 3% . 10% Y 7890 T631% incloding tes
National Tobacco Special Excise Tax ¥ 16.40 6.07% ¥ 16,40 5.86% ¥ 16.40 5.47% __ Netsales / ’

JT's Proceeds ¥ 72.30 26.78% ¥ 80.83 28.87% ¥ 07.87 32.62% ) excluding taxes .

Breakdown of Package of Cigarettes (AfterJul.1,2006)

List price ¥290 per pack List price ¥300 per pack List price ¥320 per pack

Consumption Tax ¥ 138 376% ¥ 14.29 476% ¥ 524 +.76%

Retailer’s Margin ¥ 29.00 10.00% ¥ 30.00 10.00% ¥ 32.00 10.000%

Total Tobacco Excise Tax Y7488 60.30% V17485  5820%  ¥I74.88  54.60% \ Retail price
National Tobacco Excise Tax Y7104 2430%  TY 7104 2368% Y 7L04 | 22.20% \ Nersa > et

" Local Tobacco Excise Tax Y §7.44 3005% Y 8744 I005% Y 8744 2733% mi‘ljjifg mxes |
National Tobacco Special Excise Tax ¥ 16.40 5.66% ¥ 16.40 5.47% ¥ 16.40 5.13% Net sales )

JTs Proceeds ¥ 7231 24.93% Y 80.83 26.94% Y 97.88 30.59% } excluding taxes  /

System of Tobacco Sales - S

[ direct sales e

1 i __ Retailers B . Wholesalers >
licensing
approval | | requirement registration for by way of wholesalers
for selling the wholesale or direct sales
requirement for che approval ‘
of retail price - approval
s M " Registered Importers |
approval requirement for the
approval of retail price [
. . o imports
registration notification
registrarion requirement for ey
Registered Importers Foreign tobacco compauiasi
Number of Tobacco Retailers
;T;(‘)W“‘“ds of Stores) AsofMach 31 1997 1696 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
] Tobacco Retailers 293 296 299 302 306 307 307 305 304 304
e NN g
Source; Ministry of Finance

250

200
150

100
S0

07 98 99 00 '01 ‘02 03 ‘04 05 06

Number of Tobacco Vending Machines

(Tousands) Asof December 31 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

00 . ~ 3 Total Tobacco

Vending Machines 304 505 327 529 623 629 629 626 622 616

500 I Source: Japan Vending Machine Manufacturers Association

400

300 AsofMarch 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 20035 2006

200 . S " M {71]T Tobacco

10 ] Pl Vending Machines 117 128 146 193 20 251 254 237 226 243
o L
0 1 i L | i t 1‘
o o7l ‘.csI 99 o 03] 0 0 0] 0 Towl Totacco Vending Machines
97 98 '99 00 01 '02 03 04 ‘05 06 T Tobacco Vending Machines
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Number of Domestic Tobacco Growers-and Area under Domestic Leaf Tobacco Cultivation

U;gumds of Growers)  (Thousands of Hm“;g Years ended March 31 1997 1908 1899 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
n [ Number of Domestic
K‘H“‘j\r Tobaceo Growers 28 27 23 24 23 21 20 20 18 14
20 \-\ 20 ~ Area under Domestic
Leaf Tobacco Cultivation 26 25 25 24 24 23 23 22 21 19
10 10
o]

V7 98 % '00 01 '02 03 "0+ '05 06

Volume of Domestic and International Leaf Tobacco Purchase
{Thousands of Tons)

1 Years ended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
f non N {7 Domestic 66 68 63 64 60 60 58 50 52 6
80 N N {7 International 87 94 100 93 94 100 85 90 85 39
60
40 !
!
i
20 i
H
{
i
0 ‘

07 08 99 "00 01 '02 03 0+ °05 ‘06

Value of Domestic Leaf Tobacco Purchase and Price per 1kg

(ZB(i)léions of Yen) ZﬁYOeSg Years ended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
' [ Amount 1235 1301 1185 1216 1171 1147 1092 931 980 843

- : o ; oy ; 01

150 4/\/ 1900 Price per 1 kg 1872 1901 1853 1879 1926 1895 1878 189 1862 19

100 1,800

50 1,700

0 1,600

97 68 99 100 '01 ‘02 03 04 05 06

Leaf Tobacco Reappraisal Profit/Loss - . ..o 0 0w S g e e e e

‘-*3“5““-“’”““) Years ended March 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

12 {J Leaf Tobacco Reappraisal 7.5 53 12.8 147 4.1 1.9 0.7 6.6 9.8 (9.5
*{ ) indicates reappraisal loss.

6

> LD H

0 ﬂ fnl

3

©

®

(12)

V7 98 99 00 0L 02 03 04 '05 0o
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Tobacco Manufacturing Structure

Leaf processing factory

1 i

i

Decompose & leaf lnto
mesophyll and vain

Dry leaves 1o adlfust moistuze
corwent appropriate  for
storing and ripening.

Pack dried-leaves in an
appropnste portion f{or
storing and transporning,

Ripe leaves for a certain
period

dration

Cigarette manufacturing factory

- Customer,

Pack cigarettes into a Roll cigarettes up Add aromatic essenices called Cut leaves into smaller pieces Blend several leaves
parcels or cartons and wp dressing
cardboard boxes.

Number of Domestic Cigarette Manutacturing Factories -

25 1. AsofMarch 31 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

{3 Domestic Cigarette

20 Manufacturing Factories 26 25 25 25 25 25 25 22 18 10

15

10

S il

‘97 98 '99 '00 01 02 "3 '04 03 06

Tobacco Manufacturing-related Factory Location

As of March 31,2006

Cigarette manufacturing factories: 10
@ Morioka fuctory

@ Koriyama factory

@ Kita-Kanto factory

@ Odawara [actory

@® Tokai factory

@ Hamamatsu factory

@ Kanazawa [actory

@ Kansai factory

® Yonago factory

© Kyushu factory

Other tobacco related factories: 4

& Tomobe factory

@ Hiratsuka factory

€ Okayama printing factory

£ Hofu factory

Fact Sheet
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International Tobacco Business

Worldwide Demand for Cigarette - -

(Billions of Cigarettes) Yeurs ended December 31 1906 19097 1998 1999 2000 2001

6.000 2002 2003 2004 2003
1 Worldwide demand
for cigarette 5615 3413 5372 35407 35469 5471 5494 5508 53597 5,385
5300 ( | ( ’- Source: The Maxwell Report “Top World Cigarette Market Leaders™
5,000
4,500
4,000
96 97 98 '99 00 '01 '02 0304 ‘05
Top 10 Brands by Sales: Volume Worldwide
(Billions of cigarettes)
Years ended December 31 Total World Annual Sales Volume
Brand Brand Owner 2004 2005
1. Marlboro Philip Morris 466.4 472.7
2. Mild Seven T ' 115.6 117
3. L&M ‘ Philip Morris 113.4 1062
s L T e
JT 70.2 77.1
Reynolds American 14.8 14.2
JT 358 357
Reynolds American 230 233
6Cleopatra “ o ' Eastern Tobacco 58.2 57.2
7. Derby British American Tobacco C4s1 a1
8. Pall Mall - - o Reynolds /\mericén, 333 397
British American Tobacco
9 Kent British Aherican Tobacco, Lorillard 33 8 395
10, Wills Gold Flake o B British American Tobacco 30.4 34.3

Source: The Maxwell Report “Top World Cigarette Market Leaders”
*Sales volume within the United Slates and that outside the United States belong to Reynolds American and )T, respectively,
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Tobacco Sales Volume by Brand: -t o v

(Billions of Cigarettes}

250 Years ended December 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2003
~ Total 203.1 2151 2033 1988 2124 2203

200 : . GFBowl © U es7 1078 1088 1175 1314 1338
- s d s 0 Camel B 3B 36 34 348 351 352
¥ | H [ Winston 35 43 48 55.9 701 76.4
100 :1 . o o i il . Mlld%evsn o ‘ 16 18 17 17.2 17.2 17.5
1ol O Salem o1 11 97 89 48
50 O Oterbrands ‘ 107.4 1073 935 83  8l0 865
0 * Sales volume in the Chira Division (China, Hong Kong, and Macau) was included in 2000 and 2001, but excluded in 2002 10 2005,

00 '01 02 03 ‘04 05

Tobacco-Sales Volume by. Region: .o~ oo L oo i - i

(Billions of Cigarettes)

250 Years ended Decernber 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Total 2031 2151 2033 1988 2124 2203
200 1R ~ B0 - - S e S e e e T
| U . Ol Burope | 338 38 369 381 32
0 | [ O Americas ' . 11 100 99 99 93
100 I I O IS & Others 18 124 116 1116 1238 1383
*Sales volume in the China Division (China, Hong Kong and Macau) were included in 2000 and 2001, but excluded in 2002 to 2005,
50
0

00 01 02 03 0+ 05

Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand Cigarettes

{U.5. Dollars)

20 Years erxled December 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
¥ O Net Sales Excluding Taxes per Thousand Cigarettes 14.4 14.0 15.0 17.4 18.6 19.9
1
15 *Net sales in the China Division (China, Hong Kong, and Macau) were included in 2000 and 2001, but excluded in 2002 to 2005,
10
5
0

0001 02 03 04 08

Number of International Factories

20 Asof March 31 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
F O Number of International Factories 19 17 16 16 16 17
1 n
15 "
10
5
0

01 02 03 04 05 06
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Pharmaceutical Business

R&D Expense on a Non-consolidated Basis ~ -

(Billions of Yen) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

35
[0 R&D expense on a Non-consolidated Basis 26.0 280 345 26.4 231 201 19.3

30
25
20
15
10

5

0

‘00 01 02 03 '0¢ 05 06

Royalty Income from Viracept ®

(i";é““"“”f U.S. Dottars) Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
I [ Royalty income from Viracept ® 146 126 110 75 63 58 50
100
50
0

00 0L W2 V3 04 03 06
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Clinical Development
As of April 28, 2006

Code Stage Indication Mechanism Characteristics Rights
JIT-705 Phase 1 Dyslipidemia CETP inhibitor Decreases LDL and increases DL by inhibiionof A license agreement was
(oral) (JPN) CETP signed with Roche
-CETP: Cholesteryl Ester Transfer Protein, facili- (Switzerland) for develop-
tates transfer of cholesteryl ester from HDL 1o LD, ment and commercialization
-HDL: High density lipoprotein, Good Cholesterol of this compound world-
-LDL: Low density lipoprotein, Bad Cholesterol wide except Japan and
Korea. (October 2004)
JTT-130  Phase 1 Hyperlipidemia MTP inhibitor Treatment of hyperlipidemia by reducing absorpi-
(oral) (JPN) ton of cholesterol and triglyceride via inhibitioin of
Phase 1 MTP
(Overseas) MTP:Microsomal Triglyceride Transfer Protein
JTK-303  Phasel Anti-HIV Integrase inhibitor  Integrase inhibitor which works by blocking inte- A license agreement. was
(oral) PNy grase, an enzyme that is involved in the replication  signed with Gilead (US) for
of HIV (HIV:Human Tmmunodeficiency Virus) development and commer-
cialization of this compound
worldwide except Japan.
(March 2005)
JTT-302 Phasel Dyslipidemia CETP inhibitor Decreases 1. D1 and increases HDL. by inhibition of
(oral) {Overseas) CETP
-CETP: Chelesteryl Ester Transfer Protein, facili-
tates mansfer of cholesteryl ester from HDL to DL
-HDL. High density lipoprotein, Good Cholesterol
-LDL: Low deusity lipoprotein, Bad Cholesterol
JIT-305 Phasel Osteoporosis CaSR antagonist Increases BMD and decreases new vertebral frac-
(oral) (JPN) tures by accelerating endogenous PTH secretion
via antagonism of circulating Ca on CaSR in
parathyroid cells
-BMD: Bone Mineral Density
-PTH: Parathyroid Hormone
-CaSR: Calcium-Sensing Receptor
JTT-551  Phase | Type 2 diabetes mellitus ~ PTP1B inhibitor Decreases blood glucose by enhancing insulin sig-
(oral) (JPN) nal via inhibition of PTP1B.

-PTP1B:Protein Tyrosine Phosphatase 1B This
enzyme negatively regulates insulin signaling

pathways.
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Foods Business

<B“‘i§8;°fY°“> Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
M 1 Foods Business 1950 2103 2211 2324 2501 2653 2783
250 il  Processed Foods “ ‘ © — 416 480 600 736 878 930
200 Beverages - C o~ 1654 1731 1723 1765 1774 1853
150 *From FY2003, we included JTDS and HANS in Processed Foods, and we cotrected the data of 2002. Sales figures of Processed Foods
of FY2002 and the datz of FY2001 are not continuous.
100
S0
. W

00 '01 02 03 04 05 06

Number of Marking/Combined Vending Machines
{Machines)

120,000 Years ended March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
' Vending machines — — 190,000 201,000 211,000 226,000 237,000
100,000 S O JT-Owned 30000 31,000 36500 45500 5,000 #4500 +0.500
80,000 | 7 Combined 20000 31,000 38500 43,500 50,500 34,000 61,500
n |
60,000 . i | *Number of vending machines includes machines operated by JT's affiliates and cup vending machines. Combined vending machines
: 1 ; ! ! locus oan JT brand beverages but also sell non-]T brand beverages.
40,000 H " L I H
20,000 H
0

00 "01 02 03 '04 05 06

Number of Employees

Number-of Employees (Consolidated) L e R
<*5'g%‘gg“5> As of March 31 000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
O Total 41,703 40237 30387 38,628 30243 32640 31476
40,000 " Tobacco Business 32367 30894 20860 28946 28504 24.350 "
T A ! .
30,000 Intenational
“E"hal:n;acemicn] Business 1,682 1,670 1380 1530 1351
200004} Foods Business 3307 3654 4007 4381 5400 5057
oo ||| 7? IR OtherBusivess 3093 280 2707 247 2608 70
[ Ll il Corporate L+ 1199 1143 1134 1171 66]
0 Ll i *Number of employees is counted at working base.
00 01 02 03 04
As of March 31 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
[71 Working base (Non-consolidated) 16235 15588 14462 14,172 13769 10,124 8855
Register base (Non-consolidated) C 20094 19355 17851 17,272 16690 11300 9,931
As of December 31 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
JT International ( Thousands of Employees) 13.0 11.8 11.7 11.6 119 12.0 —
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History of JT

JT is a joint stock corporation, incorporated in April 1985 under the Commercial Code of
Japan, pursuant to the Japan Tobacco Inc. Law, or the JT Law.

Our history dates back to 1898, when the government formed a bureau to operate a
monopoly for the sale of domestic leaf tobacco. In the early 1900s, the government extended
this monopoly to all tobacco products in Japan and to the domestic salt business. In 1949, the
bureau became the Japan Tobacco and Salt Public Corporation, or JTS, which was charged with
acting as the country’s sole producer and supplier of tobacco and sole purchaser and supplier of
salt products.

The growth in demand for cigarettes in Japan began to slow in the mid-1970s as a result of
several factors, including demographic trends, health concerns, price increases, and a peaking of
the rate of cigarette consumption per smoker. During this period, even though JTS had already
commenced sales of imported foreign-made tobacco products in Japan, there was increasing pres-
sure from abroad to open the Japanese tobacco market.

JTS also faced a number of constraints due to its status as a public corporation. For exam-
ple, the Corporation’s operating budget and capital investment plans were subject to approval
each fiscal year by the Japanese Diet, which made long-term management planning difficult. JTS
was also required to purchase all domestically grown leaf tobacco, which was generally pro-
duced in excessive quantities, at prices significantly higher than those of foreign-grown leaf

Lobacco. Moreover, JTS was barred {rom entering other business areas. It became apparent that

if the domestic tobacco market were to be opened, the Corporation would require greater man-
agement independence to compete with foreign tobacco companies. At the same time, in the
context of an administrative reform initiative in Japan, there was increased public interest in the
privatization of public corporations. Accordingly, a 1982 government report recommended that
JTIS be privatized, which led to the enactment of the JT Law in 1984, the establishment of our

Company in April 1985, and our acquisition of the business and assets of JTS.

The main changes since the establishment of the Company are as follows:
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Date Details of change
April 1985 Jdpdn Tobacco Inc. was established.
(The }apanesr tobacco ma)km was opem‘d o formgn tobacco manufacturers ) N
mvThe Business Dcvelopmenr Division was established to promote active development of new businesses.
wﬁubséquemly until July 1990, in order to reinforce the promotion system for each business, this division was reformed and business
depanmc‘ms were established dealing with medicine, food, etc.
March 1986” k In the interests of modernization and improved tobacco production elhc1ency the Pul\uola lwmtory and Iosu Fact(;rfy were closed down
and the new Kita Kyushu Factory was estabhshc
cmhsequemly until June 1996, nine more tobacco factories were LlObﬁd down in funher moves towards muonahzauon of the tobacco pro-
ducuon system.
Aprll 1987 o Custorm duues on 1mporled ugaretlea were reduced 1o zZero.
Oclobcr 198é M“The Lommumcatlon name “JT” was mtmduccd
.july 1991 . The Head Office was relocated from Minato-ku to 5hmag"ma ku to make way for [he construction of the new Head Office building.

September 1993
QOctober 1994

The Central Pharmaceutical Research lnslmne was established to reinforce J1's internal pharmaceutical R&D capabilities.

The initial public offennb ook place ofJT eharcs held by the Japanese government. (394, 276 aharc> Offmng Price: ¥1,438 lhousand)

_II shares were listed on the First Section of the Tokyo, Ocaka and Nagoya Stock Euhdnges

November 1994

]T shares were listed on the Kyoto Hnoshlma Fukuoka Nugata and Sapporo Stock rXL hanges.

Decem ber 1998
‘Vldy 1999

The second public offering took place of JT shares held bv the ]qmnose govemms-m (272 390 sharcs Offering Pnce ¥813 Lhousand)

s salt monopoly business.

The Tobacco Mutual Aid Pension scheme was united with the Employees’ Pension scheme.

May 1995 ”Ihe Hedd Ofﬂce was relocated from Shmaé,awa ku to Mmato ku
June 1996
April 1997 In accordance with the abolition of the salt monopoly, JT ended i
April 1998

JT signed an agreement with Unimat Corporation to form a business alliance in the soft drinks business and acquired a majority stake in

this company.
]T acqulrcd a majority smk( in Tom Pharma« euucal Co., L td Lhroug_h a taks‘o» er h]d

JT acquired the non-U.S. Lob"m.o busmess of RJR \dblSLO Inc.

july 1999
Ouober 1999

March 2003

October 2003

JT acqmrcd the foods dlvmon of Asth K'IS(‘I ( or porauon m(‘ludmg elg,h‘ subsxdlancs such as /\>ahl Foods

Through the busmess alhdnce w1th Torii I’harmaceuucal Co., Ltd., R&D in 1he medlpal pharmaceuncal busmess was concemrated mJT
wlule promotion funmons were united within Torii Pharmaceuncal

n ordcr to establish a b’ms for futurc profit growth in thv domosnc tohacco busmc» Lhe Send'u Nagoya and Hashlmoto Faclones were
closed down.

JT obtained 4‘5 800 of its own shares in order to expand its managemmt opuons

March 2004
June 2004

November 2004

~ March 2005

March 2003

April 2005
April 2006

7Ictmg the sale of shares above the mmlmum Ihreshold that the government is leba ly reqmred to mamtam

In order (0 establish a b.ms for future profit growth in the domestic tobacco business, the Hiroshima, Fuchu Malsuyama dnd Naha
Facrom‘s were ¢ osed down

lhe thrd pubhc offenng took place ofjl sh"ires held by lhejapdnese g,overnmem (289 334 shares, Offermg Pnce ¥843 lhousand) com-
JT obtained 38,184 of its own shares in order to exp'md ils management options.

In order to establish a basis for future profit growth in the domestic tobacco business, the Ueda, Hakodate, Takasaki, Takamatsu,
Tokushima, Usuki, Kdgoshlma and MlydkonOJO l"d(,[OI'lCS were closed down.
]T ceased to produce sell fmd use¢ Marlboro brand cigarette LXL]U‘HVC])’ mjapan upon the z:\'plranon of 1he uemc term.

A stock split with a ratio o[ {ive new shares per share was conducted with the aim of expanding the investor base (hffecnve date: Aprll l)
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Shareholder Information (asofMarch3l, 2006

Common Stock Stack Exchange Listings
*The stock split is done by five stocks a stock on April 1 2006

Authorized: 8,000,000 shares
Issued: 2,000,000 shares
Number of shareholders: 46,504

First Sections of Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka Securities
Exchange, and Nagoya Stock Exchange;
Fukuoka Stock Exchange; Sapporo Securities Exchange

Transfer Agent
The Mitsubishi UF] Trust and Banking Corporation
4-5, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Principal Shareholders Composition of Shareholders (Years ended March 31)
Name Shares held (%)
100 - — — —_ I
The Minister of Finance 1000477 67 82 8.2 93 80 individuals and athers
. o ! ] L Foreien institon
The Master Trust Bank af_]apan Lid (T rust A(‘c ounL) 44— 279 N2 17 R& M 237 7.4 0 Foreign insticoions and others
. 12 [ 11 i [ Other institutions
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Lid, {Trust Account) - 33.277 ) 80 o1 | Pos X [ securities companies
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505103 30,432 14.1 138 03 B! 0o L Finencial instuions
1 - HREREN — o L 0 Japanese govemment
State Street Bank and Trust Company 28,366 &0 66.7 66.7 64.5 A o NS
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 27,000 _{15-0 27
N . I
Morgan Stanley and Company Inc. 26673 . 500 »e
The Bank of New York Treaty IAbDEC Arcount 19, 183 #
Mellon Bank, N.A. as Agem Jor Its Client 16516
Mellon Omnibus U'S. Pension 20
The Chase Manhattan Bank N.A. London SL Omaibus Account 16,484
0
02 03 04 ‘03 06
Stock Price Range and Trading Volume (Years ended March 31)
{Yen) {Poinis)
500,000 3,000 [ )T (left scale)
7] TOPIX tright scate)
400,000 2,500
2,000
300,000
B m 1,500
200,000
0ot bom o
100,000 500
0 0
*Because the stock split is done by five stocks a stock on April 1, 2006, stock prices in which the solicitation correction is done are written.
(Shares)
1,500,000 [J Trading Volume
1,000,000
5,00,000 H H
w0 o 0 0 0 1.0 1
1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
JT Stock Data (Years ended March 31) ]
1993 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
High (Yen) 240,000 204,000 204,000 208,000 262 000 308,000 193,800 182,800 178,000 163 600 266‘000 435,000
Low (Yen) 153,200 142,000 149,600 156,400 1 74 000 137.200 138,000 139,000 137,600 l ’S 800 152 800 238,000

Monthly trading volume (shares) 207,678 162,657 330,107 362,349 315,892 567,207 448,631 464,116 500,302 396,318 1,213,136 1412073

*1 Highs, lows, and monthly trading volume of shares refer to those on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.
2 Because the stock split (s done by five stocks a stock on April 1, 2006, stock prices in which the solicitation correction is done are written.
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Members of the Board, Auditors, and Executive Officers (asofjune 23 2006

Members of the Board

Executive Officers

Chairman of the Board
Yoji Wakui

Representative Directors
Hiroshi Kimura
Takao Hotta

Kazuei Obata
Ichiro Kumakura

Ryoichi Yamada

Member of the Board,
Corporate Counselor

Katsuhiko Honda

Members of the Board
Noriaki Okubo
Mutsuo Iwai

Yasushi Shingai

Auditors

Standing Auditors
Hisashi Tanaka*

Masaaki Sumikawa

Auditors
Hiroyoshi Murayama*

Takanobu Fujita*

* Quiside Corporate Auditors under the

Commercial Code of Japan
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President Chief Executive Officer

Hiroshi Kimura

Executive Deputy Presidents

Takao Hotta

Chief Financial Officer and Assistant to CEO in Compliance
and Food Business

Kazuei Obata

Assistant to CEQ in Planning, CSR, HR and Operational
Review and Business Assurance

Ichiro Kumakura

President, Tobacco Business and Assistant to CEQ in
Vending Machinery

Ryoichi Yamada

Assistant to CEO in Communications, General
Administration and Legal

Executive Vice Presidents

Zenjiro Watanabe

Head of Sales General Division, Tobacco Business

Kenji lijima

Head of Manufacturing General Division, Tobacco Business

Mitsuomi Koizumi
Head of Tobacco Bustness Planning Division, Tobacco Business

Seiki Sato
Head of Corporate, Scientific & Regulatory Affairs,
Tobacco Business

Noriaki Okubo

President, Pharmaceutical Business

Shigeo Ishiguro
Head of Central Pharmaceutical Research Institute,
Pharmaceutical Business

Mutsuo Iwai
President, Food Business
Ryuichi Shimomura
Chief Legal Officer

Senior Vice Presidents

Hirotoshi Maejima

Head of Research & Development General
Division, Tobacco Business

Yoshihisa Fujisaki

Head of Product Group, Tobacco Business

Tadashi Iwanami
Head of Blending & Product Development
General Division, Tobacco Business

Tatsuya Hisano
Head of Domestic Leaf Tobacco General
Division, Tobacco Business

Gisuke Shiozawa
HHead of Soft Drink Business Division,
Food Business

Miyoharu Hino
Head of Food Business Division,
Food Business

Sadao Furuya
Chief Strategy Officer

Yoshiyuki Murai

Chief Human Resources Officer

Masakazu Shimizu
Chief Communications Officer

Kazuhiro Nishino
Chief General Affairs Officer



Corporate Data (asofMarch3l, 2006)

Head Office JT International S.A.
2-1, Toranomon 2-chome, 14, Chemin Rieu, CH-1211, Geneva 17, Switzerland
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8422, Japan Tel: (41)-22-7030-777
Tel: (81)3-3582-3111 Fax: (41)-22-7030-789

Fax: (81)3-5572-1441
Members of JT International Executive Committee
Date of Establishment {As ot July 1, 2006)

April 1, 1985 Pierre de Labouchere

President and Chief Executive Officer

Paid-in Capital
¥100 billion Yasushi Shingai

Executive Vice President & Assistant to the CEQ
Number of Employees
31,476 (Consolidated)
8,855(Non-consolidated)

Thomas A. McCoy
Chief Operating Officer

Masaharu Abe
Domestic Sales Offices Senior Vice President Research & Development
Hokkaido (Hokkaido) David ]. Aitken
Sendai (Miyagi) Senior Vice President Consumer & Trade Marketing
Tokyo (Tokyo) Paul R. Bourassa

Senior Vice President Legal & Corporate Affairs

Nagoya (Aichi)
Osaka (Osaka)

Hiroshima (Hiroshima) .

Martin Braddock
Regiona) President CIS & Baltics, Adriatica, Turkey, Romania & WWDF

Muneaki Fujimoto

Shikoku (Kagawa) Regional President Asia Pacific

Fukuoka (Fukuoka) Jean-Francois Leroux

17 other sales offices Senior Vice President Finance, Information Technology & Chief Financial
Officer

. . Fadoul Pekhazis

Domestic Factories Regional President Middle East, Near East & Africa

Kita-Kanto (Tochigi) Michel Poirier

Tokai (Shizuoka) Regjonal President Americas

Kansai (Kyoto) Jorg Schappei

o Senior Vice Presi an Resources

Kyushu (hlkuoka) Senjor Vice President Human Resources

Bill Schulz

10 other factories ) )
Senior Vice President Global Supply Chain
Frits Vranken

Senjor Vice President Business Development
Leaf Tobacco Research Laboratory (Tochigi) Roberto Zanni

Domestic Laboratories

Tobacco Science Research Institute (Kanagawa) Regional President Europe

Central Pharmaceutical Research Institute (Osaka)
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JAPAN TOBACCO INC.

2-1, Toranomon 2-chome, Minato-ku,
Tokyo 103-8422, Japan

Tel: (81) 3-3582-3111

Fax: (81) 3-3572-1441
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